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Forward-Looking Statements

This Form 6-K contains forward-looking statements. James Hardie Industries plc (the “company”) may from time to time make forward-looking statements in its periodic
reports filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission, on Forms 20-F and 6-K, in its annual reports to shareholders, in offering circulars, invitation
memoranda and prospectuses, in media releases and other written materials and in oral statements made by the company’s officers, directors or employees to analysts,
institutional investors, existing and potential lenders, representatives of the media and others. Statements that are not historical facts are forward-looking statements and
such forward-looking statements are statements made pursuant to the Safe Harbor Provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.

Examples of forward-looking statements include:

. statements about the company’s future performance;

. projections of the company’s results of operations or financial condition;

. statements regarding the company’s plans, objectives or goals, including those relating to strategies, initiatives, competition, acquisitions, dispositions and/or its
products;

. expectations concerning the costs associated with the suspension or closure of operations at any of the company’s plants and future plans with respect to any such
plants;

. expectations concerning the costs associated with the significant capital expenditure projects at any of the company’s plants and future plans with respect to any

such projects;

expectations regarding the extension or renewal of the company’s credit facilities including changes to terms, covenants or ratios;

expectations concerning dividend payments and share buy-backs;

statements concerning the company’s corporate and tax domiciles and structures and potential changes to them, including potential tax charges;

statements regarding tax liabilities and related audits, reviews and proceedings;

statements regarding the possible consequences and/or potential outcome of legal proceedings brought against us and the potential liabilities, if any, associated with

such proceedings;

. expectations about the timing and amount of contributions to AICF, a special purpose fund for the compensation of proven Australian asbestos-related personal injury
and death claims;

. expectations concerning the adequacy of the company’s warranty provisions and estimates for future warranty-related costs;

. statements regarding the company’s ability to manage legal and regulatory matters (including but not limited to product liability, environmental, intellectual property
and competition law matters) and to resolve any such pending legal and regulatory matters within current estimates and in anticipation of certain third-party
recoveries; and

. statements about economic conditions, such as changes in the US economic or housing market conditions or changes in the market conditions in the Asia Pacific
region, the levels of new home construction and home renovations, unemployment levels, changes in consumer income, changes or stability in housing values, the
availability of mortgages and other financing, mortgage and other interest rates, housing affordability and supply, the levels of foreclosures and home resales,
currency exchange rates, and builder and consumer confidence.
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Words such as “believe,” “anticipate,” “plan,” “expect,” “intend,” “target,” “estimate,” “project,” “predict,” “forecast,” “guideline,” “aim,” “will,” “should,” “likely,” “continue,” “may,”
“objective,” “outlook” and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements but are not the exclusive means of identifying such statements. Readers are
cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements and all such forward-looking statements are qualified in their entirety by reference to the following
cautionary statements.

Forward-looking statements are based on the company’s current expectations, estimates and assumptions and because forward-looking statements address future results,
events and conditions, they, by their very nature, involve inherent risks and uncertainties, many of which are unforeseeable and beyond the company’s control. Such known
and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors may cause actual results, performance or other achievements to differ materially from the anticipated results, performance
or achievements expressed, projected or implied by these forward-looking statements. These factors, some of which are discussed under “Risk Factors” in Section 3 of the
Form 20-F filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on 18 May 2017, include, but are not limited to: all matters relating to or arising out of the prior manufacture of
products that contained asbestos by current and former company subsidiaries; required contributions to AICF, any shortfall in AICF and the effect of currency exchange rate
movements on the amount recorded in the company’s financial statements as an asbestos liability; governmental loan facility to AICF; compliance with and changes in tax
laws and treatments; competition and product pricing in the markets in which the company operates; the consequences of product failures or defects; exposure to
environmental, asbestos, putative consumer class action or other legal proceedings; general economic and market conditions; the supply and cost of raw materials; possible
increases in competition and the potential that competitors could copy the company’s products; reliance on a small number of customers; a customer’s inability to pay;
compliance with and changes in environmental and health and safety laws; risks of conducting business internationally; compliance with and changes in laws and
regulations; currency exchange risks; dependence on customer preference and the concentration of the company’s customer base on large format retail customers,
distributors and dealers; dependence on residential and commercial construction markets; the effect of adverse changes in climate or weather patterns; possible inability to
renew credit facilities on terms favorable to the company, or at all; acquisition or sale of businesses and business segments; changes in the company’s key management
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personnel; inherent limitations on internal controls; use of accounting estimates; and all other risks identified in the company’s reports filed with Australian, Irish and US
securities regulatory agencies and exchanges (as appropriate). The company cautions you that the foregoing list of factors is not exhaustive and that other risks and
uncertainties may cause actual results to differ materially from those referenced in the company’s forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements speak only as of
the date they are made and are statements of the company’s current expectations concerning future results, events and conditions. The company assumes no obligation to
update any forward-looking statements or information except as required by law.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on
its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

James Hardie Industries plc
Date: 18 May 2017 By: /s/ Natasha Mercer

Natasha Mercer
Company Secretary
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Exhibit 99.1

Results for Announcement to the Market
James Hardie Industries plc
ARBN 097 829 895

Appendix 4E - Preliminary Final Report Year Ended 31 March 2017
Key Information Year Ended 31 March
2017 2016 Movement
US$M Us$Mm
Net Sales From Ordinary Activities 1,921.6 1,728.2 Up 11%
Profit From Ordinary Activities After Tax Attributable to Shareholders 276.5 244.4 Up 13%
Net Profit Attributable to Shareholders 276.5 244.4 Up 13%
Net Tangible (Liabilities) Assets per Ordinary Share US$(0.51) US(80.51) Flat -

Dividend Information

. A FY2017 second half ordinary dividend (‘FY2017 second half dividend”) of US28.0 cents per security is payable to CUFS holders on 4 August 2017.
e A FY2017 first half ordinary dividend (“FY2017 first half dividend”) of US10.0 cents per security was paid to CUFS holders on 24 February 2017.

. The record date to determine entitlements to the FY2017 second half dividend is 8 June 2017 (on the basis of proper instruments of transfer received by the Company’s
registrar, Computershare Investor Services Pty Ltd, Level 4, 60 Carrington Street, Sydney NSW 2000, Australia, by 5:00pm if securities are not CHESS approved, or security
holding balances established by 5:00pm or such later time permitted by ASTC Operating Rules if securities are CHESS approved).

. The FY2017 first half dividend, the FY2017 second half dividend and future dividends will be unfranked for Australian taxation purposes.

. The company will be required to deduct Irish DWT (currently 20% of the gross dividend amount) from this dividend and future dividends, unless the beneficial owner has
completed and returned a non-resident declaration form (DWT Form).

. The Australian currency equivalent amount of the FY2017 second half dividend to be paid to CUFS holders will be announced after the record date. The amount payable to
shareholders who have elected to receive their dividend in NZ dollars or British pounds will be paid in those currencies.

. No dividend reinvestment plan is in operation for the FY2017 second half dividend.

. The FY2016 second half ordinary dividend (“FY2016 second half dividend’) of US29.0 cents per security was paid to share/CUFS holders on 5 August 2016.

Movements in Controlled Entities during the Year Ended 31 March 2017

There were no movements in controlled entities during the year ended 31 March 2017.

Audit

The results and financial information included within this Preliminary Final Report have been prepared using US GAAP and have been subject to an independent audit by external auditors.

Results for the 4th Quarter and Year Ended 31 March 2017
Contents

Media Release

Management’s Analysis of Results
Management Presentation
Consolidated Financial Statements

Pobd=~

James Hardie Industries plc is incorporated under the laws of Ireland with its corporate seat in Dublin, Ireland. The liability of members is limited. The information contained in the above documents should be read in conjunction with
the James Hardie 2017 Annual Report which can be found on the company website at www.jameshardie.com.
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-Jarnos Hardie

hﬂedia Release

18 May 2017

James Hardie Announces Adjusted Net Operating Profit of
US$54.6 million for Q4 Fiscal Year 2017 and US$248.6
million for the full year ended 31 March 2017

James Hardie today announced results for the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2017 and the full year ended 31 March 2017:

e Group Adjusted net operating profit of US$54.6 million for the quarter and US$248.6 million for the full year, a decrease of 6% for the
quarter and an increase of 2% for the full year, compared to the prior corresponding periods (“pcp”);

e Group Adjusted EBIT of US$77.1 million for the quarter and US$354.3 million for the full year, a decrease of 8% for the quarter and an
increase of 1% for the full year, compared to pcp;

e Group net sales of US$494.3 million for the quarter and US$1,921.6 million for the full year, an increase of 13% and 11%, respectively,
compared to pcp;

e North America Fiber Cement Segment volume for the quarter and full year increased 12% and 13%, respectively, compared to pcp;

e North America Fiber Cement Segment net sales of US$387.7 million for the quarter and US$1,493.4 million for the full year, an increase of
12% for the quarter and full year, compared to pcp;

e  North America Fiber Cement Segment EBIT margin of 19.6% for the quarter and 23.0% for the full year; and

e International Fiber Cement Segment EBIT margin of 23.0% for the quarter and 23.1% for the full year.

CEO Commentary

James Hardie CEO Louis Gries said, “Our North America Fiber Cement Segment delivered strong top-line performance as fourth quarter and full
year net sales were both up 12% versus prior corresponding periods. The volume and net sales growth was driven by underlying market growth and
continued improvement in our commercial execution resulting in improved market penetration.

“During the year we significantly increased our manufacturing capacity with the addition of four new brownfield lines that will drive a high, longer
term, return on capital for the company. However, this capacity growth created challenges for our North America manufacturing network as we
accelerated commissioning of new capacity and overall performance of the network lagged fiscal year 2016 performance. These increased
manufacturing costs along with increased investment in marketing development programs, in both the quarter and full year, resulted in EBIT
decreasing 2% and 11% for the full year and fourth quarter, respectively. Improving the performance of our North America manufacturing network
remains a key focus for the business going forward.”

He added, “Within our International Fiber Cement business, net sales increased 18% for the fourth quarter and 9% for the full year. Furthermore,
EBIT increased 21% for the quarter and 22% for the full year. This strong performance was driven by our Australian and New Zealand businesses
net sales growth and the non-recurrence of Carole Park start-up costs reported in the prior corresponding periods.”

dia Release: James Hardie — 4™ Quarter 2017
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Media Release
18 May 2017

Mr. Gries concluded, “Our group results for the full year reflected strong top line growth and cash generation, and $276.6 million returned to
shareholders through dividends and share buybacks, while EBIT margin and Adjusted NOPAT were below internal expectations as North America
incurred higher production costs as we continued to increase our capacity.”

Outlook

We expect the modest market growth and more prolonged recovery of the US housing market to continue into fiscal year 2018. The single family
new construction market and repair and remodel market are expected to grow similar to the year-on-year growth experienced in fiscal year 2017.
The Company expects new construction starts between approximately 1.2 and 1.3 million.

We expect our North America Fiber Cement segment EBIT margin to be in our stated target range of 20% to 25% for fiscal year 2018. This
expectation is based upon the Company continuing to drive improved operating performance in its plants, stable exchange rates and input cost
trends.

Net sales from the Australian business are expected to trend in line with the average growth of the domestic repair and remodel and single family
detached housing markets in the eastern states of Australia. Similarly, growth in the New Zealand business is expected into fiscal year 2018.

Media Release: James Hardie — 4™ Quarter 2017
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Further Information

Readers are referred to the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements and Management’s Analysis of Results for the fourth quarter and full
year ended 31 March 2017 for additional information regarding the Company’s results, including information regarding income taxes, the asbestos
liability and contingent liabilities.

As of 30 June 2016, the Company changed its reportable operating segments. Previously, the Company reported on three operating segments:
(i) North America and Europe Fiber Cement, (ii) Asia Pacific Fiber Cement, and (iii) Research and Development. As of 30 June 2016, the Company
began reporting on four operating segments: (i) North America Fiber Cement; (ii) International Fiber Cement; (iii) Other Businesses; and
(iv) Research and Development. The significant changes to how certain businesses are reported in the new segment structure are as follows: (i) our
European business is now reported in the International Fiber Cement segment, along with the other businesses that were historically reported in the
Asia Pacific Fiber Cement segment; and (ii) business development, including some non-fiber cement operations, such as our Windows business in
North America, are now reported in the Other Businesses segment as opposed to previously being reported in the North America and Europe Fiber
Cement segment. The Company has revised its historical segment information at 31 March 2016 and for the fourth quarter and full year ended
31 March 2016 to be consistent with the new reportable segment structure. The change in reportable segments had no effect on the Company’s
financial position, results of operations or cash flows for the periods presented. Readers are referred to Note 14 of our condensed consolidated
financial statements for further information on our segments.

Use of Non-GAAP Financial Information; Australian Equivalent Terminology

This Media Release includes financial measures that are not considered a measure of financial performance under generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States (GAAP), such as Adjusted net operating profit and Adjusted EBIT. These non-GAAP financial measures should not be
considered to be more meaningful than the equivalent GAAP measure. Management has included such measures to provide investors with an
alternative method for assessing its operating results in a manner that is focused on the performance of its ongoing operations and excludes the
impact of certain legacy items, such as asbestos adjustments. Additionally, management uses such non-GAAP financial measures for the same
purposes. However, these non-GAAP financial measures are not prepared in accordance with US GAAP, may not be reported by all of the
Company’s competitors and may not be directly comparable to similarly titted measures of the Company’s competitors due to potential differences in
the exact method of calculation. For additional information regarding the non-GAAP financial measures presented in this Media Release, including a
reconciliation of each non-GAAP financial measure to the equivalent US GAAP measure, see the sections titled “Definition and Other Terms” and
“Non-US GAAP Financial Measures” included in the Company’s Management’'s Analysis of Results for the fourth quarter and full year ended
31 March 2017.

In addition, this Media Release includes financial measures and descriptions that are considered to not be in accordance with US GAAP, but which
are consistent with financial measures reported by Australian companies, such as operating profit, EBIT and EBIT margin. Since the Company
prepares its Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with US GAAP, the Company provides investors with a table and definitions
presenting cross-references between each US GAAP financial measure used in the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements to the equivalent
non-US GAAP financial measure used in this press release. See the sections titled “Definition and Other Terms” included in the Company’s
Management'’s Analysis of Results for fourth quarter and full year ended 31 March 2017.

ardie - 4™ Quarter 2017
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Media Release
18 May 2017

Forward-Looking Statements

This Media Release contains forward-looking statements and information that are necessarily subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Many
factors could cause the actual results, performance or achievements of James Hardie to be materially different from those expressed or implied in
this release, including, among others, the risks and uncertainties set forth in Section 3 “Risk Factors” in James Hardie’s Annual Report on Form 20-F
for the year ended 31 March 2017; changes in general economic, political, governmental and business conditions globally and in the countries in
which James Hardie does business; changes in interest rates, changes in inflation rates; changes in exchange rates; the level of construction
generally; changes in cement demand and prices; changes in raw material and energy prices; changes in business strategy and various other
factors. Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or should underlying assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may vary
materially from those described herein. James Hardie assumes no obligation to update or correct the information contained in this Media Release

except as required by law.

END

Media/Analyst Enquiries:
Jason Miele
Vice President, Investor and Media Relations

Telephone: +61 2 8845 3352
Email: media@jameshardie.com.au

Media Release: James Hardie — 4™ Quarter 2017 4
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urth Quarter and Full Year Ended
3 1 March 2017
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Management’s Analysis of Results

This Management’s Analysis of Results forms part of a package of information about James Hardie Industries plc’s results. It should be read in conjunction with the other
parts of this package, including the Media Release, the Management Presentation and the consolidated financial statements. Except as otherwise indicated in this
Management’s Analysis of Results, James Hardie Industries plc is referred to as “JHI plc.” JHI plc, together with its direct and indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries, are
collectively referred to as “James Hardie,” the “Company,” “we,” “our,” or “us.” Definitions for certain capitalized terms used in this Management’s Analysis of Results can be
found in the sections titled “Definitions and Other Terms” and “Non-GAAP Financial Measures.”

"

This Management’s Analysis of Results includes financial measures that are not considered a measure of financial performance under generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States (“US GAAP”). These non-GAAP financial measures should not be considered to be more meaningful than the equivalent US GAAP measures.
Management has included such measures to provide investors with an alternative method for assessing its operating results in a manner that is focused on the performance
of its ongoing operations and excludes the impact of certain legacy items, such as asbestos adjustments. Additionally, management uses such non-GAAP financial measures
for the same purposes. However, these non-GAAP financial measures are not prepared in accordance with US GAAP, may not be reported by all of the Company’s
competitors and may not be directly comparable to similarly titted measures of the Company’s competitors due to potential differences in the exact method of calculation. For
additional information regarding the non-GAAP financial measures presented in this Management’s Analysis of Results, including a reconciliation of eachnon-GAAP financial
measure to the equivalent US GAAP measure, see the section titled “Non-US GAAP Financial Measures.” In addition, this Management’s Analysis of Results includes
financial measures and descriptions that are considered to not be in accordance with US GAAP, but which are consistent with financial measures reported by Australian
companies. Since James Hardie prepares its consolidated financial statements in accordance with US GAAP, the Company provides investors with a table and definitions
presenting cross-references between each US GAAP financial measure used in the Company’s consolidated financial statements to the equivalent non-US GAAP financial
measure used in this Management’s Analysis of Results. See the section titled “Non-US GAAP Financial Measures.”

These documents, along with an audio webcast of the Management Presentation on 18 May 2017, are available from the Investor Relations area of our website at
http://www.ir. jameshardie.com.au

NOTE TO THE READER:

As of 30 June 2016, the Company changed its reportable operating segments. Previously, the Company reported on three operating segments: (i) North America and Europe
Fiber Cement, (ii) Asia Pacific Fiber Cement, and (iii) Research and Development. As of 30 June 2016, the Company began reporting on four operating segments: (i) North
America Fiber Cement, (ii) International Fiber Cement, (iii) Other Businesses, and (iv) Research and Development. The significant changes to how certain businesses are
reported in the new segment structure are as follows: (i) our European business is now reported in the International Fiber Cement segment, along with the other businesses
that were historically reported in the Asia Pacific Fiber Cement segment; and (ii) business development, including some non-fiber cement operations, such as our windows
business in North America, are now reported in the Other Businesses segment as opposed to previously being reported in the North America and Europe Fiber Cement
segment. The Company has provided its historical segment information for the fourth quarter and full year ended 31 March 2016 to be consistent with the new reportable
segment structure. The change in reportable segments had no effect on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows for the periods presented.
Readers are referred to Note 17 of our consolidated financial statements for further information on our segments.

's Analysis of Results: James Hardie - 4™ Quarter and Full Fiscal Year 2017
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Media/Analyst Enquiries:
Jason Miele
Vice President, Investor and Media Relations

Telephone: +61 2 8845 3352
Email: media@jameshardie.com.au

Management's Analysis of Results: James Hardie — 4" Quarter and Full Fiscal Year 2017
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James Hardie Industries plc
Results for the 4th Quarter and Full Year Ended 31 March

USS$ Millions

Net sales
Cost of goods sold
Gross profit

Selling, general and administrative expenses
Research and development expenses
Asbestos adjustments

EBIT

Net interest expense

Other income (expense)

Operating profit before income taxes
Income tax expense

Net operating profit

Earnings per share - basic (US cents)
Earnings per share - diluted (US cents)

Volume (mmsf)

Net sales for the quarter and full year increased 13% and 11% from the prior
corresponding periods to US$494.3 million and US$1,921.6 million, respectively.
For both periods net sales were favorably impacted by higher sales volumes in
the North America Fiber Cement segment and higher sales volumes and a higher
average net sales price in the International Fiber Cement segment.

Gross profit of US$160.8 million for the quarter and US$674.7 million for the full
year was flat and increased 7%, respectively, when compared with the prior
corresponding periods. Gross profit margin of 32.5% for the quarter and 35.1% for
the full year decreased 4.2 percentage points and 1.5 percentage points,
respectively, when compared with the prior corresponding periods.

Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A”)of US$75.9 million for the
quarter and US$291.6 million for the full year increased 10% and 15%,
respectively, when compared with the prior corresponding periods. The increase
primarily reflects increased investment in headcount and market development
programs.

Research and development (“R&D”) expenses for the quarter and full year
were flat and increased 3% from the prior corresponding periods, primarily due to
an increase in the number of R&D projects being undertaken by the R&D team.

Three Months and Full Year Ended 31 March
Q4 FY17 Q4 FY16 Change % FY17 FY16 Change %
$ 4943 | $ 435.8 13]8% 1,921.6 | $ 1,728.2 11
(333.5) (275.7) 1) (1,246.9) (1,096.0) (14)
160.8 160.1 - 674.7 632.2 7
(75.9) (68.7) (10) (291.6) (254.2) (15)
(8.1) @8.1) - (30.3) (29.5) 3)
1.4 (27.0) 404 55
78.2 56.3 39 393.2 354.0 11
(7.2) (6.4) (13) (27.5) (25.6) %)
0.1 (1.9) 13 2.1 (38)
71.1 48.0 48 367.0 330.5 11
(26.6) (19.2) (39) (90.5) (86.1) (5)
$ 445 | $ 28.8 5518 276.5 | $ 244.4 13
10 6 62 55
10 6 62 55
704.5 630.9 12 2,702.6 2,450.1 10
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Asbestos adjustments for both the quarter and full year were favorable
compared to prior corresponding periods. For the full year, the primary driver is
the US$38.6 million favorable movement in the actuarial adjustment recorded at
year end in line with KPMGA's actuarial report and the US$1.8 million favorable
impact of the depreciating AUD/USD spot exchange rate between balance sheet
dates.

Other income (expense) for the quarter and full year reflects gains and losses
on interest rate swaps and unrealized foreign exchange gains and losses. The full
year fiscal 2016 results also include the gain on the sale of the Australian pipes
business, which was sold in the first quarter of the prior year.

Net operating profit for the quarter increased compared to the prior
corresponding period, primarily due to the favorable movement of asbestos
adjustments, partially offset by an increase in SG&A expenses. Net operating
profit for the full year increased compared to the prior corresponding period,
primarily due to an increase in the underlying performance of the operating
business units and the favorable movement of asbestos adjustments, partially
offset by an increase in SG&A expenses.
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North America Fiber Cement Segment

Operating results for the North America Fiber Cement segment were as follows:

USS$ Millions Three Months and Full Year Ended 31 March
Q4 FY17 Q4 FY16 Change FY17 FY16 Change

Volume (mmsf) 578.6 518.0 12% 2,215.4 1,969.2 13%
Average net sales price per unit (per msf) US$662 US$658 1% US$665 US$669 (1%)
Net sales 387.7 345.8 12% 1,493.4 1,335.0 12%
Gross profit (4%) 3%
Gross margin (%) (5.5 pts) (3.1 pts)
EBIT 76.1 85.4 (11%) 3439 3522 (2%)
EBIT margin (%) 19.6 24.7 (5.1 pts) 23.0 26.4 (3.4 pts)

Net sales for the quarter were favorably impacted by higher volumes. Net sales for the full year were favorably impacted by higher volumes, partially
offset by a slightly lower average net sales price. The increase in our sales volume for both the quarter and the full year, compared to the prior
corresponding periods, was driven by growth in both the repair and remodel and new construction markets and continued improvement in our
commercial execution resulting in improved market penetration.

For the full year our average net sales price decreased slightly as a result of maintaining current strategic pricing levels and the ongoing execution of
our tactical pricing strategies.

We note that there are a number of data sources that measure US housing market growth, most of which have reported mid to high single-digit
growth in recent quarters when compared to prior corresponding periods. However, at the time of filing our results for the quarter and full year ended
31 March 2017, only US Census Bureau data was available. According to the US Census Bureau, single family housing starts for the quarter were
180,600, or 6% above the prior corresponding period, and for full year ended 31 March 2017, single family housing starts were 791,100, or 6%
above the prior corresponding period.

While we have provided US Census Bureau data above, we note that this data can be different than other indices we use to measure US housing
market growth, namely the McGraw-Hill Construction Residential Starts Data (also known as Dodge), the National Association of Home Builders and
Fannie Mae.

The change in gross margin for the quarter and full year can be attributed to the following components:

For the Three Months Ended 31 March 2017:

Higher average net sales price 0.4 pts
Higher start up costs (1.5 pts)
Higher production costs (4.4 pts)
Total percentage point change in gross margin (5.5 pts)

For the Full Year Ended 31 March 2017:

Lower average net sales price (0.5 pts)
Higher start up costs (0.9 pts)
Higher production costs (1.7 pts)
Total percentage point change in gross margin (3.1 pts)

: James Hardie — 4™ Quarter and Full Fiscal Year 2017
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Gross margin for the quarter and full year decreased 5.5 percentage points and 3.1 percentage points compared to the prior corresponding periods,
respectively, primarily as a result of higher production and startup costs. The higher production costs resulted from unfavorable plant performance
and higher freight costs. Plant performance was unfavorable for both the quarter and full year as a result of elevated spend and production
inefficiencies. The higher startup costs were due to the acceleration of certain capacity projects, combined with inefficient startup programs.

The increase in SG&A expense for the quarter and full year was driven by an increase in our headcount in an effort to build and align organizational
capability with our anticipated growth, as well as, increased spending on our market development programs. As a percentage of sales, SG&A
decreased by 0.3 percentage points and increased by 0.4 percentage points for the quarter and full year, respectively, when compared to prior
periods. The decrease in SG&A as a percentage of sales during the quarter reflects the timing of headcount additions made late in fiscal year 2016,
and the continued growth of net sales.

EBIT for the quarter decreased 11%, driven by a 4% decrease in gross profit and a 9% increase in SG&A. EBIT for the full year decreased 2%,
driven by a 15% increase in SG&A, offset by a 3% increase in gross profit.

EBIT margin for the quarter and full year decreased 5.1 percentage points and 3.4 percentage points to 19.6% and 23.0%, respectively, when
compared to the prior corresponding periods, driven primarily by the increase in production costs, as described above.

International Fiber Cement Segment

The International Fiber Cement Segment is comprised of the following businesses: (i) Australia Fiber Cement, (ii) New Zealand Fiber Cement,
(iii) Philippines Fiber Cement, and (iv) Europe Fiber Cement.

Operating results for the International Fiber Cement segment in US dollars were as follows:

USS$ Millions Three Months and Full Year Ended 31 March
Q4 FY17 Q4 FY16 Change % FY17 FY16 Change %

Volume (mmsf) 125.9 112.9 12% 487.2 480.9 1%
Volume (mmsf) excluding? 125.9 112.9 12% 487.2 471.1 3%
Average net sales price per unit (per msf) US$757 US$706 7% US$775 US$729 6%
Average net sales price per unit (per msf)1 US$757 US$706 7% US$775 US$734 6%
Net Sales 102.8 86.9 18% 411.8 379.4 9%
Gross Profit 25% 21%
Gross Margin (%) 1.9 pts 3.9 pts
EBIT 23.6 19.5 21% 95.1 719 22%
EBIT excluding2 23.6 19.5 21% 95.1 78.4 21%
EBIT Margin (%) 23.0 224 0.6 pts 23.1 205 2.6 pts
EBIT Margin excluding (%)2 23.0 22.4 0.6 pts 23.1 20.7 2.4 pts

1 Excludes Australian Pipes business sold in the first quarter of fiscal year 2016
2 Excludes New Zealand weathertightness claims
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Volume for the quarter increased 12%, primarily driven by volume growth in our Australian, New Zealand and European businesses.

Net sales for the quarter increased 18% compared to the prior corresponding period, primarily due to higher volume and higher average net sales
price. Average net sales price in US dollars was primarily driven by favorable product and geographic mix, and the effects of our annual price
increase across the businesses.

Volume for the full year increased 1% compared to the prior corresponding period, primarily driven by volume growth in our Australian, New Zealand
and European businesses, partially offset by the sale of the Australian Pipes business at the end of the first quarter of fiscal year 2016 and lower
volumes in the Philippines. Excluding the Australian Pipes business, volume increased 3%, attributable to higher volumes in Australia, New Zealand
and Europe, partially offset by lower volume in the Philippines due to the penetration of competitor imports within the Philippines market.

Net sales for the full year increased 9% compared to the prior corresponding period, and 10% excluding Australian Pipes. The increase in net sales
excluding Australian Pipes was primarily driven by the Australian and New Zealand businesses which had a higher average net sales price along
with higher volumes. Average net sales price in US dollars was primarily driven by favorable product and geographic mix, and the effects of our
annual price increase across the businesses.

The change in gross margin for the quarter and full year can be attributed to the following components:

For the Three Months Ended 31 March 2017:

Higher average net sales price and mix 0.7 pts
Lower production costs __12pts
Total percentage point change in gross margin __19pts
For the Full Year Ended 31 March 2017:

Higher average net sales price and mix 1.7 pts
Lower production costs __22pts
Total percentage point change in gross margin __39pts

For the quarter and full year, production costs for the segment were favorable primarily due to the lack of Carole Park start-up costs in the current
period compared to the prior corresponding period and favorable plant performance, partially offset by higher freight and fixed costs.

EBIT for the quarter and full year increased by 21% and 22%, respectively, when compared to the prior corresponding period, to US$23.6 million
and US$95.1 million, respectively, due to the increase in gross profit described above, partially offset by higher SG&A expenses. The increase in
SG&A was driven by an increase in headcount in an effort to build and align organizational capability with anticipated demand growth, as well as,
increased spending on our market development programs.
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Country Analysis

Australia

Net sales for the quarter and full year increased primarily due to higher average net sales price and increased volume. The key drivers of net sales
growth were favorable conditions in our addressable markets and market penetration, combined with the favorable impact of our price increase and
favorable product mix.

For the quarter and full year, production costs were lower, driven by lower start-up costs in the current periods compared to the prior corresponding
periods associated with our new Carole Park sheet machine, favorable plant performance and lower input costs, partially offset by higher freight and
fixed costs.

EBIT for the quarter and full year increased by 23% and 31%, respectively, compared to the prior corresponding periods, driven by improved gross
profit, partially offset by higher SG&A expenses related to marketing and employee costs.

According to Australian Bureau of Statistics data, approvals for detached houses, which are a key driver of the Australian business’ sales volume,
were 25,868 for the quarter, a decrease of 5%, when compared to the prior corresponding quarter. For the full year, approvals for detached houses
were 115,838, a decrease of 3% compared to the prior corresponding period. The other key driver of our sales volume is the alterations and
additions market, which increased 12% for the three months ended 31 March 2017 when compared to the prior corresponding period. For the full
year ended 31 March 2017, the alterations and additions market increased 4% compared to the prior corresponding period.

New Zealand

Net sales for the quarter and full year increased from the prior corresponding periods primarily due to a higher average net sales price due to our
price increase and higher sales volumes from addressable markets. EBIT for the quarter and full year increased compared to the prior
corresponding periods driven by improved net sales.

Philippines

Volume for the quarter and full year increased 2% and decreased 9%, respectively, compared to the prior corresponding periods. While recent
periods have shown an increase in volume the change in the overall competitive landscape is expected to remain for some time. EBIT for the quarter
was lower compared to the prior corresponding period due to lower average net sales price due to customer promotional programs, higher freight
and SG&A expenses, partially offset by favorable plant performance. EBIT for the full year was lower compared to the prior corresponding period
due to lower sales volume driven by the entrance of competitor imports, combined with higher SG&A expenses related to marketing and
employment costs, partially offset by favorable plant performance.

Europe
For both the quarter and full year, volume and EBIT increased when compared to the prior corresponding period.
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Other Businesses Segment

Three Months and Full Year Ended 31 March
US$ Millions Q4FY17 | Q4FY16 | Change %| FY17 FY16 Change %
Net sales 3.8 3.1 23% 16.4 13.8 19%
Gross profit NM 47%
Gross profit margin (%) (48.1)pts 11.9 pts
EBIT (2.0) (2.4) 17% (6.7) (8.6) 22%

We continue to invest in business development opportunities aligned with our long term strategy and continue to incur losses in our Other
Businesses segment. EBIT loss for the quarter and full year improved 17% and 22%, to a loss of US$2.0 million and US$6.7 million, respectively,
when compared to the prior corresponding period. For the full year, the increase in EBIT was driven by increased sales volume, favorable product
mix, favorable plant performance and lower SG&A expenses.

Research and Development Segment

We record R&D expenses depending on whether they are core R&D projects that are designed to benefit all business units, which are recorded in
our R&D segment; or commercialization projects for the benefit of a particular business unit, which are recorded in the individual business unit's
segment results. The table below details the expenses of our R&D segment:

USS$ Millions Three Months and Full Year Ended 31 March

Q4 FY17 [ Q4FY16 | Change % FY17 FY16 Change %
Segment R&D expenses $ ©6.1)|$ (5.8) 3)|s @26|3$ @17 “)
Segment R&D SG&A expenses (1.1) (0.6) (83) (2.9) (2.2) (32)
Total R&D EBIT $ (7.2)] $ (6.4) (318 (2558  (23.9 (7)

The change in segment R&D expenses for the quarter and full year compared to the prior corresponding periods is a result of the number of core
R&D projects being undertaken by the R&D team. The expense will fluctuate period to period depending on the nature and number of core R&D
projects being worked on and the AUD/USD exchange rates during the period.

Other R&D expenses associated with commercialization projects in business units are recorded in the results of the respective business unit
segment. Other R&D expenses associated with commercialization projects were US$2.0 million for the quarter and US$7.7 million for the full year,
compared to US$2.3 million and US$7.8 million for the prior corresponding periods.
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@'James Hardie

General Corporate

Results for General Corporate for the quarter and full year ended 31 March were as follows:

USS Millions Three Months and Full Year Ended 31 March
Q4 FY17 Q4 FY16 Change % FY17 FY16 Change %
General Corporate SG&A expenses $ (13.4)| $ (12.4) ®]s (52.5) $ (47.4) (11)
Asbestos:
Asbestos Adjustments 14 (27.0) 40.4 5.5
AICF SG&A Expensest (0.3) (0.4) 25 (1.5) (1.7) 12
General Corporate EBIT $ (12.3)| $ (39.8) 69 |$ (13.6)| $ (43.6) 69

1 Relates to non-claims related operating costs incurred by AICF, w hich w e consolidate into our financial results due to our pecuniary and contractual interests in AICF. Readers are referred to Notes 2 and 11 of our 31 March 2017
Consolidated Financial Statements for further information on the Asbestos Adjustments.

For the quarter, General Corporate SG&A expenses increased US$1.0 million, primarily due to higher discretionary spending and higher employee
costs, partially offset by lower stock compensation expense. For the full year, General Corporate SG&A expenses increased US$5.1 million,
primarily due to higher employee costs and higher discretionary spending, partially offset by favorable movements in recognized foreign exchange
gains.

Asbestos adjustments for both periods reflect a change in the actuarial estimate of the asbestos liability, insurance receivables, AICF claims
handling costs and the foreign exchange translation impact of the Australian denominated asbestos related assets and liabilities being recorded on
our consolidated balance sheet in US dollars at the reporting date for each respective period.

The AUD/USD spot exchange rates are shown in the table below:

FY17 FY16
31 March 2016 0.7657 31 March 2015 0.7636
31 March 2017 0.7644 31 March 2016 0.7657
Change (3) (0.0013)|  Change ($) 0.0021
Change (%) - Change (%) -

For fiscal years 2017 and 2016, the asbestos adjustments recorded by the Company were made up of the following components:

Full Year ended 31 March
USS$ Millions FY17 FY16
Change in actuarial estimate $ 386 $ 8.1
Effect of foreign exchange rate movements 1.8 (2.6)
Asbestos adjustments $ 404 | $ 5.5
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Per the KPMGA actuarial report, the undiscounted and uninflated central estimate net of insurance recoveries decreased to A$1.386 billion at
31 March 2017 from A$1.434 billion at 31 March 2016. The change in the undiscounted and uninflated central estimate of A$48.0 million or 3% is
primarily due to lower average claims sizes and lower average defense legal cost assumptions for most disease types and a reduction in the
assumed number of large mesothelioma claims. This was partially offset by lower future insurance recoveries as a result of a commutation
agreement entered into by AICF during fiscal year 2017, in which cash of A$105.0 million was received in exchange for the discharge of certain
insurance receivables.

During fiscal year 2017, mesothelioma claims reporting activity was below actuarial expectations for the second consecutive year. One of the more
significant assumptions is the estimated peak period of mesothelioma disease claims, which is currently assumed to have occurred in the period
2014/2015 to 2016/2017. As the actual experience in fiscal year 2017 was favorable to expectations, no change to the assumed number of future
mesothelioma claims is warranted at this time. However, potential variation in the estimated peak period of claims has an impact much greater than
the other assumptions used to derive the discounted central estimate. In performing the sensitivity assessment of the estimated period of peak
claims reporting for mesothelioma, if the peak claims reporting period was shifted two years from the currently assumed 2016/2017 (i.e. assuming
that claim reporting begins to reduce after 2018/2019), together with increased claims reporting from 2026/2027 onwards, relative to current
actuarial projections, the central estimate could increase by approximately 34% on a discounted basis.

At 31 March 2017, KPMGA has formed the view that, although there has been favorable claims reporting in fiscal year 2017, no change to the
assumed number of future mesothelioma claims is warranted at this time. However, changes to the valuation assumptions may be necessary in
future periods should mesothelioma claims reporting escalate or decline.

Asbestos gross cashflow expenditure of A$125.0 million for fiscal year 2017 were lower than the actuarial expectation of A$168.0 million, primarily
as a result of favorable average claim settlement sizes, together with the favorable large claims experience in the year.

Readers are referred to Notes 2 and 11 of our 31 March 2017 consolidated financial statements for further information on asbestos adjustments.
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The table below summarizes EBIT results as discussed above:

Three Months and Full Year Ended 31 March

USS$ Millions
Q4 FY17 Q4FY16 Change % FY17 FY16 Change %
North America Fiber Cement $ 76.1 | $ 85.4 anjgs 3439 | $ 35222 ?2)
International Fiber Cementt 23.6 19.5 21 95.1 78.4 21
Other Businesses (2.0) 2.4) 17 6.7) (8.6) 22
Research and Development (7.2) (6.4) (13) (25.5) (23.9) (@)
General Corporate2 (13.4) (12.4) (8) (52.5) (47.4) (11)
Adjusted EBIT 77.1 83.7 8 354.3 350.7 1
Asbestos:
Asbestos adjustments 1.4 (27.0) 40.4 5.5
AICF SG&A expenses (0.3) (0.4) 25 (1.5) (1.7) 12
New Zealand weathertightness claims - - - (0.5)
EBIT $ 782 | $ 56.3 3918 3932 | § 354.0 11
1 Excludes New Zealand weathertightness claims
2 Excludes Asbestos-related expenses and adjustments
Net Interest Expense
USS Millions Three Months and Full Year Ended 31 March
Q4 FY17 Q4 FY16 Change % FY17 FY16 Change %

Gross interest expense $ (7.5 $ (6.5) 1s)] s (28.9)| § (27.0) (7

Capitalized Interest 0.4 0.7 (43) 2.0 32 (33)

Interest income 0.2 0.1 0.5 0.4 25

Realized loss on interest rate swaps - (0.5) - (1.9)

Net AICF interest expense (0.3) (0.2) (50) (1.1) (0.3)

Net interest expense $ (7.2)] $ (6.4) 13| s 27.5)] $ (25.6) (7)

Gross interest expense for the quarter increased US$1.0 million when compared to the prior corresponding period, primarily due to the higher
outstanding balance of our senior unsecured notes. Gross interest expense for the full year increased US$1.9 million when compared to the prior
corresponding period, primarily due to the higher outstanding balance of our senior unsecured notes, partially offset by a reduction in the total cost
of funding charged under our unsecured revolving credit facility in the current period when compared to the percentage charged under the bilateral
credit facilities in the prior corresponding periods. For the full year, net AICF interest expense increased by US$0.8 million when compared to the
prior corresponding period, due to an increase in the average balance of AICF’s borrowing under its loan facility with the New South Wales

Government.
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Other Income

During the quarter, other income increased from a US$1.9 million loss in the prior corresponding period to a US$0.1 million gain. The US$2.0 million
favorable change in other income compared to prior period is driven by a favorable movement on our interest rate swaps of US$1.6 million and a
favorable movement in our net foreign exchange forward contracts of US$0.4 million.

For the full year, other income decreased from US$2.1 million in the prior corresponding period to US$1.3 million. The US$0.8 million unfavorable
change in other income compared to prior corresponding period is primarily due to the non-recurring US$1.7 million gain on the sale of the
Australian Pipes business in the first quarter of fiscal 2016 and the unfavorable movement of US$1.0 million in our net foreign exchange forward
contracts, partially offset by a favorable movement of US$1.9 million in our interest rate swaps.

Income Tax
Three Months and Full Year Ended 31 March
Q4 FY17 Q4 FY16 FY17 FY16
Income tax expense (US$ Millions) (26.6) (19.2) (90.5) (86.1)
Effective tax rate (%) 37.4 40.0 24.7 26.1
Adjusted income tax expenset (US$ Millions) (15.7) 17.7) (80.6) (84.6)
Adjusted effective tax rate1 (%) 22.3 23.4 24.5 25.8

1 Adjusted income tax expense represents income tax on net operating profit excluding asbestos adjustments, New Zealand w eathertightness and other tax adjustments

Total income tax expense for the quarter and full year increased by US$7.4 million and US$4.4 million, respectively, when compared to the prior
corresponding periods. The increase was primarily due to a favorable movement in asbestos adjustments, partially offset by a decrease in the
effective tax rate. The decrease in the effective tax rate was driven by a lower proportion of taxable earnings in jurisdictions with higher tax rates, in
particular the USA.

Total Adjusted income tax expense for the quarter and full year decreased by US$2.0 million and US$4.0 million, respectively, when compared to
the prior corresponding periods. The decrease in the quarter was primarily due to a decrease in Adjusted operating profit before income taxes, and
the decrease in the full year was primarily due to the decrease in the adjusted effective tax rate due to a lower proportion of taxable earnings in
jurisdictions with higher tax rates, in particular the USA.

Readers are referred to Note 14 of our 31 March 2017 consolidated financial statements for further information related to income tax.
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Net Operating Profit

@'James Hardie

US$ Millions

EBIT

Net interest expense
Other income (expense)
Income tax expense
Net operating profit

Excluding:
Asbestos:
Asbestos adjustments
AICF SG&A expenses
AICF interest expense, net
Asbestos and other tax adjustments
New Zealand weathertightness claims
Adjusted net operating profit

Adjusted diluted earnings per share (US cents)

Three Months and Full Year Ended 31 March
Q4 FY17 Q4 FY16 Change % FY17 FY16 Change %
$ 78.2 $ 56.3 39 $ 393.2 $ 354.0 11
(7.2) (6.4) (13) (27.5) (25.6) (@)
0.1 (1.9) 1.3 2.1 (38)
(26.6) (19.2) (39) (90.5) (86.1) (5)
44.5 28.8 55 276.5 244.4 13
(1.4) 27.0 (40.4) (5.5)
0.3 0.4 (25) 1.5 1.7 (12)
0.3 0.2 50 1.1 0.3
10.9 1.5 9.9 1.5
- - - 0.5
54.6 57.9 (6) 248.6 242.9 2
12 13 56 54

Adjusted net operating profit of US$54.6 million for the quarter decreased US$3.3 million, or 6%, compared to the prior corresponding period,
primarily due to the underlying performance of the operating business units, as reflected in the US$6.6 million decrease in Adjusted EBIT, partially

offset by a decrease in Adjusted income tax expense of US$2.0 million.

Adjusted net operating profit of US$248.6 million for the full year increased US$5.7 million, or 2%, compared to the prior corresponding period,
primarily due to a decrease in Adjusted income tax expense of US$4.0 million and an increase in the underlying performance of the operating
business units as reflected in the US$3.6 million increase in Adjusted EBIT, partially offset by an increase in Net interest expense of US$1.9 million.

Analysis of Results: James Hardie - 4™ Quarter and Full Fiscal Year 2017




OTHER INFORMATION @'James Hardie

Cash Flow

Operating Activities

Cash provided by operating activities increased US$31.7 million to US$292.1 million for the full year ended 31 March 2017. The increase in cash
provided by operating activities was primarily driven by a favorable change in working capital of US$42.1 million and a US$23.3 million increase in
net income adjusted for non-cash items, partially offset by a higher payment to AICF of US$28.3 million. The favorable change in working capital
was primarily due to normal variations in accounts payable and accounts receivable as the result of the timing of collections and payments between
periods, partially offset by an unfavorable change in inventories. Inventories on hand in the International Fiber Cement Segment have increased to
meet anticipated demand.

Investing Activities

Cash used in investing activities increased US$42.4 million to US$109.0 million for the full year ended 31 March 2017. The change in net cash used
in investing activities was primarily driven by the increase in the purchase of property, plant and equipment of US$28.7 million compared to the prior
corresponding period, and the US$10.4 million in proceeds from the sale of the Blandon facility and the Australian Pipes business in the prior year,
compared to nil in the current year.

Financing Activities

Cash used in financing activities increased US$58.3 million to US$212.7 million for the full year ended 31 March 2017. The increase in cash used in
financing activities was primarily driven by a US$77.5 million increase in the repurchase of shares of common stock under the share buyback
program, and a US$52.7 million decrease in net proceeds from borrowings and notes. This was partially offset by a US$69.7 million decrease in
dividends paid compared to the prior corresponding period.
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Capacity Expansion

We continually evaluate the capacity required to service the US housing market, and as a result, to ensure we meet demand and achieve our market
penetration objectives, we have accelerated the start-up and commissioning of several lines across our US network. During the current fiscal year
we:

e Continued to start-up both sheet machines at our Fontana facility;

e Commissioned the 3rd sheet machine at our Plant City facility and began work to recommission a 4 th sheet machine at that facility, on track
for early fiscal year 2018;

e Commissioned the 3rd sheet machine at our Cleburne facility which continues to start up as planned;

e Continued work to restart our Summerville facility which is on track to be commissioned in early fiscal year 2018; and

e Began the planning and design of a greenfield expansion project on land adjacent to our existing Tacoma facility, which is expected to be
commissioned in the second half of fiscal year 2019.

In our International Fiber Cement segment, we are adding additional capacity in the Philippines with an estimated total cost of PHP550 million
(equivalent to US$11.0 million utilizing the exchange rate on 31 March 2017) expected to be completed in the first half of fiscal year 2018.

Liquidity and Capital Allocation

Our cash position decreased from US$107.1 million at 31 March 2016 to US$78.9 million at 31 March 2017.

At 31 March 2017, the Company held two forms of debt; an unsecured revolving credit facility and senior unsecured notes. The effective weighted
average interest rate on the Company’s total debt was 4.8% and 4.5% at 31 March 2017 and 2016, respectively. The weighted average term of all
debt, including undrawn facilities, was 4.7 years and 5.6 years at 31 March 2017 and 2016, respectively.

At 31 March 2017, the Company had US$500.0 million available in an unsecured revolving credit facility. At 31 March 2017, a total of
US$175.0 million was drawn from the unsecured revolving facility, compared to US$190.0 million at 31 March 2016. The unsecured revolving facility
expires in December 2020 and the size of the facility may be increased by up to US$250.0 million.

Based on our existing cash balances, together with anticipated operating cash flows arising during the year and unutilized committed credit facilities,
we anticipate that we will have sufficient funds to meet our planned working capital and other expected cash requirements for the next twelve
months.

We have historically met our working capital needs and capital expenditure requirements from a combination of cash flow from operations and credit
facilities. Seasonal fluctuations in working capital generally have not had a significant impact on our short or long term liquidity.
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The following table summarizes the dividends declared or paid in respect of fiscal years 2015, 2016 and 2017:

USS$ Millions Usig::;:;/ U:i;rl:)l::l Anno;l)l;::ment Record Date Payment Date
FY 2017 second half dividend 0.28 123.4 18 May 2017 8 June 2017 4 August 2017
FY 2017 first half dividend 0.10 46.6 17 November 2016 21 December 2016 24 February 2017
FY 2016 second half dividend 0.29 130.2 19 May 2016 9 June 2016 5 August 2016
FY 2016 first half dividend 0.09 39.7 19 November 2015 23 December 2015 26 February 2016
FY 2015 special dividend 0.22 92.8 21 May 2015 11 June 2015 7 August 2015
FY 2015 second half dividend 0.27 114.0 21 May 2015 11 June 2015 7 August 2015
FY 2015 first half dividend 0.08 34.2 19 November 2014 23 December 2014 27 February 2015
FY 2014 special dividend 0.20 89.0 22 May 2014 12 June 2014 8 August 2014
FY 2014 second half dividend 0.32 1423 22 May 2014 12 June 2014 8 August 2014
125 year anniversary special dividend 0.28 124.6 28 February 2014 21 March 2014 30 May 2014

Share Buyback

On 19 May 2016, the Company announced a new share buyback program (the “fiscal 2017 program”) to acquire up to US$100.0 million of its issued
capital in the twelve months through May 2017. Under this program, the Company repurchased and cancelled 6,090,133 shares of its common
stock during the second quarter of fiscal year 2017. The aggregate cost of the shares repurchased and cancelled was A$131.4 million (US$99.8
million), at an average market price of A$21.58 (US$16.40).

We will continue to review our capital structure and capital allocation objectives and expect the following prioritization to remain:

invest in R&D and capacity expansion to support organic growth;

provide ordinary dividend payments within the payout ratio of 50-70% of net operating profit, excluding asbestos;
maintain flexibility for accretive and strategic inorganic growth and/or flexibility to manage through market cycles; and
consider other shareholder returns when appropriate.
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Claims Data

Claims received

Actuarial estimate for the period
Difference in claims received to actuarial estimate

Average claim settlement1 (A$)

Actuarial estimate for the period2
Difference in claims paid to actuarial estimate

1 Average claim settlement is derived as the total amount paid divided by the number ofion-nil claim settlements

Three Months and Full Year Ended 31 March

Q4 FY17 Q4 FY16 Change % FY17 FY16 Change %
129 122 (6) 557 571 3
156 164 5 625 658 5
27 y) (36) 63 31 (16)
258,000 287,000 10 224,000 248,000 10
327,000 302,000 (8) 327,000 302,000 (8)
69,000 15,000 103,000 54,000 91

2 This actuarial estimate is a function of the assumed experience by disease type and and the relative mix of settlements assumed by disease type. Any variances in the assumed mix of settlements by disease type w ill have an impact on the average claim

settlement experience

For the quarter and full year ended 31 March 2017, we noted the following related to asbestos-related claims:

Claims received during the current quarter and full year were 17% and 11% below actuarial estimates, respectively;

Claims received during the current quarter and full year were 6% higher and 3% lower than prior corresponding periods, respectively;
Mesothelioma claims reported for the full year were 7% below actuarial expectations and were 6% below the prior corresponding period;
The average claim settlement for both the quarter and full year was lower by 21% and 31%, respectively, versus actuarial estimates;
Average claim settlement sizes were lower for most disease types, including for mesothelioma and asbestosis, compared to actuarial
expectations for fiscal year 2017; and

e The decrease in average claim settlement for the full year versus actuarial estimates was largely attributable to lower average claim sizes
for non-large mesothelioma claims together with a lower number of large mesothelioma claims being settled compared to the prior

corresponding period.

AICF Funding

On 1 July 2016, we made a payment of A$120.7 million (US$91.1 million) to AICF, representing 35% of our free cash flow for fiscal year 2016. Free
cash flow, as defined in the AFFA, was equivalent to our fiscal year 2016 operating cash flows of US$260.4 million.

We anticipate that we will make a contribution of approximately US$102.2 million to AICF on 3 July 2017. This amount represents 35% of our free

cash flow for fiscal year 2017, as defined by the AFFA.

From the time AICF was established in February 2007 through 18 May 2017, we have contributed approximately A$919.9 million to the fund.

Readers are referred to Notes 2 and 11 of our 31 March 2017 consolidated financial statements for further information on asbestos.
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Non-financial Terms

AFFA — Amended and Restated Final Funding Agreement

AICF — Asbestos Injuries Compensation Fund Ltd

Legacy New Zealand weathertightness claims (“New Zealand weathertightness claims”) — Expenses arising from defending and resolving
claims in New Zealand that allege poor building design, inadequate certification review and compliance certification and deficient work by

sub-contractors.
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Financial Measures — US GAAP equivalents

This document contains financial statement line item descriptions that are considered to be non-US GAAP, but are consistent with those used by
Australian companies. Because we prepare our consolidated financial statements under US GAAP, the following table cross-references each
non-US GAAP line item description, as used in Management's Analysis of Results and Media Release, to the equivalent US GAAP financial
statement line item description used in our consolidated financial statements:

Management’s Analysis of Results and Media Release Consolidated Statements of Operations and Other Comprehensive

Income (Loss) (US GAAP)
Net sales Net sales
Cost of goods sold Cost of goods sold

Gross profit

Selling, general and administrative expenses
Research and development expenses
Asbestos adjustments

EBIT*

Net interest income (expense)*
Other income (expense)
Operating profit (loss) before income taxes*

Income tax (expense) benefit

Net operating profit (loss)*

Gross profit

Selling, general and administrative expenses
Research and development expenses
Asbestos adjustments

Operating income (loss)

Sum of interest expense and interest income
Other income (expense)
Income (loss) before income taxes

Income tax (expense) benefit

Net income (loss)

*- Represents non-US GAAP descriptions used by Australian companies.

EBIT — Earnings before interest and tax.
EBIT margin — EBIT margin is defined as EBIT as a percentage of net sales.

Sales Volume
mmsf — million square feet, where a square foot is defined as a standard square foot of 5/16” thickness.

msf — thousand square feet, where a square foot is defined as a standard square foot of 5/16” thickness.
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NON-US GAAP FINANCIAL TERMS [@3) sames Hardie

This Management’s Analysis of Results includes certain financial information to supplement the Company’s consolidated financial statements which
are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“US GAAP”). These financial measures are
designed to provide investors with an alternative method for assessing our performance from on-going operations, capital efficiency and profit
generation. Management uses these financial measure for the same purposes. These financial measures include:

+ Adjusted EBIT;

»  Adjusted EBIT margin;

+ Adjusted net operating profit;

» Adjusted diluted earnings per share;

+  Adjusted operating profit before income taxes;

» Adjusted income tax expense;

+ Adjusted effective tax rate;

» Adjusted EBITDA;

+ Adjusted selling, general and administrative expenses (“Adjusted SG&A”); and
*  Adjusted return on capital employed (“Adjusted ROCE”)

These financial measures are or may be non-US GAAP financial measures as defined in the rules of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
and may exclude or include amounts that are included or excluded, as applicable, in the calculation of the most directly comparable financial
measures calculated in accordance with US GAAP. These financial measures are not meant to be considered in isolation or as a substitute for
comparable US GAAP financial measures and should be read only in conjunction with the Company’s consolidated financial statements prepared in
accordance with US GAAP. In evaluating these financial measures, investors should note that other companies reporting or describing similarly titled
financial measures may calculate them differently and investors should exercise caution in comparing the Company’s financial measures to similar
titted measures by other companies.
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Financial Measures — US GAAP equivalents

Adjusted EBIT

US$ Millions Three Months and Full Year Ended 31 March
Q4 FY17 Q4 FY16 FY17 FY16
EBIT $ 78.2 $ 56.3 $ 393.2 $ 354.0
Asbestos:
Asbestos adjustments (1.4) 27.0 (40.4) (5.5)
AICF SG&A expenses 0.3 0.4 1.5 1.7
New Zealand weathertightness claims - - - 0.5
Adjusted EBIT $ 771 $ 83.7 $ 354.3 $ 350.7
Net sales 494.3 435.8 1,921.6 1,728.2
Adjusted EBIT margin 15.6% 19.2% 18.4% 20.3%
Adjusted Net Operating Profit
USS$ Millions Three Months and Full Year Ended 31 March
Q4 FY17 Q4 FY16 FY17 FY16
Net operating profit $ 4451 $ 2881 $ 2765 | $ 244.4
Asbestos:
Asbestos adjustments (1.4) 27.0 (40.4) (5.5)
AICF SG&A expenses 0.3 0.4 1.5 1.7
AICF interest expense, net 0.3 0.2 1.1 0.3
New Zealand weathertightness claims - - - 0.5
Asbestos and other tax adjustments 10.9 1.5 9.9 1.5
Adjusted net operating profit $ 5461 $ 5791 $ 248.6 | $ 242.9
Adjusted diluted earnings per share
Three Months and Full Year Ended 31 March
Q4 FY17 Q4 FY16 FY17 FY16
Adjusted net operating profit (US$ millions) $ 546 $ 5791 $ 2486 | $ 2429
Weighted average common shares outstanding - Diluted (millions) 441.4 447.1 443.9 447.2
Adjusted diluted earnings per share (US cents) 12 13 56 54

is of Results: James Hardie - 4" Quarter and Full Fiscal Year 2017




JS ( INANCIAL MEASURES

@'James Hardie

Adjusted effective tax rate

USS$ Millions

Operating profit before income taxes
Asbestos:
Asbestos adjustments
AICF SG&A expenses
AICF interest expense, net
New Zealand weathertightness claims
Adjusted operating profit before income taxes

Income tax expense

Asbestos and other tax adjustments
Adjusted income tax expense
Effective tax rate

Adjusted effective tax rate

Adjusted EBITDA

USS$ Millions

EBIT
Depreciation and amortization
Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted selling, general and administrative expenses (“Adjusted SG&A”)

Three Months and Full Year Ended 31 March

USS$ Millions

SG&A expenses

Excluding:
New Zealand weathertightness claims
AICF SG&A expenses

Adjusted SG&A expenses
Net sales

SG&A expenses as a percentage of net sales

Adjusted SG&A expenses as a percentage of net sales

Q4 FY17 Q4 FY16 FY17 FY16
$ 71.1 $ 48.0 $ 367.0 $ 330.5
(1.4) 27.0 (40.4) (5.5)
0.3 0.4 1.5 1.7
0.3 0.2 1.1 0.3
- - - 0.5
$ 70.3 $ 75.6 $ 329.2 $ 327.5
$ (26.6) $ (19.2) $ (90.5) $ (86.1)
10.9 1.5 9.9 1.5
$ (15.7) $ (17.7) $ (80.6) $ (84.6)
37.4% 40.0% 24.7% 26.1%
22.3% 23.4% 24.5% 25.8%
Three Months and Full Year Ended 31 March
Q4 FY17 Q4 FY16 FY17 FY16
$ 78.2 $ 56.3 $ 393.2 $ 354.0
20.7 24.7 83.2 79.8
$ 98.9 $ 81.0 $ 476.4 $ 433.8
Three Months and Full Year Ended 31 March
Q4 FY17 Q4 FY16 FY17 FY16
$ 75.9 $ 68.7 $ 291.6 $ 254.2
- - - (0.5)
(0.3) (0.4) (1.5) (1.7)
$ 75.6 $ 68.3 $ 290.1 $ 252.0
$ 494.3 $ 435.8 $ 1,921.6 $ 1,728.2
15.4% 15.8% 15.2% 14.7%
15.3% 15.7% 15.1% 14.6%
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Adjusted Return on Capital Employed (“Adjusted ROCE”)

USS$ Millions Full Year Ended 31 Marchl
FY17 FY16
Numerator
Adjusted EBIT $ 3543 | $ 350.7
Denominator
Gross capital employed (GCE) 1,107.6 1,102.7
Adjustments to GCE 50.3 40.5
Adjusted gross capital employed $ 11579 | $ 11,1432
Adjusted Return on Capital Employed 30.6% 30.7%

1 Adjusted ROCE is used to assess annual financial results and therefore is not presented for the three months ending 31 March 2017

As set forth in Note 11 of the consolidated financial statements, the net AFFA liability, while recurring, is based on periodic actuarial determinations,

claims experience and currency fluctuations. The company’s management measures its financial position, operating performance and year-over-
year changes in operating results with and without the effect of the net AFFA liability. Accordingly, management believes that the following

non-GAAP information is useful to it and investors in evaluating the company’s financial position and ongoing operating financial performance. The
following non-GAAP table should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related notes contained therein.
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James Hardie Industries plc
Supplementary Financial Information

USS$ Millions

Restricted cash and cash equivalents — Asbestos
Insurance receivable — Asbestos’

Workers compensation asset — Asbestos’
Deferred income taxes — Asbestos

Short-term debt - Asbestos

Asbestos liability’

Workers compensation liability — Asbestos®
Income taxes payable

Asbestos adjustments

Selling, general and administrative expenses
Net interest expense

Income tax expense

31 March 2017
(Unaudited)

Total Fiber
Cement —
Excluding
Asbestos Asbestos As Reported
Compensation Compensation (US GAAP)
$ -1$ 108.9( $ 108.9
- 63.8 63.8
- 433 43.3
- 356.6 356.6
$ -1$ 524($% 524
- 1,159.7 1,159.7
- 433 43.3
18.7 (16.8) 1.9
$ -1$ 404 | $ 40.4
(290.1) (1.5) (291.6)
(26.4) (1.1) (27.5)
(79.9) (10.6) (90.5)

' The amounts shown on these lines are a summation of both the current andnon-current portion of the respective

asset or liability as presented on our consolidated balance sheets
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This Management's Analysis of Results contains forward-looking statements. James Hardie Industries plc (the “company”) may from time to time make forward-looking statements in its
periodic reports filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission, on Forms 20-F and 6-K, in its annual reports to shareholders, in offering circulars, invitation memoranda
and prospectuses, in media releases and other written materials and in oral statements made by the company’s officers, directors or employees to analysts, institutional investors, existing
and potential lenders, representatives of the media and others. Statements that are not historical facts are forward-looking statements and such forward-looking statements are statements
made pursuant to the Safe Harbor Provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.

Examples of forward-looking statements include:

statements about the company’s future performance;

projections of the company’s results of operations or financial condition;

statements regarding the company’s plans, objectives or goals, including those relating to strategies, initiatives, competition, acquisitions, dispositions and/or its products;

expectations concerning the costs associated with the suspension or closure of operations at any of the company’s plants and future plans with respect to any such plants;

expectations concerning the costs associated with the significant capital expenditure projects at any of the company’s plants and future plans with respect to any such projects;
expectations regarding the extension or renewal of the company’s credit facilities including changes to terms, covenants or ratios;

expectations concerning dividend payments and share buy-backs;

statements concerning the company’s corporate and tax domiciles and structures and potential changes to them, including potential tax charges;

statements regarding tax liabilities and related audits, reviews and proceedings;

statements regarding the possible consequences and/or potential outcome of legal proceedings brought against us and the potential liabilities, if any, associated with such proceedings;
expectations about the timing and amount of contributions to AICF, a special purpose fund for the compensation of proven Australian asbestos-related personal injury and death claims;
expectations concerning the adequacy of the company’s warranty provisions and estimates for future warranty-related costs;

statements regarding the company’s ability to manage legal and regulatory matters (including but not limited to product liability, environmental, intellectual property and competition law
matters) and to resolve any such pending legal and regulatory matters within current estimates and in anticipation of certain third-party recoveries; and

statements about economic conditions, such as changes in the US economic or housing market conditions or changes in the market conditions in the Asia Pacific region, the levels of
new home construction and home renovations, unemployment levels, changes in consumer income, changes or stability in housing values, the availability of mortgages and other
financing, mortgage and other interest rates, housing affordability and supply, the levels of foreclosures and home resales, currency exchange rates, and builder and consumer
confidence.

" » o« " " o "« " »awill "« "« ”
s

Words such as “believe,” “anticipate,” “plan,” “expect,” “intend,” “target,” “estimate,” “project,” “predict,” “forecast,” “guideline,” “aim,” “will,” “should,” “likely,” “continue,” “may,” “objective,”
“outlook” and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements but are not the exclusive means of identifying such statements. Readers are cautioned not to place
undue reliance on these forward-looking statements and all such forward-looking statements are qualified in their entirety by reference to the following cautionary statements.

Forward-looking statements are based on the company’s current expectations, estimates and assumptions and because forward-looking statements address future results, events and
conditions, they, by their very nature, involve inherent risks and uncertainties, many of which are unforeseeable and beyond the company’s control. Such known and unknown risks,
uncertainties and other factors may cause actual results, performance or other achievements to differ materially from the anticipated results, performance or achievements expressed,
projected or implied by these forward-looking statements. These factors, some of which are discussed under “Risk Factors” in Section 3 of the Form 20-F filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on 18 May 2017, include, but are not limited to: all matters relating to or arising out of the prior manufacture of products that contained asbestos by current and former
company subsidiaries; required contributions to AICF, any shortfall in AICF and the effect of currency exchange rate movements on the amount recorded in the company’s financial
statements as an asbestos liability; governmental loan facility to AICF; compliance with and changes in tax laws and treatments; competition and product pricing in the markets in which the
company operates; the consequences of product failures or defects; exposure to environmental, asbestos, putative consumer class action or other legal proceedings; general economic and
market conditions; the supply and cost of raw materials; possible increases in competition and the potential that competitors could copy the company’s products; reliance on a small number
of customers; a customer’s inability to pay; compliance with and changes in environmental and health and safety laws; risks of conducting business internationally; compliance with and
changes in laws and regulations; currency exchange risks; dependence on customer preference and the concentration of the company’s customer base on large format retail customers,
distributors and dealers; dependence on residential and commercial construction markets; the effect of adverse changes in climate or weather patterns; possible inability to renew credit
facilities on terms favorable to the company, or at all; acquisition or sale of businesses and business segments; changes in the company’s key management personnel; inherent limitations
on internal controls; use of accounting estimates; and all other risks identified in the company’s reports filed with Australian, Irish and US securities regulatory agencies and exchanges (as
appropriate). The company cautions you that the foregoing list of factors is not exhaustive and that other risks and uncertainties may cause actual results to differ materially from those
referenced in the company’s forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they are made and are statements of the company’s current expectations
concerning future results, events and conditions. The company assumes no obligation to update any forward-looking statements or information except as required by law.
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CAUTIONARY NOTE ON FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Management Presentation contains forward-looking statements. James Hardie Industries ple (the “company”) may from time to time make forward-looking statements in its
periodic repors filed with or fumished 1o the Securities and Exchange Commission, on Forms 20-F and &-K, in its annual reports to shareholders, in offering circulars, invitation
memoranda and prospectuses, in media releases and other written materials and in oral stalements made by the company's officers, directors or employees 1o analysts, institutional
investors, existing and potential lenders, representatives of the media and others. Statements that are not historical facts are forward-locking statements and such forward-looking
statements are statements made pursuant to the Safe Harbor Provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995

Examples of forward-looking statements include:

. statemenis about the company’s future performance;

] projections of the company's results of operations or financial condition;

. statements regarding the company's plans, objectives or goals, including those relating to strategies, initiatives, competition, acquisitions, dispositions andlor its products;

. expectalions concerning the costs associated with the suspension or closure of operations at any of the company’s plants and future plans with respect to any such plants;

. expectafions concerning the costs associated with the significant capital expenditure projects at any of the company’s plants and future plans with respect to any such projects;

. expectations regarding the extension or renewal of the company's credit facilities including changes 1o terms, covenants of ralios;

¥ expectations concerning dividend payments and share buy-backs;

. statements conceming the company's corporate and tax domiciles and structures and potential changes to them, including potential tax charges,

. statements regarding tax liabilites and related audits, reviews and proceedings;

' statements regarding the possible consequences andlor potential outcome of legal proceedings brought against us and the potential liabilities, if any, associated with such
proceedings;

. expectations about the timing and amount of contributions to Asbestos Injuries Compensation Fund {AICF), a special purpose fund for the compensation of proven Australian
asbestos-related personal injury and death claims;

. expectations concerning the adequacy of the company's warranty provisions and estimates for fulure warranty-related costs,

] statemenis regarding the company's ability to manage legal and regulatory matters (including but not limited to preduct liability, environmental, intellectual propery and
competition law matters) and to resalve any such pending legal and regulatory matiers within current estimates and in anticipation of cerlain third-party recoveries; and

. statements about economic conditions, such as changes in the US economic or housing market conditions or changes in the market conditions in the Asia Pacific region, the
levels of new home construction and home renovations, unemployment levels, changes in consumer income, changes or stability in housing values, the availability of
morgages and other financing, mortgage and other interest rates, housing affordability and supply, the levels of foreclosures and home resales, cumency exchange rates, and
bullder and consumer confidence.
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CAUTIONARY NOTE ON FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Words such as “believe,” “anticipate,” “plan,” “expect,” “intend,” “target,” “estimate,” “project,” “predict,” forecast” “guideling,” “aim,” “will," “should,” “likely,” “continue,” “may,”
“abjective,” “outlook” and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements bul are not the exclusive means of identifying such statements. Readers ane
cautioned not lo place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements and all such forward-looking statements are qualified in their entirety by reference to the following
cautionary statements.

Forward-looking statements are based on the company's current expeclations, estimales and assumptions and because forward-kooking statements address future results, events
and conditions, they, by their very nature, involve inherent risks and uncertainties, many of which are unforeseeable and beyond the company’s control. Such known and unknown
risks, uncertainties and other factors may cause actual results, performance or other achievements to differ materially from the anticipated results, performance or achievements
expressed, projectad or implied by these forward-|looking statements. These factors, some of which are discussed under “Risk Factors® in Seclion 3 af the Form 20-F filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on 18 May 2017, include, but are not limited to: all matters relating to or arising out of the prior manufacture of products that contained
asbestos by current and former company subsidiaries; required contributions to AICF, any shortfall in AICF and the effect of currency exchange rate movements on the amount
recorded in the company’s financial statements as an asbestos lability; govemmental loan facility to AICF; compliance with and changes in tax laws and trealments; competition and
product pricing in the markets in which the company operates; the consequences of product failures or defects; exposure o environmental, asbeslos, putalive consumer class action
or aother legal proceedings: general economic and market conditions; the supply and cost of raw malerials; possible increases in competition and the potential thal competitors could
copy the company’s products; reliance on a small number of customers; a cuslomer’s inabilily to pay, compliance with and changes in enviranmental and health and safely laws;
risks of conducting business internationally; compliance with and changes in laws and regulations, currency exchange risks; dependence on customer preference and the
concentration of the company's customer base on large format retail customers, distributors and dealers; dependence on residential and commercial construction markets; the effect
of adverse changes in climate or weather patterns; possible inability to renew credit facilities on terms favorable to the company, o at all; acquisition or sale of businesses and
business segments; changes in the company's key management personnel; inherent limitations on internal contrals; use of accounting estimates; and all other risks identified in the
company's repors filed with Australian, Irsh and US securities regulatory agencies and exchanges (as appropriate). The company caulions you that the faregoing list of factors is not
exhaustive and that other risks and uncertainties may cause actual results to differ materially from those referenced in the company’s forward-looking statements. Forward-looking
statements speak only as of the date they are made and are statements of the company's current expectations concerning future resulis, events and conditions. The company
assumes no obligation to update any forward-looking statements or information except as required by law,
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NOTE TO THE READER

As of 30 June 2016, the Company changed its reportable operating segments, Previously, the Company reported on three operating segments: (i) North America
and Europe Fiber Cement, (i) Asia Pacific Fiber Cement, and (iii) Research and Development. As of 30 June 2016, the Company began reporting on four operating
segments: (i) North America Fiber Cement, (i) International Fiber Cement, (i) Other Businesses, and (iv) Research and Development. The significant changes to
how certain businesses are reported in the new segment structure are as follows: (i) our European business is now reported in the Intermational Fiber Cement
sagment, along with the other businesses that were historically reported in the Asia Pacific Fiber Cement segment, and (i) business development, including some
non-fiber cement operations, such as our windows business in North America, are now reported in the Other Businesses segment as opposed to previously being
reported in the North America and Europe Fiber Cement segment. The Company has provided its historical segment information for the fourth quarter and full year
ended 31 March 2016 and 2015 to be consistent with the new reportable segment structure. The change in reportable segments had no effect on the Company’'s

financial position, results of operations or cash flows for the periods presented. Readers are referred to Note 17 of our consolidated financial statements for further
information on our segments.

lamewsas



USE OF NON-GAAP FINANCIAL INFORMATION; AUSTRALIAN

EQUIVALENT TERMINOLOGY

This Management Presentation includes financial measures that are not considered a measure of financial performance under generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States (US GAAP). These financial measures are designed to provide investors with an alternative method for assessing our performance
from on-going operations, capital efficiency and profit generation. Management uses these financial measure for the same purposes. These financial measures
include:

' Adjusted EEIT;

. Adjusted EBIT margin;

. Adjusted net operating profit;

] Adjusted diluted earnings per share;

. Adjusted operafing profit before income taxes;

. Adjusted income tax expense;

. Adjusted effective tax rate;

. Adjusted EBITDA; and

. Adjusted selling, general and administrative expenses (“Adjusted SG&A™)

These financial measures are or may be non-US GAAP financial measures as defined in the rules of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission and may
exclude or include amounts that are included or excluded, as applicable, in the calculation of the most directly comparable financial measures calculated in
accordance with US GAAF. These non-GAAP financial measures should not be considered to be more meaningful than the equivalent US GAAP measure.
Management has included such measures to provide investors with an alternative method for assessing its operating results in a manner that is focused on the
performance of its ongoing operations and excludes the impact of certain legacy items, such as asbestos adjustments. Additionally, management uses such non-
GAAP financial measures for the same purposes, However, these non-GAAP financial measures are not prepared in accordance with US GAAP, may not be
reported by all of the Company's competitors and may not be directly comparable to similarly titted measures of the Company’'s competitors due to potential
differances in the exact method of calculation. For additional information regarding the non-GAAP financial measures presented in this Management Prasentation ,
including a reconciliation of each non-GAAP financial measure to the equivalent US GAAP measure, see the slide titled "Mon-US GAAP Financial Measures”
included in the Appendix to this Management Presentation,

In addition, this Management Presentation includes financial measures and descriptions that are considered to not be in accordance with US GAAP, but which are
consistent with financial measures reported by Australian companies, such as operating profit, EBIT and EBIT margin. Since the Company prepares its
Consolidated Financial Staterments in accordance with US GAAP, the Company provides investors with a table and definitions presenting cross-referances between
each US GAAP financial measure used in the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements to the equivalent non-US GAAP financial measure used in this
Management Presentation. See the section titled “Non-US GAAP Financial Measures™ included in the Appendix to this Management Presentation.
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« Overview and Operating Review — Louis Gries, CEO
« Financial Review — Matt Marsh, EVP and CFO

* Questions and Answers
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OVERVIEW AND OPERATING REVIEW
Louis Gries, CEO




GROUP OVERVIEW

Adjusted Net Operating Profit’ Adjusted Diluted EPS'

4th Qtr Full Year 4th Qtr Full Year
US$54.6M "v 6%| US$248.6M ' 2% US12 cents "' 8%| USS56 cents
Adjusted EBIT ? Net Operating Cash Flow

4th Qtr Full Year Full Year
US$77.1M " 8%| US$354.3M ' 1% US$292.1M
Adjusted EBIT Margin % 2

4th Qfr Full Year

15.6% lr 36pts | 184% l 1.9 pts

Higher volumes in North America Fiber Cement and International Fiber Cement segments

Higher average net sales price in International Fiber Cement segment

Full year Adjusted EBIT up 1% compared to pcp, compressed by North America capacity expansion
Full year North America Fiber Cement EBIT margin of 23.0%

Net operating cash flow increased US$31.7 million during the year compared to pcp

T Excludes Asbestos refated expenses and adjustments, New Zealand weathertightness claims and tax adjustments
2 Excludes Asbestos related expenses and adjustments, and New Zealand weathertighiness claims
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NORTH AMERICA FIBER CEMENT SUMMARY

Net Sales US$387.7TM  USS$1,493.4M « Steady growth in R&R and new construction markets
t 12% t 12% * Market penetration was strong
Sales Volume 578.6 mmsf 2,215.4 mmsf
{+]
| B | [ f—
Average Price US$662 per msf US$665 per msf
t 1% " 1% = EBIT for the year decreased compared to pcp driven by:
EBIT US$76.1M US$343.9M ] Unfavorable plant performance due to:
l 11% l 29 + Elevated spend

» Production inefficiencies
= Higher start-up costs due to:
* Acceleration of start ups into FY17
« |nefficient start-ups in some locations
= Higher freight costs
. Continued investment in headcount and other

programs to support and drive future growth
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NORTH AMERICA FIBER CEMENT

Average Net Sales Price

710 Top Line Growth'
Looo $1.600
a M e i
= A 0,500
. i " E oo si2e
] B30 = 2000 1100 =
% &0 625 616 E 1800 :;‘;W )
& an 1600 %
@ g 1400 :“:gg E
= E 1200 500 £
e E 1:;: -—J/”'—//— ::x )
o e
L 200 200
580 a (7Y
FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FYid FY15 FY16 FY17 2 = 2] -] - f 2 I~
+ Slight decrease ~1% due to maintaining current * Q4 FY17 revenue up 12% on 12% volume growth
strategic pricing levels + Full year revenue up 12% on 13% volume growth
+ Qverall, satisfied with tactical pricing and price « Continuing to outpace U.S. housing starts
positioning
+ Price increase implemented on 1 April 2017

' Rolling 12 month average of seasonally adjusted estimate of housing starts by US Census Bureau
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North America Machine Performance & Capacity

Machine Performance Current Capacity vs. Index

100% 3.7

/ a
Billion Standard Feet

i ¥y 17
80%
Frl2 FY13 FYld FY13 FYl6é Fyi7 Nameplate Capacity Current Capacity
W Active Network W ldle Capacity
+ FY16 step-change improvement in performance * Throughput at ~75% of nameplate capacity driven by
« FY17 in higher band, but lower end of range mix adjustments, gross hour utilization & performance
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North America Manufacturing Capacity

Capacity Since Housing Downturn

0.7
0.2 .
2.4 E— Font 3
. * Fontana
* Waxahachie 1 Fontana 2 - Plant City 4
* Cleburne 3
FY10 FY13 FY17 FY17
Nameplate Wax Restart Fontana Restart Start Ups Nameplate

Future capacity additions:

* FY18 brownfield additions: Summerville (190 mmsf) + Plant City 3 (100 mmsf)
* FY19 & FY20 greenfield additions: Tacoma (250 mmsf) + Alabama (500 mmsf)
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NORTH AMERICA FIBER CEMENT

Quarterly EBIT and EBIT Margin?

100 0

|

FY16 7

25

0

0
&0

50

Al

0

20

10

o
FY15

Fy12 Fy13 Frld
W EBIT = Carterly EBIT/Sales

15

EBIT USEM
EBIT Margin

10

Full year EBIT Margin % in target range, but down
340 bps to 23.0% compared to pcp

! Excludes asset impairment charges of US§14.3 millfion in Q4 FY12, USE5.8 million in Q3 FY13 and USS71.1 million in Q4 FY13
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INTERNATIONAL FIBER CEMENT SUMMARY

Net Sales Us$102.8M Us$411.8M
1 8% T o

Sales Volume 125.9 mmsf 487.2 mmsf
T 2% | R

Sales Volume 125.9 mmsf 487.2 mmsf
Excluding T 2% 1T =
Average Price US$757 per msf US$TTS5 per msf
7% I 6%

EBIT us$23.6M US$95.1M
T 2% T 2%

US$23.6M US$95.1M

EBIT Excluding® ‘l‘ 21% ‘l‘ 21%

! Excludes Australian Pipes business which was sold in Q1 FY16
2 Excludes New Zealand weathertightness claims

[i7] James Hardie

Volume
« Full year volume increased 3%, excluding Pipes business

= Volume growth in Australia, New Zealand and Europe
= Volume declined in Philippines

Price

* Increased price compared to pcp

+ Favorable product and geographic mix, and effects of
annual price increase across the businesses

EBIT

« Strong results driven by price and lower production costs
due to the absence of prior year Carole Park start-up costs

+ Partially offset by Philippines business; and

+ Higher SG&A investment across the segment relative to pcp




INTERNATIONAL FIBER CEMENT (USD)

a4'47 Full Year
Australia Australia '
* - Volume | NetSales| EBIT Volume | NetSales| EBIT
PO v | River |
- f New Zealand
Net Sales Volume | Net Sales

.
| Philippines | Philippines |

)
Volume | Net Sales EBIT Volume | Net Sales EBIT

Qd7 Full Year
Europe

Europe
Volume | NetSales EBIT

Volume | MetSales

O
e

EBIT

&)
i
m:
i

Australia
+ Solid EBIT growth for quarter and full year
+ Non-recurring start-up costs at Carcle Park

in FY16
New Zealand

* Higher average net sales price and volume
for quarter and full year

Philippines
+ Full year volume, sales and EBIT lower

» Entrance of competitor imports during the
current fiscal year

Europe

* Volume, sales and EBIT growth compared
to pep

T Excludes Australian Pipes business which was sold in Q1 FY18
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RESULTS - 4" QUARTER FY17

Net sales increased 13%
Three Months Ended 31 March
* Higher volumes in North America Fiber Cement and

US$ Millions Q417 Q4'16 % Change International Fiber Cement segments
» Higher average net sales price in International Fiber

Net sales 4943 4358 13
Cement segment
Gross profit 160.8 160.1 -
SG&A expenses (75.9) (68.7) (10} Gross gross margin % down 420 bps
EBIT 782 56.3 39 .
SG&A expenses increased 10%
Net operating : . . s o i
profit 44.5 288 95 « Continued investment in building organizational capability
: . i
Adjusted EBIT' 771 837 @  Adjusted net operating profit decreased 6%
Adjusted net - e ; * Adjusted EBIT decreased 8% compared to pcp
operating profit® ' ' ©) « North America Fiber Cement segment EBIT decreased
11% versus pcp
1 Exmﬂsmms redated expenses and adjiustments. and New Zealand weatherfighiness
2 ::I:?:ies Asbeslos relaled expenses and adusimens. New Zealand wealherfighlngss claims
and tax adjusiments
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RESULTS - FULL YEAR 2017

Net sales increased 11%

International Fiber Cement segments

US$ Millions FY17 FY16 % Change

* Higher average net sales price in International Fiber
Net sales 192186 1,728.2 11

Cement segment
Gross profit 6747 632.2 7
%, gr rgin % 1

T, 2916) (254.2) (15) Gross profit up 7%, gross margin % down 150 bps
EBIT 393.2 354.0 11 SG&A expenses increased 15%
;J::ﬁ':pemﬁ"g 276.5 244 4 13 + Continued investment in building organizational capability

Adjusted net operating profit increased 2%
Adjusted EBIT ' 354.3 350.7 1

e . Adjusted EBIT increased 1% compared to pcp

Adjusted net

B ralinG ProRE? 248.6 2429 2

1 Exciudes Ashestos relaled expenses and adjustments, and New Zealand weathertighiness claims
2 Excludes Ashestos related expenses and adiuetments, New Zealand weathertighiness claims and ftax adiustments
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CHANGES IN AUD vs. USD

AUDVUSD Exchange Rale
2

055‘?10“.'3" 15 3 Jun 15 D Sep 15 31 D 15 31 Mar 18 30 w16 30 Sep 16 31 D 16 31 Mar 17
e Fonerie Excluding Tral:ls.latmn
Impact
12 Months 12 Months 12 Months

Favorable %
US$ Millions Pt FY1B % Change FYAT % Change $
Net Sales $ 19218 § 17282 ~ 11% $ 19182 ~ 11% 34 .
Gross Profit 6747 6322 - 7% 6729 =« 7% 18 2
Adjusted EBIT 3543 350.7 =~ 1% 3530 -~ 1% 13 7

Adjusted net operating proft. = § 2486 § 2429 -~ 2% $ 2462 ~ 1% 24 =~ 1%

! As Reported 12 Months FY'17 figures converfed using 12 Months FY16 weighfed average exchange rates
? Reflects the differsnce between 12 Months FY17 As Reported and 12 Months FY17 using 12 Months FY'16 weighted average exchange rates
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NORTH AMERICA INPUT COSTS

Quarterly US Input Costs . .
1200 T 10 *» The price of NBSK pulp increased

‘s 9% compared to pcp!

+ Cement prices continue to rise, up
4% compared to pcp’

g

g £
'i 500 - s g i
z , =+ Gas prices are up 21% compared to

200 | L8 pcp!

W00 1 —= ? E  Freight market prices are up 6%

I compared to pcp’
0+ 1]

041 Q115 Q2°15 Q3°15 Q4’15 Ql'ls Q2'16 O3'16 Q4'16 Q1'17 O2°17 Q317 a4'17

Electricity prices are up 4%
T GAS =——ELECTRIC ——CEMENT ———FREIGHT {)UmpaFEd to [}Cp1

e table above is 5
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SEGMENT EBIT — 4" QUARTER and FULL YEAR FY17

North America Fiber Cement North America Fiber Cement EBIT
;:g ] 352.2 2439 * Quarter and full year EBIT decreased 11% and 2%,
a 300 200 respectively, compared to pcp
% 33 "Qd » Driven by unfavorable plant performance, increased start-
2 ::g i s i NN Lo up costs, higher freight costs; and
50 » Continued investment in SG&A expense
o

FY15 Fy16 FY17

International Fiber Cement EBIT?!

al
il L * Quarter and full year EBIT increased 21% compared to pcp

95.1

% 90.2 : * Higher average net sales price and higher volumes in
- 78.4
§ ™ Australia, New Zealand and Europe
s 60 : g G : o
- . e » Volume decrease in Philippines driven by competitive imports
“ 45 1 B Full Year
= 3 A 236 * Lower production costs largely due to absence of prior year

| 18.0 19.5

Carole Park start up

FY15 FY16 FY17

! Excludes New Zealand weathertighiness claims
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SEGMENT EBIT — 4" QUARTER and FULL YEAR FY17

Other Businesses

Other Businesses

(8.6)
g )1 ©7 « Quarter and full year EBIT loss improved by 17%
=3
= (6) 1 :
= i (4.5) and 22%, respectively, compared to pcp
w 14) o
. i = (2.0) # Full Year
o
FY15 FY16 FY17
R&D
Research and Development
(30) (26.0) 255 * On strategy to invest 2-3% of net sales
(25) 3.9) :
£ o0y + Fluctuations reflect normal variation and timing in
= " Q4
;E:s: aFuil Yaar number of R&D projects in process
> ®
a
FY15 FY16 FY17
1
o Pemsral Caporaicoosis General Corporate Costs
(600
! 52.5) A . ; G i i
g B0 1 G87 gy + Continued investment in organization capability to
S40) | a4 —
£ 30) ] R support current and future growth initiatives
2 (20)
| (13.4:
(10)
FY15 FY16 FY17 ! Excludes Asbestos related expenses and adjustmenis
[7] ames Hardie




INCOME TAX

el 2nalf | bl L - Adjusted income tax expense for the quarter and
Operating profit before taxes 7.1 480 367.0 3305 full year decreased primarily due to lower adjusted
Asbestos adjustments’ (0.8) 276 (37 .8) (35) operating profit before income taxes and a lower
NZ weathertightness claims & 5 . 0.5 adjusted effective tax rate, respectively
:.'f’lf:::@:c?n:?:‘xg:mm Al 788 e e » Income taxes are paid and payable in Ireland, the
Adjusted income tax expense” (187)  (17.7) (806)  (848) US, Canada, New Zealand and the Philippines
Adjusted effective tax rate 22.3% 23.4% 24.5% 25.8%

* Income taxes are not currently paid or payable in
R 268) (192) 190.5) (86.1) Europe (excluding Ireland) or Australia due to tax
P — 515 678 losses. Australian tax losses primarily result from

deductions relating to contributions to AICF

! Includes Asbestos adjustments, AICF SG&A expenses and net AICF interest expense (income)
? Excludes tax effects of Asbestos and other tax adjustments
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CASHFLOW

EEE R TN NS  increase in net operating cash flow
244.4 13

Net Income
Adjustment for non-cash items
Annual AICF contribution
Operating working t:aipilal1
Other net operating activities
Cash Flow from Operations
Purchases of property, plant and a»::|Li|::|'ma|"|'c2

Proceads from sale of property, plant and
equipment

Acquisition of assets
Free Cash Flow®
Dividends paid
Net proceeds from bomowings and notes®
Share related activities

Free Cash Flow after Financing Activities

Excludas AP related fo capilal expenditures
Includes capitalized interest

N

Includes debl 1ssuance cosls

[7] ames Hardie

276.5
901
{91.1)
15
151
2921
(103.9)

15.1)
183.1
(176.8)
60.6
(96.5)

(29.8)

= Increase in net income adjusted for non-cash items

84,3 @ .« Favorable changes in working capital

(B25) @9 Partially offset by increase in annual AICF contribution

el and unfavorable other net operating activities
205 (26)
260.4 12

(76.4) (38 Higher capital expenditures

10.4
10.6)
1938 ¢ Higher financing activities
(246.5) 28« Increase in share buy-back activity
1118 48) . Decrease in net proceeds of debt
LN » Partially offset by decrease in dividend payments
39.4

Distinct from the term defined by the AFFA for purposes of calculating our annual contribution fo AICF




CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

CAPEX Spend * Full year CAPEX of US$101.9 million up by 39%

50 compared to pcp
= North America capacity projects:
= Continued to start-up both sheet machines at Fontana facility
= Commissioned 3¢ sheet machine at Plant City facility; began
. to recommission 4" sheet machine, on track for early fiscal
year 2018
15
10 = Commissioned 3 sheet machine at Cleburne
’ = Continued work to restart our Summerville facility, on track to
4]

be commissioned in early fiscal year 2018
Q4 FYle Q1 F17 Q2 FYl7? Q3 FY17? Q4 FYL7

Us5 Millions
Pd
&F

B Capacity M Maintenance & Other = Greenfield expansion in Tacoma, expected to be
commissioned in second half of fiscal year 2019

* Continue to expand capacity at our Philippines facility, expected

to be completed in first half of fiscal year 2018

[7] ames Hardie



FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SUPPORTING GROWTH

Strong Financial Disciplined Capital Liquidity and Funding
Management Allocation

Slrong mﬂl’ﬂtnfl and Opﬂmll'lu Invest in R&D and capacity Conservative leveraging of

: : balance sheet within 1-2 times
expansion to support organic
b grgwth PP v adjusted EBITDA target

Strong governance and -
transparency Maintain ordinary dividends within ® US$500 million of

the defined payout ratio unsecured revolving
credit facility; US$400

million senior unsecured
notes at Q4 FY17

Investment-grade financial
management Flexibility for:

® Accretive and strategic

inorganic opportunities Weighted average
maturity of 3.7 years on

Cyclical market volatility bank facilities; 4.7 years
on total debt at Q4 FY17

Further shareholder returns e
when appropriate 65% liquidity on bank
debt at Q4 FY17

Financial management consistent with investment grade credit
Ability to withstand market cycles and other unanticipated events
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LIQUIDITY PROFILE

ron lance sh

Debt Profile Strong ba e sheet
Uss Millions « USE78.9 million cash

« US$485.6 million net debt® at 31 March 2017

= 65% liquidity on bank debt at 31 March 2017

~ Corporate debt structure

= US$500 million unsecured revolving credit
facility, with a December 2020 maturity

n held in cash

5400

= US$400 million senior unsecured notes?
Available Debt Outstanding at 31 March 2017 maturing February 2023

W Senior Notes  ® Bank Facilities T!Accordion

Leverage strategy
= 1.1x net debt to EBITDA excluding asbestos;
within the 1-2x leverage target range




ASBESTOS COMPENSATION

KEY POINTS

+  Updated actuarial report completed as at 31 March 2017
+  Undiscounted and uninflated central estimate decreased to A$1,386 million from A$1,434 million
+  Decreased A$164 million NPV of estimate to A$1,740 million, from A$1,904 million at 31 March 2016, reflecting:
« Decrease of A$166 million due to actuarial assumptions;
= Decrease of A$115 million due to payments made by AICF during the year; and
= Increase of A$117 million due to lower future insurance proceeds owing to a commutation of certain policies
+  Total contributions of US$91.1 million were made to AICF during FY2017 from our FY2016 free cash flow

*  From the time AICF was established in February 2007, we have contributed A$919.9 million to the fund

+  We anticipate we will make a further contribution of approximately US$102.2 million to AICF on 3 July 2017. This
amounts represents 35% of our free cash flow for financial year 2017, as defined by the AFFA
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ASBESTOS CLAIMS DATA

Claims Received
625

557 577
129 ;‘3 122
Q47 M7 Q416 FY1T
Actuals  Actuarial  Actuals FY17  Actuadal FY16
Estimates Actuals Estimates Actuals
Average Claim Settlement (AS)
327,000 327,000
287,000
258,000 248,000
I 224,000 I
o417 Q417 c4'16 FY17
Actuals  Actuarial  Actuals FY17  Actuarial  FY16
Estimates Actuals Estmates  Actuals

Average claim sefflement iz denved as the total amount paid divided by the aumber of non-nil claim

Quarter claims received increased by 6% and full year
claims received decreased by 3% compared to pcp

Quarter and full year claims received were 17% and
11%, below actuarial estimates, respectively

Mesothelioma claims reported during the year:
« 6% lower than pcp
= 7% lower than actuarial estimates

Average claim settlement for the quarter and full year is
21% and 31% below actuarial estimates, respectively:

- Lower average claim settlement sizes across most
disease types

- Large mesothelioma claims are lower in number
compared to pcp

= Lower average claim size for non-large mesothelioma
claims




FY2018 KEY PLANNING ASSUMPTIONS

+ The modest market growth and more prolonged recovery of the US housing market to continue into FY2018. The
single family new construction market and repair and remodel market are expected to grow similar to the year-on-
year growth experienced in fiscal year 2017

+ US Residential Housing Starts forecasted to be between 1.2 and 1.3 million
+  North America Fiber Cement Segment
= EBIT margins expected to be in our stated target range of 20% to 25%
= Expectation is based upon the Company continuing to deliver operating performance in its plants consistent

with recent quarters, and stable exchange rates and input cost trends

+ Australian business expected to trend in line with the average growth of the domestic repair and remodel and single
detached housing markets in the eastern states of Australia

+  New Zealand growth expected to continue into fiscal year 2018
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SUMMARY

Adjusted Net Operating Profit' Adjusted Diluted EPS'

4th Qtr Full Year 4th Qtr Full Year

Us$54.6M " 6%| US$248.6M ' 2% US12 cents l 8%| US56 cents t 4%
Adjusted EBIT * Net Operating Cash Flow

4th Qtr Full Year Full Year

US$77.1M \'r 8%| US$354.3M ' 1% Us$292.1M " 12%

+ The financial performance noted above largely reflects:
= Higher volumes across the North America Fiber Cement and International Fiber Cement segments
»= Compressed by North America capacity expansion

«  Other highlights include:
= 12% increase in net operating cashflow

= US$276.6 million of capital returned to shareholders

T Excludes Asbeslos related expenses and adjustments, New Zealand weathertighness claims and tax adjustments
2 Excludes Asbestos related expenses and adjustments and New Zealand weathertighiness claims

7% James Hardie
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Three Months and Full Year Ended 31 March

US$ Millions Q4'17 Q416 % Change FY17 FY16 % Change
Net Sales

North America Fiber Cement $§ 3877 $ 3458 12§ 14834 $ 1,335.0 12
International Fiber Cement 102.8 86.9 18 411.8 379.4 9
Other Businesses 3.8 3.1 23 16.4 13.8 19
Total Net Sales $ 4943 § 4358 13 § 19216 $ 1,728.2 11
EBIT

Morth America Fiber Cement ] 761 $ 85.4 (11) & 3439 § 3522 (2)
International Fiber Cement’ 23.6 19.5 21 951 784 21
Other Businesses (2.0) (2.4) 17 8.7) (8.6) 22
Research & Development (7.2) (6.4) (13) (25.5) (23.9) (M)
General Corporate” (13.4) (12.4) (8) (52.5) (47.4) (11}
Adjusted EBIT $ 771 $ 83.7 (8) $ 3543 $ 3507 1
Net interest expense excluding AICF interest expense (6.9) (6.2) (1) (26.4) (25.3) (4)
Other income (expense) 0.1 (1.9) 1.3 2.1 (38)
Adjusted income tax expense (15.7) (17.7) 11 (80.8) (84.6) 5
Adjusted net operating profit $ 546 $ 579 6) $ 2486 $ 2429 2

' Excludes Mew Zealand weatherfighiness claims
¥ Excludes Asbeslos-relaled axpenses and sdusiments
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NET POST-TAX UNFUNDED ASBESTOS LIABILITY

A% millions (except where stated)

FY17 FY16
Central Estimate - Undiscounted and Uninflated $ 1,3857 $ 1,4339
Provision for claims handling costs of AICF 294 322
Cross claims and other 18.8 18.2
Net (assets)liabilities of AICF (71.9) 455
Effect of tax (488.6) (528.3)
Net post-tax unfunded liability in A$ millions $ 8734 % 10015
Exchange rate US$ per A$1.00 0.7644 0.7657

Net post-tax unfunded liability in US$ millions $§ 6676 $ 766.8
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ASBESTOS CASH MOVEMENTS FOR FULL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH

A% millions

AICF cash and investments - 31 March 2016 $ 22.2
Contributions to AFFA by James Hardie 120.7
Insurance recoveries 122.3
Loan drawdowns 101.6
Loan repayments (99.4)
Interest expense, net (1.4)
Claims paid (120.5)
Operating costs (3.7)
Other 0.6

AICF cash and investments - 31 March 2017 $ 142.4
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UPDATED ACTUARIAL ESTIMATE

8,000 .
= W .
5,000 = e e
—— i s
i ! w=l E 1 i i
. =n "
4000 | 4s8p d6mm iiiirigi -
T A B | i i
5 4 .\E:h o af et 1% W e | i . : iauis drb 11
= k H i
E 3,000 il ""Hq__.___,.--.""_'_'.'"--,._ 19? 3525 151? Tt " 24& ! i
el w1 3 ow
k4 | R . i :
1 1 [
2000 { &4 L= ] e
1,870 1,904 0
1,685 1,694 1,740
1.000 | 153 1568 1517 1555 .o 14z 1537 1478 1,560
0

30 Jun 31 Mar 30 June 31 Mar 30 Sept 31 Mar 31 Mar 31 Mar 31 Mar 31 Mar 31 Mar 31 Mar 31 Mar 31 Mar 31 Mar 31 Mar
2004 2005 2005 2006 2006 2007 2008 2000 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

L2222 Sensilivity Range (net, undiscounted) e DiscOUNted central estimate (net) = Lndiscounted central estimate {net)
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DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

Q4'17 Q4'16 FY17 FY16

Depreciation and amortization

North America Fiber Cement % 16.3 § 164 % 643 § 61.8

International Fiber Cement 2.9 4.3 11.8 10.7

Other Businesses 0.5 0.5 22 2.0

Research and Dewelopment 0.3 0.5 1.7 1.7

General Corporate 0.7 3.0 3.2 3.6
Total depreciation and amortization $ 20.7 % 247 % 83.2 % 79.8
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DEFINITIONS AND OTHER TERMS

This Management Presentation forms part of a package of information about the company’s results. It should be read in conjunction with
the other parts of this package, including the Management's Analysis of Results, Media Release and Consolidated Financial Statements

Definitions

Non-financial Terms

AFFA - Amended and Restated Final Funding Agreement
AICF - Asbestos Injuries Compensation Fund Ltd

Legacy New Zealand weathertightness claims (“New Zealand weathertightness claims”) — Expenses arising from defending and
resolving claims in New Zealand that allege poor building design, inadequate certification review and compliance certification and
deficient work by sub-contractors
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s

AP FINANCIAL MEASURES

Financial Measures — US GAAP equivalents

This document contains financial statement line item descriptions that are considered to be non-US GAAP, but are consistent with those
used by Australian companies. Because the company prepares its Consclidated Financial Statements under US GAAP, the following
table cross-references each non-US GAAP line item description, as used in Management's Analysis of Results and Media Release, to
the equivalent US GAAP financial statement line item description used in the company's Consolidated Financial Statements:

Managemant's Analysis of Results and Genselidated Btatements of Opartions
Madia Release and Other Cemprahensive Inoema (Less)
(UB OAAF)

Net aales Net salss
Cost of goods sold Cost of goods sold

Gross proft Grass proft
Belling, general and administrative sxpenses Beliing, general and administrative mxpenses
|Ressarch and development expanass Research and devalopment expansss
Asbastos adjustments Asbastos adjustments

EBIT* Operating Incoma (loss)
Net Interast iIncome (mpense)* Bum of Intarest mpenss and ntareat incoma
Othar Incoms (mpansa) Othar Incoma (sxpanas)

Operating proftt {loss) bafors income taxes® Income {Ioss) befors Incomes taxes
|iIncoms tax (expensa) benefit Income tax (sxpanss) banefit

Net operating profit (loss)* Net Incoma {loss)
*. Reprassnts non-US GAAP descripions ussd by Australlan companies.

|
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NON-US GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

EBIT - Eamnings before interest and taxes

EBIT margin — EBIT margin is defined as EBIT as a percentage of net sales

Sales Volumes

mmsf — million square feet, where a square foot is defined as a standard square foot of 5/16" thickness

msf — thousand square feet, where a square foot is defined as a standard square foot of 5/16” thickness

u"ﬁ;‘}'um- Hardie




NON-US GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

Financial Measures — US GAAP equivalents

Adjusted EBIT
Q417 Q4'16 FY17 FY16

EBIT $ 72 % 563 % 3932 § 354.0
Asbestos:

Asbestos adjustments (1.4) 27.0 (40.4) (5.5)

AICF SGAA expenses 0.3 0.4 1.5 1.7
Mew Zealand weathertightness claims - - - 0.5
Adjusted EBIT $ 718 837 § 3543 § 350.7
Net sales § 4843 § 4358 § 19216 % 1,728.2
Adjusted EBIT margin 15.6% 19.2% 18.4% 20.3%
Adjusted net operating profit

Q4T Q4'1e FY17 FY16

Net operating profit $ 445 § 288 § 2765 § 244.4
Asbestos:

Asbestos adjustments 1.4) 270 (40.4) (5.5)

AICF SG&A expanses 0.3 0.4 15 1.7

AICF interest expense, net 0.3 0.2 11 0.3
MNew Zealand weathertightness claims - - - 0.5
Asbestas and other tax adjustments. 109 1.5 99 1.5
Adjusted net cperating profit $ 546 § 579 $ 2486 § 2429

7% James Hardie
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NON-US GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

Adjusted diluted earnings per share

Three Months and Full Year Ended 31 March

Qa7 Q4'1e FY17 FY16
Adjusted net operating profit (US$ Millions) $ 546 $ 579 § 2486 § 242.9
Wel_ghtad average common shares outstanding - 414 4471 443.9 447.2
Diluted (millions )
Adjusted diluted earnings per share (US cents) 12 13 56 54
Adjusted effective tax rate
Q47 Q416 FY17 FY16
Operating profit before income taxes s 71§ 48.0 $ 367.0 § 330.5
Asbestos:
Asbestos adjustments {1.4) 270 (40.4) (5.5)
AICF SG&A expenses 0.3 0.4 1.5 1.7
AICF interest expense, net 0.3 0.2 1.1 0.3
New Zealand weathertightness claims - - - 0.5
Adjusted operating profit before income taxes 3 703 § 756 § 329.2 § 327.5
Income tax expense -] (26.6) % (19.2) § (20.5) § (86.1)
Asbestos-related and other tax adjustments 109 1.5 9.9 1.5
Adjusted income tax expense H (15.7) & (17.7) $ (80.6) § (84.6)
Effective tax rate 3T.4% 40.0% 24.7% 26.1%
Adjusted effective tax rate 22.3% 23.4% 24.5% 25.8%
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NON-US GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

Adjusted EBITDA

Qa7 Q416 FY17 FY16
EBIT $ 782 % 563 § 393.2 § 354.0
Depreciation and amortization 207 24.7 83.2 79.8
Adjusted EBITDA $ 989 $ 81.0 § 4T6.4 § 433.8

Adjusted selling, general and administrative expenses ("Adjusted SG&A")

Q417 Q4'16 FY17 FY16

SG&A expenses $ 759 $ 68.7 $ 2916 § 254.2
Excluding:
New Zealand weathertightness claims - - - (0.5)

AICF SG&A expenses (0.3) 10.4) {1.5) (1.7)
Adjusted SG&A expenses $ 756 § 68.3 § 2901 § 252.0
Net Sales $ 4943 § 4358 § 19216 3§ 1,728.2
SG&A expenses as a percentage of net sales 15.4% 15.8% 15.2% 14.7%
:e:;:n:hd SG&A expenses asa percentage of net 15.3% 15.7% 15.1% 14.6%

7% James Hardie
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
James Hardie Industries plc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of James Hardie Industries plc as of 31 March 2017 and 2016, and the related consolidated
statements of operations and comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’ deficit, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended 31 March
2017. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of James Hardie Industries plc
at 31 March 2017 and 2016, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended 31 March 2017, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Irvine, California
18 May 2017
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James Hardie Industries plc
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(Millions of US dollars)

31 March 31 March
2017 2016
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 78.9 $ 107.1
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 5.0 5.0
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - Asbestos 108.9 17.0
Accounts and other receivables, net of provision for doubtful trade debts of US$0.9 million and US$1.1 million as of 31 March 2017 and
31 March 2016 199.5 173.3
Inventories 202.9 193.0
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 28.3 18.1
Insurance receivable - Asbestos 5.7 16.7
Workers’ compensation - Asbestos 2.9 4.1
Total current assets 632.1 5343
Property, plant and equipment, net 879.0 867.0
Insurance receivable - Asbestos 58.1 149.0
Workers’ compensation - Asbestos 40.4 46.8
Deferred income taxes 26.9 25.9
Deferred income taxes - Asbestos 356.6 384.9
Other assets 19.6 21.5
Total assets $ 2,012.7 $ 2,029.4
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Deficit
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 173.5 $ 127.2
Short-term debt - Asbestos 52.4 50.7
Accrued payroll and employee benefits 60.5 63.0
Accrued product warranties 94 12.2
Income taxes payable 1.9 4.8
Asbestos liability 116.4 125.9
Workers’ compensation - Asbestos 29 4.1
Other liabilities 11.8 11.9
Total current liabilities 428.8 399.8
Long-term debt 564.5 501.8
Deferred income taxes 94.8 82.1
Accrued product warranties 37.2 33.1
Asbestos liability 1,043.3 1,176.3
Workers’ compensation - Asbestos 40.4 46.8
Other liabilities 15.9 14.7
Total liabilities 2,224.9 2,254.6
Commitments and contingencies (Note 13)
Shareholders’ deficit:
Common stock, Euro 0.59 par value, 2.0 billion shares authorized; 440,843,275 shares issued and outstanding at 31 March 2017 and
445,579,351 shares issued and outstanding at 31 March 2016 229.1 231.4
Additional paid-in capital 173.8 164.4
Accumulated deficit (612.9) (621.8)
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income (2.2) 0.8
Total shareholders’ deficit (212.2) (225.2)
Total liabilities and shareholders’ deficit $ 2,012.7 $ 2,029.4

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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James Hardie Industries plc
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income

Years Ended 31 March

(Millions of US dollars, except per share data) 2017 2016 2015
Net sales $ 1,921.6 $ 1,7282 $ 1,656.9
Cost of goods sold (1,246.9) (1,096.0) (1,078.1)

Gross profit 674.7 632.2 578.8
Selling, general and administrative expenses (291.6) (254.2) (245.5)
Research and development expenses (30.3) (29.5) (31.7)
Asbestos adjustments 40.4 5.5 33.4
Operating income 393.2 354.0 335.0
Interest expense, net of capitalized interest (28.5) (26.6) (9.8)
Interest income 1.0 1.0 23
Other income (expense) 13 2.1 (4.9)
Income before income taxes 367.0 330.5 322.6
Income tax expense (90.5) (86.1) (31.3)
Net income $ 2765 $ 2444 $ 2913

Income per share:

Basic $ 0.62 $ 0.55 $ 0.65
Diluted $ 0.62 $ 0.55 $ 0.65

Weighted average common shares outstanding (Millions):
Basic 442.7 4453 445.0
Diluted 443.9 4472 446.4

Comprehensive income, net of tax:

Net income $ 2765 $ 2444 $ 2913
Pension and post-retirement benefit adjustments - 0.3 -
Cash flow hedges - - (0.6)
Currency translation adjustments (3.0) 0.9 (32.9)
Comprehensive income $ 2735 $ 2456 $ 2578

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

F-5



James Hardie Industries plc
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended 31 March

(Millions of US dollars) 2017 2016 2015
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Net income $ 276.5 $ 244.4 $ 291.3
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 83.2 79.8 70.9
Deferred income taxes 26.0 (0.1) (37.4)
Stock-based compensation 9.3 10.3 9.2
Asbestos adjustments (40.4) (5.5) (33.4)
Excess tax benefits from share-based awards 3.0) 0.4) (1.4)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net 15.0 14.8 -
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - Asbestos 0.9 100.3 107.8
Restricted short-term investments - Asbestos - - 0.2
Payment to AICF 91.1) (62.8) (113.0)
Accounts and other receivables (28.4) (39.9) (5.1)
Inventories 9.7) 16.2 (38.5)
Prepaid expenses and other assets 2.1 3.9 9.2
Insurance receivable - Asbestos 93.3 17.2 29.1
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 39.6 (16.9) 15.7
Asbestos liability 92.0) (114.9) (136.7)
Other accrued liabilities 15.0 21.8 11.6
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 292.1 $ 260.4 $ 179.5
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment $ (101.9) $ (73.2) $ (276.2)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment - 10.4 -
Capitalized interest 2.0 32) (1.7)
Acquisition of assets (5.1) (0.6) -
Net cash used in investing activities $ (109.0) $ (66.6) $ (277.9)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Proceeds from credit facilities $ 395.0 $ 528.0 $ 717.0
Repayments of credit facilities (410.0) (413.0) (642.0)
Proceeds from senior unsecured notes 71.3 - 3224
Debt issuance costs 1.7) 3.1) (8.3)
Proceeds from issuance of shares 0.3 2.1 4.1
Excess tax benefits from share-based awards 3.0 0.4 1.4
Common stock repurchased and retired (99.8) (22.3) ©.1)
Dividends paid (176.8) (246.5) (390.1)
Net cash used in financing activities $ (212.7) $ (154.4) $ (4.6)
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash $ 14 $ 0.7 $ 2.5
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (28.2) 40.1 (100.5)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 107.1 67.0 167.5
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 78.9 $ 107.1 $ 67.0
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash at bank $ 75.0 $ 94.5 $ 60.0
Short-term deposits 3.9 12.6 7.0
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 78.9 $ 107.1 $ 67.0
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Activities
Cash paid during the year for interest $ 26.2 $ 20.5 $ 4.6
Cash paid during the year for income taxes, net $ 51.5 $ 57.8 $ 35.6

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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James Hardie Industries plc
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Deficit

(Millions of US dollars)
Balances as of 31 March 2014

Net income

Other comprehensive loss

Stock-based compensation

Tax benefit from stock options exercised
Equity awards exercised

Dividends declared

Treasury stock purchased

Treasury stock retired

Balances as of 31 March 2015

Net income

Other comprehensive income
Stock-based compensation

Tax benefit from stock options exercised
Equity awards exercised

Dividends declared

Treasury stock purchased

Treasury stock retired

Balances as of 31 March 2016

Net income

Other comprehensive loss

Stock-based compensation

Tax benefit from stock options exercised
Equity awards exercised

Dividends declared

Treasury stock purchased

Treasury stock retired

Balances as of 31 March 2017

Accumulated

Additional Other
Common Paid-in Accumulated Treasury Comprehensive
Stock Capital Deficit Stock Income (loss Total
$_ 2306 $_ 1397 $_ (6024) § - $ 33.1 $_ (190
- - 291.3 - - 291.3
= = = = (33.5) (33.5)
0.6 8.6 - - - 9.2
- 1.4 - - - 1.4
0.4 3.7 - - - 4.1
- = (267.0) = = (267.0)
- - - 9.1) - ©.1)
0.4 0.2) 8.5) 9.1 = =
$ 2312 $ 1532 $_ (586.6) S - $ 04 S (202.6)
- - 244.4 - - 244.4
- - - - 1.2 1.2
0.8 9.5 = = = 10.3
- 0.4 - - - 0.4
0.2 1.9 - - - 2.1
- - (258.7) - - (258.7)
- - - (22.3) = (22.3)
(0.8) (0.6) (20.9) 223 - -
$ 2314 $ 1644 $_ (621.8) S - $ 0.8 $_ (2252)
- - 276.5 - - 276.5
= = = = (3.0) (3.0)
0.9 8.4 - - - 9.3
= 3.0 = = = 3.0
- 0.3 - - - 0.3
- = (173.3) = = (173.3)
- - - (99.8) - (99.8)
32) 23) (94.3) 99.8 = =
$ 2291 $_ 1738 $_ (6129 S - $ 22 $ (122
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James Hardie Industries plc
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Background and Basis of Presentation

Nature of Operations

James Hardie Industries plc (“JHI plc”) manufactures and sells fiber cement building products for interior and exterior building construction applications, primarily
in the United States, Canada, Australia, New Zealand, the Philippines and Europe.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements represent the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of JHI plc and its wholly-owned subsidiaries and
variable interest entity (“VIE”). Unless the context indicates otherwise, JHI plc and its direct and indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries and VIE (as of the time
relevant to the applicable reference) are collectively referred to as “James Hardie”, the “James Hardie Group” or the “Company”. The consolidated financial
statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“US GAAP”). The US dollar is used as
the reporting currency.

Reporting Segments

During the first quarter of fiscal year 2017, the Company changed its reportable operating segments in conjunction with how information is evaluated by the
Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”") for the purpose of assessing segment performance and allocation of resources. The Company has revised its
historical segment information at 31 March 2016 and for the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015 to be consistent with the current reportable segment
structure. The change in reportable segments had no effect on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows for the periods presented.
See Note 17 for further details on segment reporting.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company include the accounts of JHI plc, its wholly-owned subsidiaries and VIE. All intercompany balances and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

AVIE is an entity that is evaluated for consolidation using more than a simple analysis of voting control. The analysis is based on (i) what party has the power to
direct the most significant activities of the VIE that impact its economic performance, and (ii) what party has rights to receive benefits or is obligated to absorb
losses that are significant to the VIE. The analysis of the party that consolidates a VIE is a continual assessment.

In February 2007, the Company’s shareholders approved the Amended and Restated Final Funding Agreement (the “AFFA”), an agreement pursuant to which
the Company provides long-term funding to Asbestos Injuries Compensation Fund (“AICF”), a special purpose fund that provides compensation for the
Australian-related personal injuries for which certain former subsidiary companies of James Hardie in Australia (being Amaca Pty Ltd (“Amaca”), Amaba Pty Ltd
(“Amaba”) and ABN 60 Pty Limited (“ABN 60”) (collectively, the “Former James Hardie Companies”)) are found liable. JHI plc owns 100% of James Hardie 117
Pty Ltd (the “Performing Subsidiary”), which, under the terms of the AFFA, has an obligation to make payments to AICF on an annual basis subject to the
provisions of the AFFA. JHI plc guarantees the Performing Subsidiary’s obligation. Additionally, the Company appoints three AICF directors and the New South
Wales (“NSW”) Government appoints two AICF directors.

F-8



James Hardie Industries plc
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Although the Company has no ownership interest in AICF, for financial reporting purposes, the Company consolidates AICF which is a VIE as defined under
US GAAP due to its pecuniary and contractual interests in AICF as a result of the funding arrangements outlined in the AFFA. The Company’s consolidation of
AICF results in AICF’s assets and liabilities being recorded on its consolidated balance sheets and AICF’s income and expense transactions being recorded in
the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income. These items are Australian dollar-denominated and are subject to remeasurement into
US dollars at each reporting date.

For the fiscal years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016, the Company did not provide financial or other support to AICF that it was not previously contractually
required to provide.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions. These estimates and
assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements,
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Foreign Currency Translation/ Remeasurement

All assets and liabilities are translated or remeasured into US dollars at current exchange rates while revenues and expenses are translated or remeasured at
average exchange rates in effect for the period. The effects of foreign currency translation adjustments are included directly in other comprehensive income in
shareholders’ deficit. Gains and losses arising from foreign currency transactions are recognized in income currently.

The Company has recorded on its balance sheet certain Australian assets and liabilities, including asbestos-related assets and liabilities under the terms of the
AFFA, that are denominated in Australian dollars and subject to translation (Australian entities) or remeasurement (AICF entity) into US dollars at each
reporting date. Unless otherwise noted, the Company converts Australian dollar denominated assets and liabilities into US dollars at the current spot rate at the
end of the reporting period; while revenues and expenses are converted using an average exchange rate for the period.

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Restricted cash and cash equivalents generally relate to amounts subject to letters of credit with insurance companies, which restrict the cash from use for
general corporate purposes.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is generally determined under the first-in, first-out method, except that the cost of raw
materials and supplies is determined using actual or average costs. Cost includes the costs of materials, labor and applied factory overhead. On a regular basis,
the Company evaluates its inventory balances for excess quantities and obsolescence by analyzing demand, inventory on hand, sales levels and other
information. Based on these evaluations, inventory costs are adjusted to net realizable value, if necessary.
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James Hardie Industries plc
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Property, plant and equipment of businesses acquired are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of
acquisition. Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is computed using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Years
Buildings 10 to 40
Buildings Improvements 3t025
Leasehold Improvements 5 to 40
Machinery and Equipment 1to 30

Depreciation and Amortization

The Company records depreciation and amortization under both cost of goods sold and selling, general and administrative expenses, depending on the asset’s
business use. All depreciation and amortization related to plant building, machinery and equipment is recorded in cost of goods sold.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets, such as property, plant and equipment, are evaluated each quarter for events or changes in circumstances that indicate that an asset might
be impaired because the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable. These include, without limitation, a significant adverse change in the extent or
manner in which a long-lived asset or asset group is being used, a current period operating or cash flow loss combined with a history of operating or cash flow
losses, a projection or forecast that demonstrates continuing losses associated with the use of a long-lived asset or asset group and/or a current expectation
that it is more likely than not that a long lived asset or asset group will be sold or otherwise disposed of significantly before the end of its previously estimated
useful life.

When such indicators of potential impairment are identified, recoverability is tested by grouping long-lived assets that are used together and represent the lowest
level for which cash flows are identifiable and distinct from the cash flows of other long-lived assets, which is typically at the production line or plant facility level,
depending on the type of long-lived asset subject to an impairment review.

Recoverability is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of the asset group to the estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be
generated by the asset group. If the carrying amount exceeds the estimated undiscounted future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized at the amount
by which the carrying amount exceeds the estimated fair value of the asset group.

The methodology used to estimate the fair value of the asset group is based on a discounted cash flow analysis that considers the asset group’s highest and
best use that would maximize the value of the asset group. In addition, the estimated fair value of an asset group also considers, to the extent practicable, a
market participant’s expectations and assumptions in estimating the fair value of the asset group. If the estimated fair value of the asset group is less than the
carrying value, an impairment loss is recognized at an amount equal to the excess of the carrying value over the estimated fair value of the asset group.

See Note 7 for additional information.
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James Hardie Industries plc
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Accrued Product Warranties

An accrual for estimated future warranty costs is recorded based on an analysis by the Company, which includes the historical relationship of warranty costs to
installed product at an estimated remediation cost per standard foot. Based on this analysis and other factors, the adequacy of the Company’s warranty
provisions is adjusted as necessary.

Debt

The Company’s debt consists of senior unsecured notes and a revolving credit facility. The senior unsecured notes are recorded at cost net of the original issue
discount. The related original issue discount and the borrowing costs are amortized over the term of the borrowing using the effective interest method. The
revolving credit facility is recorded at cost. The related borrowing costs are amortized over the term of the borrowing using the effective interest method. Debt is
presented as current if the liability is due to be settled within 12 months after the balance sheet date. Readers are referred to the discussion later in this footnote
under Fair Value Measurements and Note 12 for the Company’s fair value considerations.

In addition, the Company consolidates AICF which has a loan facility. Readers are referred to the discussion later in this footnote under Asbestos-related
Accounting Policies.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when the risks and obligations of ownership have been transferred to the customer, which generally occurs at the time of
delivery to the customer. The Company records estimated reductions in sales for customer rebates and discounts including volume, promotional, cash and
other discounts. Rebates and discounts are recorded based on management’s best estimate when products are sold. The estimates are based on historical
experience for similar programs and products. Management reviews these rebates and discounts on an ongoing basis and the related accruals are adjusted, if
necessary, as additional information becomes available.

A portion of the Company’s revenue is made through distributors under a Vendor Managed Inventory agreement whereby revenue is recognized upon the
transfer of title and risk of loss to the distributors.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability method. Under this method, deferred income taxes are recognized by applying enacted
statutory rates applicable to future years to differences between the tax bases and financial reporting amounts of existing assets and liabilities. The effect on
deferred taxes of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. A valuation allowance is provided when it is more
likely than not that all or some portion of deferred tax assets will not be realized. Interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions are recognized in
Income tax expense on the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income.

Financial Instruments

The Company calculates the fair value of financial instruments and includes this additional information in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. The
estimated fair value amounts have been determined by the Company using available market information and appropriate valuation methodologies. However,
considerable judgment is required in interpreting market data to develop the estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not
necessarily indicative of the amounts that the Company could realize in a current market exchange. The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation
methodologies may have a material effect on the estimated fair value amounts.
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James Hardie Industries plc
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Periodically, interest rate swaps, commodity swaps and forward exchange contracts are used to manage market risks and reduce exposure resulting from
fluctuations in interest rates, commodity prices and foreign currency exchange rates. Changes in the fair value that are not designated as hedges are recorded
in earnings within Other income (expense) at each measurement date. The Company does not use derivatives for trading purposes. Readers are referred to
Note 12 for discussion on financial instruments.

Fair Value Measurements

Assets and liabilities of the Company that are carried or disclosed, at fair value are classified in one of the following three categories:

Level 1 Quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities that the Company has the ability to access at the measurement date;
Level 2 Observable market-based inputs or unobservable inputs that are corroborated by market data for the asset or liability at the measurement date;
Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are not corroborated by market data used when there is minimal market activity for the asset or liability at the

measurement date.

Fair value measurements of assets and liabilities are assigned a level within the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to
the fair value measurement in its entirety.

The carrying amounts of Cash and Cash Equivalents, Restricted cash and cash equivalents, Trade receivables, Trade payables and Revolving Credit Facility
approximates their respective fair values due to the short-term nature of these instruments.

Stock-based Compensation

Stock-based compensation expense represents the estimated fair value of equity-based and liability-classified awards granted to employees, adjusted for
estimated forfeitures, and recognized as an expense over the vesting period. Stock-based compensation expense is included in the line item Selling, general
and administrative expenses on the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income.

Equity awards with vesting based solely on a service condition are typically subject to graded vesting, in that the awards vest 25% after the first year, 25% after
the second year and 50% after the third year. For equity awards subject to graded vesting, the Company has elected to use the accelerated recognition method.
Accordingly, each vesting tranche is valued separately, and the recognition of stock-based compensation expense is more heavily weighted earlier in the
vesting period. Stock-based compensation expense for equity awards that are subject to performance or market vesting conditions are typically recognized
ratably over the vesting period. The Company issues new shares to award recipients upon exercise of stock options or when the vesting condition for restricted
stock units (“RSU’s”) has been satisfied.

For RSU’s subject to a service vesting condition, the fair value is equal to the market value of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant, adjusted for
the fair value of estimated dividends as the restricted stock holder is not entitled to dividends over the vesting period. For RSU’s subject to a scorecard
performance vesting condition, the fair value is adjusted for changes in JHI plc’s common stock price at each balance sheet date until the end of the
performance period. For RSU’s subject to a market vesting condition, the fair value is estimated using a Monte Carlo Simulation.
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James Hardie Industries plc
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Compensation expense recognized for liability-classified awards are based on the fair market value of JHI plc’s common stock on the date of grant and recorded
as a liability. The liability is adjusted for subsequent changes in JHI plc’'s common stock price at each balance sheet date.
Earnings Per Share

The Company discloses basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”). Basic EPS is calculated using net income divided by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is similar to basic EPS except that the weighted average number of common shares outstanding is
increased to include the number of additional common shares calculated using the Treasury Method that would have been outstanding if the dilutive potential
common shares, such as stock options and RSU’s, had been issued.

Basic and dilutive common shares outstanding used in determining net income per share are as follows:

Years Ended 31 March

(Millions of shares) 2017 2016 2015

Basic common shares outstanding 442.7 4453 445.0
Dilutive effect of stock awards 1.2 1.9 14
Diluted common shares outstanding 443.9 447.2 446.4
(US dollars) 2017 2016 2015

Net income per share - basic 0.62 0.55 0.65
Net income per share - diluted 0.62 0.55 0.65

Potential common shares of 1.8 million, 1.3 million and 1.7 million for the years ended 31 March 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively, have been excluded from
the calculation of diluted common shares outstanding because the effect of their inclusion would be anti-dilutive.

Unless they are anti-dilutive, RSU’s which vest solely based on continued employment are considered to be outstanding as of their issuance date for purposes
of computing diluted EPS and are included in the calculation of diluted EPS using the Treasury Method. Once these RSU'’s vest, they are included in the basic
EPS calculation on a weighted-average basis.

RSU’s which vest based on performance or market conditions are considered contingent shares. At each reporting date prior to the end of the contingency
period, the Company determines the number of contingently issuable shares to include in the diluted EPS calculation, as the number of shares that would be
issuable under the terms of the RSU arrangement, if the end of the reporting period were the end of the contingency period. Once these RSU’s vest, they are
included in the basic EPS calculation on a weighted-average basis.
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James Hardie Industries plc
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Asbestos-related Accounting Policies

Asbestos Liability

The amount of the asbestos liability has been recognized by reference to (but not exclusively based upon) the most recent actuarial estimate of projected future
cash flows as calculated by KPMG Actuarial Pty Ltd (“‘KPMGA”), who are engaged and appointed by AICF under the terms of the AFFA. Based on their
assumptions, KPMGA arrived at a range of possible total future cash flows and calculated a central estimate, which is intended to reflect a probability-weighted
expected outcome of those actuarially estimated future cash flows projected by KPMGA to occur through 2077.

The Company recognizes the asbestos liability in the consolidated financial statements by reference to (but not exclusively based upon) the undiscounted and
uninflated central estimate. The Company considered discounting when determining the best estimate under US GAAP. The Company has recognized the
asbestos liability by reference to (but not exclusively based upon) the central estimate as undiscounted on the basis that the timing and amounts of such cash
flows are not fixed or readily determinable. The Company considered inflation when determining the best estimate under US GAAP. It is the Company’s view
that there are material uncertainties in estimating an appropriate rate of inflation over the extended period of the AFFA. The Company views the undiscounted
and uninflated central estimate as the best estimate under US GAAP.

Adjustments in the asbestos liability due to changes in the actuarial estimate of projected future cash flows and changes in the estimate of future operating
costs of AICF are reflected in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income during the period in which they occur. Claims paid by AICF
and claims-handling costs incurred by AICF are treated as reductions in the accrued liability balances.

Insurance Receivable

The insurance receivable recorded by the Company has been recognized by reference to (but not exclusively based upon) the most recent actuarial estimate of
recoveries expected from insurance policies and insurance companies with exposure to the asbestos claims, as calculated by KPMGA. The assessment of
recoveries is based on the expected pattern of claims against such policies less an allowance for credit risk based on credit agency ratings. The insurance
receivable generally includes these cash flows as undiscounted and uninflated, however, where the timing of recoveries has been agreed with the insurer, the
receivables are recorded on a discounted basis. The Company records insurance receivables that are deemed probable of being realized.

Adjustments in the insurance receivable due to changes in the actuarial estimate, or changes in the Company’s assessment of recoverability are reflected in the
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income during the period in which they occur. Insurance recoveries are treated as a reduction in the
insurance receivable balance.

Workers’ Compensation

An estimate of the liability related to workers’ compensation claims is prepared by KPMGA as part of the annual actuarial assessment. This estimate contains
two components, amounts that will be met by a workers’ compensation scheme or policy, and amounts that will be met by the Former James Hardie Companies.

The estimated liability is included as part of the asbestos liability and adjustments to the estimate are reflected in the consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive income during the period in which they occur. Amounts that are expected to be paid by the workers’ compensation schemes or policies are
recorded as workers’ compensation receivable.
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James Hardie Industries plc
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Adjustments to the workers’ compensation liability result in an equal adjustment in the workers’ compensation receivable recorded by the Company and have no
effect on the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income.

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents of AICF are reflected as restricted assets, as the use of these assets is restricted to the settlement of asbestos claims and payment
of the operating costs of AICF. Since cash and cash equivalents are highly liquid, the Company classifies these amounts as a current asset on the consolidated
balance sheets.

Short-Term Debt

AICF has access to a secured loan facility (the “AICF Loan Facility”) made available by the NSW Government, which can be used by AICF to fund the payment
of asbestos claims and certain operating and legal costs of AICF and Former James Hardie Companies (together, the “Obligors”).

Interest accrues daily on amounts outstanding, is calculated based on a 365-day year and is payable monthly. AICF may, at its discretion, elect to accrue
interest payable on amounts outstanding under the AICF Loan Facility on the date interest becomes due and payable.

Deferred Income Taxes

The Performing Subsidiary is able to claim a tax deduction for its contributions to AICF over a five-year period commencing in the year the contribution is
incurred. Consequently, a deferred tax asset has been recognized equivalent to the anticipated tax benefit over the life of the AFFA.

Adjustments are made to the deferred income tax asset as adjustments to the asbestos-related assets and liabilities are recorded.

Asbestos Adjustments

The Asbestos adjustments reflected in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income reflect the net change in the actuarial estimate of
the asbestos liability and insurance receivables and change in the estimate of AICF claims handling costs. Additionally, as the asbestos-related assets and
liabilities are denominated in Australian dollars, the reported values of these asbestos-related assets and liabilities in the Company’s consolidated balance
sheets in US dollars are subject to adjustment depending on the closing exchange rate between the two currencies at the balance sheet dates, the effect of
which is also included in Asbestos adjustments in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income.

Asbestos Impact on Statement of Cash Flows
Asbestos Adjustments

The Asbestos adjustments, as recorded on the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (as described above) is presented as a
reconciling item from net income to cash flows from operating activities in the consolidated statements of cash flows.

Operating assets and liabilities related to Asbestos
Movements in the operating assets and liabilities related to asbestos (asbestos liability, insurance receivable, restricted cash and cash equivalents, restricted
short-term investments) recorded on the balance sheets are reflected in the cash flow from operating activities section of the consolidated statements of cash

flows as a change in operating assets and liabilities.
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James Hardie Industries plc
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Payment to AICF

Payments made to AICF by the Performing Subsidiary under the terms of the AFFA are reflected in the consolidated statements of cash flows as a change in
operating assets and liabilities.

AICF Loan Facility

Any drawings, repayments, or payments of accrued interest under the AICF Loan Facility, made by AICF, are offset against movement in restricted cash in the
cash flow from operating activities section of the consolidated statements of cash flows.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2014-09, which provides guidance
requiring companies to recognize revenue depicting the transfer of goods or services to customers in amounts that reflect the payment to which a company
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. ASU No. 2014-09 also requires additional disclosure about the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from customer contracts, including significant judgments and changes in judgments and assets recognized from
costs incurred to obtain or fulfill a contract. ASU No. 2014-09 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after 15 December 2017, and interim periods
within those years, with early adoption permitted for annual reporting periods beginning after 15 December 2016. Companies may use either a full retrospective
or a modified retrospective approach to adopt ASU No. 2014-09. The Company will adopt ASU 2014-09 (and related clarifying guidance issued by the FASB)
starting with the fiscal year beginning 1 April 2018. The Company has begun its process for implementing this guidance, including performing a preliminary
review of all revenue streams to identify any differences in the timing, measurement or presentation of revenue recognition. The Company will continue to
assess the method of adoption and the overall impact the adoption will have on the consolidated financial statements.

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-15, which defines management’s responsibility to evaluate whether there is substantial doubt about an
organization’s ability to continue as a going concern and to provide related footnote disclosures. The amendments in ASU No. 2014-15 are effective for fiscal
years and interim periods within those years, ending after 15 December 2016, with early adoption permitted. The Company adopted ASU No. 2014-15 in the
current fiscal year; which had no impact to its consolidated financial statements.

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-03, which requires that debt issuance costs related to a recognized debt liability be presented in the balance
sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of that debt liability, consistent with debt discounts. The amendments in ASU No. 2015-03 were effective
for fiscal years and interim periods within those years, beginning after 15 December 2015, with early adoption permitted. The new guidance shall be applied on
a retrospective basis, wherein the balance sheet of each individual period presented should be adjusted to reflect the period-specific effects of applying the new
guidance. The Company adopted ASU 2015-03 starting with the fiscal year beginning 1 April 2016. The balances at 31 March 2016 of US$1.6 million and
US$9.4 million were reclassified from Prepaid expenses and other current assets and Other assets, respectively, and are now included as an offset to Long-
term debt in accordance with ASU No. 2015-03.

In July 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-11, which requires inventory to be measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value. The amendments in ASU
No. 2015-11 are effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those years, beginning after 15 December 2016, with early adoption permitted. The new
guidance shall be applied on a prospective basis. The Company adopted ASU No. 2015-11 in the current fiscal year; which had no impact to its consolidated
financial statements.
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In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, which provides guidance on the amount, timing, and uncertainty of cash flows arising from leases. The
standard requires lessees to recognize lease assets and lease liabilities on the balance sheet and requires expanded disclosures about leasing arrangements.
Lessor accounting will remain largely unchanged from current guidance, however ASU 2016-02 will provide improvements that are intended to align lessor
accounting with the lessee model and with updated revenue recognition guidance. The amendments in ASU No. 2016-02 are effective for fiscal years and
interim periods within those years, beginning after 15 December 2018, with early adoption permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the new
guidance on its financial statements.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-09, which provides guidance to simplify several aspects of the accounting for share-based payment
transactions including the income tax consequences, classification of awards as either equity or liabilities, and classification on the statement of cash flows. The
amendments in ASU No. 2016-09 were effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those years, beginning after 15 December 2016, with early adoption
permitted. An entity that elects early adoption must adopt all of the amendments in the same period. Amendments related to the timing of when excess tax
benefits are recognized, minimum statutory withholding requirements, forfeitures, and intrinsic value shall be applied on a modified retrospective basis, wherein
the beginning retained earnings in the period in which the guidance is adopted should include a cumulative-effect adjustment to reflect the effects of applying
the new guidance. Amendments related to the presentation of employee taxes paid on the statements of cash flows shall be applied retrospectively.
Amendments requiring recognition of excess tax benefits and tax deficiencies in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income and the
practical expedient for estimating term shall be applied prospectively. An entity may elect to apply the amendments related to the presentation of excess tax
benefits on the statements of cash flows using either a prospective transition method or a retrospective transition method. The Company will adopt ASU
No. 2016-19 starting with the fiscal year beginning 1 April 2017. Upon adoption, the Company will recognize forfeitures as they occur and will apply the change
in classification of cash flows resulting from excess tax benefits or deficiencies on a prospective basis. The Company does not expect the adoption of this
standard to have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-15, which provides clarification regarding how certain cash receipts and cash payments are presented and
classified in the consolidated statements of cash flows. Among the types of cash flows addressed are payments for costs related to debt prepayments or
extinguishments, payments representing accreted interest on discounted debt, payments of contingent consideration after a business combination, proceeds
from insurance claims and company-owned life insurance, and distributions from equity method investees, among others. The amendments in ASU No. 2016-15
are effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those years, beginning after 15 December 2017, with early adoption permitted. The Company early
adopted ASU No. 2016-15 in the current fiscal year which had no impact to its consolidated financial statements.

In October 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-16, which requires entities to recognize the income tax consequences of intra-entity transfers of assets other
than inventory when the transfer occurs. The amendments in ASU No. 2016-16 are effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those years, beginning
after 15 December 2017, with early adoption permitted. The amendments in ASU No. 2016-16 shall be applied on a modified retrospective basis, wherein the
beginning retained earnings in the period in which the guidance is adopted should include a cumulative-effect adjustment to reflect the effects of applying the
new guidance. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the new guidance on its consolidated financial statements.
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In November 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-18, which requires the statement of cash flows to explain the change during the period in the total of cash,
cash equivalents, and amounts generally described as restricted cash or restricted cash equivalents. The amendments in ASU No. 2016-18 are effective for
fiscal years and interim periods within those years, beginning after 15 December 2017, with early adoption permitted. The amendments in ASU No. 2016-18
shall be applied on a retrospective basis for each period presented. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the new guidance on its financial
statements.

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-01, which clarifies the definition of a business, to assist entities with evaluating whether transactions should
be accounted for as acquisitions or disposals of either assets or of businesses. The amendments in ASU No. 2017-01 are effective for fiscal years and interim
periods within those years, beginning after 15 December 2017, on a prospective basis. Early application of the amendments in ASU No. 2017-01 is allowable
for transactions in which the acquisition date, the date of the deconsolidation of a subsidiary or the date a group of assets is derecognized occurs before the
report issuance date. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the new guidance on its consolidated financial statements.

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts on deposit in banks and cash invested temporarily in various highly liquid financial instruments with original
maturities of three months or less when acquired.

4. Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Included in restricted cash and cash equivalents is US$5.0 million related to an insurance policy at 31 March 2017 and 2016, which restricts the cash from use
for general corporate purposes.

5. Accounts and Other Receivables

Accounts and other receivables consist of the following components:

31 March
(Millions of US dollars) 2017 2016
Trade receivables $ 194.5 $ 169.6
Other receivables and advances 5.9 4.8
Provision for doubtful trade debts 0.9) (())
Total accounts and other receivables $ 199.5 $ 173.3

The collectability of accounts receivable, consisting mainly of trade receivables, is reviewed on an ongoing basis. A provision for doubtful trade debts is provided
for known and estimated bad debts by analyzing specific customer accounts and assessing the risk of uncollectability based on insolvency, disputes or other
collection issues.
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The following are changes in the provision for doubtful trade debts:

31 March
(Millions of US dollars) 2017 2016 2015
Balance at beginning of period $ 1.1 $ 0.8 $ 1.0
Adjustment to provision (0.1) 0.5 (0.1)
Write-offs, net of recoveries (0.1) (0.2) (0.1)
Balance at end of period $ 0.9 $ 1.1 $ 0.8
6. Inventories
Inventories consist of the following components:
31 March
(Millions of US dollars) 2017 2016
Finished goods $ 146.7 $ 144.4
Work-in-process 6.5 5.7
Raw materials and supplies 57.5 50.7
Provision for obsolete finished goods and raw materials (7.8) (7.8)
Total inventories $ 202.9 $ 193.0

As of 31 March 2017 and 2016, US$29.8 million and US$32.1 million, respectively, of the Company’s finished goods inventory balance was held at third-party
locations.
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7. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment consist of the following components:

Machinery Construction

(Millions of US dollars) and in
Cost or valuation: Land Buildings Equipment Progress 1 Total
At 31 March 2015 $ 70.2 $ 239.8 $ 974.6 $ 248.9 $ 11,5335
Additions 2 - 27.0 155.5 (103.9) 78.6
Disposals 3 5 0.7) (65.8) 1.5) (68.0)
Exchange differences (0.1) (0.1) (1.9) - (2.1)
At 31 March 2016 $ 70.1 $ 266.0 $ 1,0624 $ 143.5 $ 1,542.0
Additions 2 1.3 23 27.8 81.8 113.2
Transfers 1.9 23.1 112.3 (137.3) -
Disposals 3 - (1.4) (55.5) (0.5) (57.4)
Other 4 B (12.5) = 6.4 6.1)
Exchange differences (0.4) (0.8) 2.4) (0.1) (3.7
Adjustment 5 (3.4) 67.8 31.1 (37.2) 583
At 31 March 2017 $ 69.5 $ 344.5 $ 1,175.7 $ 56.6 $  1,646.3
Accumulated depreciation:
At 31 March 2015 $ - $ (88.2) $§  (565.2) $ - $  (6534)
Charge for the year - (10.7) (65.6) - (76.3)
Disposals 3 - 0.5 51.1 - 51.6
Exchange differences - 0.2 2.9 - 3.1
At 31 March 2016 $ - $  (982) $  (576.8) $ - $  (675.0)
Charge for the year - (10.2) (70.1) - (80.3)
Disposals 3 - 1.3 41.1 - 424
Other 4 - 1.6 - - 1.6
Exchange differences - 0.3 2.0 - 23
Adjustment 5 5 (22.8) (35.5) = (58.3)
At 31 March 2017 $ - $  (128.0) $  (639.3) $ - $  (767.3)
Net book amount:
At 31 March 2016 $ 70.1 $ 167.8 $ 485.6 $ 143.5 $ 867.0
At 31 March 2017 $ 69.5 $ 216.5 $ 536.4 $ 56.6 $ 879.0

1 Construction in progress is presented net of assets transferred into service.

2 Additions include US$2.0 million and US$3.2 million of capitalized interest for the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016, respectively.
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3 The US$15.0 million net book value of disposals in fiscal year 2017 includes US$13.1 million of usage of replacement parts and
US$0.5 million of impairment charges on individual assets. The remaining net book value of disposals of US$1.4 million is related to the
disposal of assets no longer in use, and do not represent a sale of assets.

4 Other includes the transfer of the Fontana building to Prepaid and other current assets on the consolidated balance sheet. The Fontana
building met the held for sale criteria as of 31 March 2017 and has a net book value of US$4.5 million.

5 The adjustments correct immaterial errors identified by management during the current year in classification in prior periods whereby certain
amounts were misclassified by asset category and certain fully depreciated items were excluded from the balances. The correction had no

impact on the consolidated balance sheets, statements of operations and comprehensive income, and cash flows for any of the periods
presented.

Depreciation expense for the years ended 31 March 2017, 2016 and 2015 was US$80.3 million, US$76.3 million and US$70.2 million, respectively.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company performs an asset impairment review on a quarterly basis in connection with its assessment of production capabilities and the Company’s ability
to meet market demand.

During the years ended 31 March 2017, 2016 and 2015, the Company recorded US$0.5 million, US$3.5 million and US$3.7 million of impairment charges
related to individual assets which is included in Cost of goods sold on the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income.

8. Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consist of the following components:

31 March
(Millions of US dollars) 2017 2016
Trade creditors $ 108.4 $ 772
Accrued Interest 4.8 6.3
Other creditors and accruals 60.3 43.7
Total accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 173.5 $ 127.2

9. Long-Term Debt

At 31 March 2017, the Company had two forms of debt; a revolving credit facility and senior unsecured notes. The effective weighted average interest rate on
the Company’s total debt was 4.8% and 4.5% at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016, respectively. The weighted average term of all debt, including undrawn
facilities, was 4.7 years and 5.6 years at 31 March 2017 and 2016, respectively.
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Revolving Credit Facility

In December 2015, James Hardie International Finance Designated Activity Company (“JHIF”) and James Hardie Building Products Inc. (“*JHBP”), each a
wholly-owned subsidiary of JHI plc, entered into a new US$500.0 million revolving credit facility (the “Revolving Credit Facility”) with certain commercial banks
and HSBC Bank USA, National Association, as administrative agent. The Revolving Credit Facility expires in December 2020 and the size of the facility may be
increased by up to US$250.0 million.

Debt issuance costs in connection with the Revolving Credit Facility are recorded as an offset to Long-Term Debt in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet
and are being amortized as interest expense using the effective interest method over the stated term of 5 years. At 31 March 2017 and 2016, the Company’s
total debt issuance costs have an unamortized balance of US$3.1 million and US$3.9 million, respectively.

The amount drawn under the Revolving Credit Facility was US$175.0 million and US$190.0 million at 31 March 2017 and 2016, respectively.

The effective weighted average interest rate on the Company’s total outstanding Revolving Credit Facility was 2.5% and 2.0% at 31 March 2017 and 2016,
respectively.

Borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility bear interest at per annum rates equal to, at borrower’s option, either: (i) the London Interbank Offered Rate
(“LIBOR”) plus an applicable margin for LIBOR loans; or (ii) a base rate plus an applicable margin for base rate loans. The base rate is calculated as the highest
of (x) the rate that the administrative agent announces from time to time as its prime lending rate, as in effect from time to time, (y) 1/2 of 1% in excess of the
overnight Federal Funds Rate, and (z) LIBOR for an interest period of one month plus 1.00%. The applicable margin is calculated based on a pricing grid that in
each case is linked to our consolidated net leverage ratio. For LIBOR Loans, the applicable margin ranges from 1.25% to 2.00%, and for base rate loans it
ranges from 0.25% to 1.00%. We also pay a commitment fee of between 0.20% and 0.35% on the actual daily amount of the unutilized revolving loans. The
applicable commitment fee percentage is based on a pricing grid linked to the company’s consolidated net leverage ratio.

In the event that JHIF’s or James Hardie International Group Limited’s (“*JHIGL”), as applicable, long-term senior unsecured non-credit enhanced rating from
each of Standard & Poor’s Financial Group, a division of The McGraw Hill Companies (“S&P”), and Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. (“Moody’s”) is at least BBB-
from S&P, and at least Baa3 from Moody’s, at JHIF’s election, for new borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility, an alternate applicable rate may be
applied with respect to the commitment fee of 0.25% per annum and an alternative margin may be applied with respect to: (a) LIBOR Loans, 1.50%; and
(b) base rate loans, 0.50%.

The Revolving Credit Facility is guaranteed by each of JHIGL and James Hardie Technology Limited, each of which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of JHI plc.

The Revolving Credit Facility agreement contains certain covenants that, among other things, restrict JHIGL and its restricted subsidiaries’ ability to incur
indebtedness and grant liens other than certain types of permitted indebtedness and permitted liens, make certain restricted payments, and undertake certain
types of mergers or consolidations actions. In addition, the Company: (i) must not exceed a maximum ratio of net debt to earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortization, excluding all asbestos-related liabilities, assets, income, gains, losses and charges other than AICF payments, all AICF selling,
general and administrative (‘SG&A”) expenses, all Australian Securities and Investment Commission (“ASIC”)-related expenses, all recoveries and asset
impairments, and all New Zealand product liability expenses and (ii) must meet or exceed a minimum ratio of earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortization to interest charges, excluding all income, expense and other profit and loss statement impacts of asbestos income, gains, losses and charges, all
AICF SG&A expenses, all ASIC-related expenses, all recoveries and asset impairments, and all New Zealand product liability expenses. At 31 March 2017, the
Company was in compliance with all covenants contained in the Revolving Credit Facility agreement.
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Senior Unsecured Notes

In February 2015, JHIF, a wholly-owned subsidiary of JHI plc, completed the sale of US$325.0 million aggregate principal amount of senior unsecured notes
due 15 February 2023. Interest is payable semi-annually in arrears on 15 February and 15 August of each year, at a rate of 5.875%.

The senior notes were sold at an offering price of 99.213% of par value, an original issue discount of US$2.6 million. Debt issuance costs in connection with the
offering are recorded as an offset to Long-Term Debt on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet. Both the discount and the debt issuance costs are being
amortized as interest expense using the effective interest method over the stated term of 8 years. The discount has an unamortized balance of US$1.9 million
and US$2.2 million at 31 March 2017 and 2016, respectively. The debt issuance costs have an unamortized balance of US$6.0 million and US$7.1 million at
31 March 2017 and 2016, respectively.

In July 2016, JHIF completed the re-offering and sale of an additional US$75.0 million aggregate principal amount of its 5.875% senior notes due 2023. The
senior notes issued and sold pursuant to the re-offering constitute a further issuance of, and are consolidated with, the US$325.0 million aggregate principal
amount of 5.875% senior notes issued in February 2015 and form a single series with the outstanding notes. The re-offered senior notes have the same terms
(other than issue date and issue price) as those of the outstanding notes and were sold at an offering price of 103.0% of par value, plus accrued and unpaid
interest from 15 February 2016 (as if the senior notes had been issued on such date). Following the completion of this re-offering, the aggregate principal
amount of senior notes due in 2023 is US$400.0 million.

The re-offering was sold at an offering price of 103.0% of par value, a premium of US$2.3 million. Debt issuance costs in connection with the re-offering are
recorded as an offset to Long-Term Debt on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet. Both the premium and the debt issuance costs are being amortized as
interest expense using the effective interest method over 6.6 years, the term of the US$75.0 million re-offering. The premium has an unamortized balance of
US$2.0 million at 31 March 2017. The debt issuance costs have an unamortized balance of US$1.5 million at 31 March 2017.

The senior notes are guaranteed by JHIGL, James Hardie Technology Limited and JHBP, each of which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of JHI plc.

The senior notes and guarantees are senior unsecured obligations of JHIF and guarantors and rank equal in right of payment with all of JHIF’'s and the
guarantors’ existing and future senior debt; rank senior in right of payment to all of JHIF’'s and the guarantors’ existing and future subordinated debt; are
structurally subordinated to all liabilities of the Company’s existing and future subsidiaries that do not guarantee the senior notes; and are effectively
subordinated in right of payment to all of JHIF’s and the guarantors’ secured indebtedness to the extent of the value of the assets securing such indebtedness.

Before 15 February 2018, JHIF may redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount of the senior notes with the net cash proceeds of certain equity
offerings at a redemption price of 105.875% of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, up to but excluding, the redemption date. JHIF may
also redeem some or all of the senior notes before 15 February 2018 at a redemption price of 100% of the principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest,
plus a make whole premium equal to the greater of: (i) 1.0% of the principal amount of such note; and (ii) the excess, if any, of (x) the present value of the sum
of the principal amount and premium that would be payable on such note on 15 February 2018 and all remaining interest payments to and including
15 February 2018, discounted on a semi-annual basis from 15 February 2018 to the redemption date at a per annum interest rate equal to the applicable
treasury rate plus 50 basis points, over (y) the outstanding principal amount of such note.
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On or after 15 February 2018, JHIF may redeem all or a part of the senior notes at any time or from time to time at the redemption prices (expressed as
percentages of the principal amount) set forth in the following table plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the applicable redemption date, if redeemed
during the 12-month period beginning 15 February, of the years indicated:

Year Percentage
2018 104.406%
2019 102.938%
2020 101.469%
2021 and thereafter 100.000%

In addition, if a change of control triggering event occurs with respect to the senior notes, as defined in the indenture, JHIF may be required to offer to
repurchase the notes at a price equal to 101% of the principal amount of the senior notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to, but not including, the date
of the purchase.

The indenture governing the senior notes contains covenants that, among other things, limit the ability of the guarantors and their restricted subsidiaries to incur
liens on assets, make certain restricted payments, engage in certain sale and leaseback transactions and merge or consolidate with or into other companies.
These covenants are subject to certain exceptions and qualifications as described in the indenture. At 31 March 2017, the Company was in compliance with all
of its requirements under the indenture related to the senior unsecured notes.

The Company’s senior unsecured notes have an estimated fair value of US$414.0 million and US$329.1 million at 31 March 2017 and 2016, respectively based
on the trading price observed in the market at or near the balance sheet date and are categorized as Level 1 within the fair value hierarchy.

Global Exchange Market Listing

On 19 March 2015, the senior notes were admitted to listing on the Global Exchange Market (“GEM”) which is operated by the Irish Stock Exchange. On
11 August 2016, the US$75.0 million re-offered senior notes were admitted to listing on the GEM. The notes were consolidated and form a single series with the
US$325.0 million 5.875% senior notes due 2023 issued on 10 February 2015. Interest paid on the senior notes quoted on the GEM is not subject to Irish
withholding tax.

10. Product Warranties
The Company offers various warranties on its products, including a 30-year limited warranty on certain of its fiber cement siding products in the United States. A
typical warranty program requires the Company to replace defective products within a specified time period from the date of sale. It is possible that future

warranty costs could differ from those estimates.

The following are the changes in the product warranty provision:

31 March
(Millions of US dollars) 2017 2016 2015
Balance at beginning of period $ 453 § 352§ 314
Accruals for product warranties 17.0 28.0 16.0
Settlements made in cash or in kind (15.7) (17.9) (12.2)
Balance at end of period $ 46.6 $ 453 $ 35.2
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11. Asbestos

The AFFA was approved by shareholders in February 2007 to provide long-term funding to AICF. For a discussion of the AFFA and the accounting policies
utilized by the Company related to the AFFA and AICF, see Note 2.

Asbestos Adjustments

The Asbestos adjustments included in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income comprise the following:

Years Ended 31 March

(Millions of US dollars) 2017 2016 2015
Change in estimates:

Change in actuarial estimate - asbestos liability $ 447 $ 24 $ (129.0)
Change in actuarial estimate - insurance receivable 8.2) 4.5 16.6
Change in estimate - AICF claims-handling costs 2.1 1.2 1.1
Subtotal - Change in estimates 38.6 8.1 (111.3)
Gain (loss) on foreign currency exchange 1.8 (2.6) 144.7
Total Asbestos Adjustments $ 404 $§ 55 $ 334

Actuarial Study; Claims Estimate

AICF commissioned an updated actuarial study of potential asbestos-related liabilities as of 31 March 2017. Based on KPMGA's assumptions, KPMGA arrived
at a range of possible total cash flows and calculated a central estimate, which is intended to reflect a probability-weighted expected outcome of those actuarially
estimated future cash flows.

The following table sets forth the central estimates, net of insurance recoveries, calculated by KPMGA as of 31 March 2017:

Year Ended 31 March 2017

(Millions of US and Australian dollars, respectively) US$ A$

Central Estimate - Discounted and Inflated 1,330.1 1,740.1
Central Estimate - Undiscounted but Inflated 1,681.5 2,199.7
Central Estimate - Undiscounted and Uninflated 1,059.2 1,385.7

The asbestos liability has been revised to reflect the most recent undiscounted and uninflated actuarial estimate prepared by KPMGA as of 31 March 2017.

In estimating the potential financial exposure, KPMGA has made a number of assumptions, including, but not limited to, assumptions related to the total number
of claims that are reasonably estimated to be asserted through 2077, the typical cost of settlement (which is sensitive to, among other factors, the industry in
which a plaintiff claims exposure, the alleged disease type, the age of the claimant and the jurisdiction in which the action is brought), the legal costs incurred in
the litigation of such claims, the rate of receipt of claims, the settlement strategy in dealing with outstanding claims and the timing of settlements.

Due to inherent uncertainties in the legal and medical environment, the number and timing of future claim notifications and settlements, the recoverability of
claims against insurance contracts, and estimates of future trends in average claim awards, as well as the extent to which the above named entities will
contribute to the overall settlements, the actual liability could differ materially from that which is currently recorded.
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The potential range of costs as estimated by KPMGA is affected by a number of variables such as nil settlement rates, peak year of claims, past history of
claims numbers, average settlement rates, past history of Australian asbestos-related medical injuries, current number of claims, average defense and plaintiff
legal costs, base wage inflation and superimposed inflation. The potential range of losses disclosed includes both asserted and unasserted claims.

A sensitivity analysis performed by KPMGA to determine how the actuarial estimates would change if certain assumptions (i.e., the rate of inflation and
superimposed inflation, the average costs of claims and legal fees, and the projected numbers of claims) were different from the assumptions used to determine
the central estimates. The sensitivity analysis performed in the actuarial report is specifically in regards to the discounted but inflated central estimate and the
undiscounted but inflated central estimate. This analysis shows that the discounted (but inflated) central estimates could be in a range of A$1.3 billion (US$1.0
billion) to A$3.2 billion (US$2.5 billion). The undiscounted (but inflated) estimates could be in a range of A$1.6 billion (US$1.2 billion) to A$4.5 billion (US$3.4
billion) as of 31 March 2017. The actual cost of the liabilities could be outside of that range depending on the results of actual experience relative to the
assumptions made.

During fiscal year 2017, mesothelioma claims reporting activity was below actuarial expectations for the second consecutive year. One of the more significant
assumptions is the estimated peak period of mesothelioma disease claims, which is currently assumed to have occurred in the period 2014/2015 to
2016/2017. As the actual experience in fiscal year 2017 was favorable to expectations, no change to the assumed number of future mesothelioma claims is
warranted at this time. However, potential variation in the estimated peak period of claims has an impact much greater than the other assumptions used to
derive the discounted central estimate. In performing the sensitivity assessment of the estimated period of peak claims reporting for mesothelioma, if the peak
claims reporting period was shifted two years from the currently assumed 2016/2017 (i.e. assuming that claim reporting begins to reduce after 2018/2019),
together with increased claims reporting from 2026/2027 onwards, relative to current actuarial projections, the central estimate could increase by approximately
34% on a discounted basis.

At 31 March 2017, KPMGA has formed the view that, although there has been favorable claims reporting in fiscal year 2017, no change to the assumed number
of future mesothelioma claims is warranted at this time. However, changes to the valuation assumptions may be necessary in future periods should
mesothelioma claims reporting escalate or decline.
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Claims Data

The following table shows the activity related to the numbers of open claims, new claims and closed claims during each of the past five years and the average

settlement per settled claim and case closed:

2017

For the Years Ended 31 March

2016

2015 2014 2013
Number of open claims at beginning of period 426 494 466 462 592
Number of new claims 557 577 665 608 542
Number of closed claims 631 645 637 604 672
Number of open claims at end of period 352 426 494 466 462
Average settlement amount per settled claim A$ 223,535 AS 248,138 AS$ 254,209 A$ 253,185 A$ 231,313
Average settlement amount per case closed AS$ 167,563 A$ 218,900 AS 217,495 A$ 212,944 A$ 200,561
Average settlement amount per settled claim USS 168,300 USS 182,763 USS 222,619 US$ 236,268 US$ 238,615
Average settlement amount per case closed USS$ 126,158 USS$ 161,229 USS$ 190,468 US$ 198,716

US$ 206,892

Under the terms of the AFFA, the Company has rights of access to actuarial information produced for AICF by the actuary appointed by AICF, which is currently
KPMGA. The Company’s disclosures with respect to claims statistics are subject to it obtaining such information, however, the AFFA does not provide the
Company an express right to audit or otherwise require independent verification of such information or the methodologies to be adopted by the approved
actuary. As such, the Company relies on the accuracy and completeness of the information provided by the AICF to the approved actuary and the resulting

information and analysis of the approved actuary when making disclosures with respect to claims statistics.
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Asbestos-Related Assets and Liabilities

The Company has included on its consolidated balance sheets the asbestos-related assets and liabilities of AICF under the terms of the AFFA. These amounts
are detailed in the table below, and the net total of these asbestos-related assets and liabilities is referred to by the Company as the “Net AFFA Liability.”

31 March
(Millions of US dollars) 2017 2016
Asbestos liability — current $ (116.4) $ (125.9)
Asbestos liability — non-current (1,043.3) (1,176.3)
Asbestos liability - Total (1,159.7) (1,302.2)
Insurance receivable — current 5.7 16.7
Insurance receivable — non-current 58.1 149.0
Insurance receivable — Total 63.8 165.7
Workers’ compensation asset — current 2.9 4.1
Workers’ compensation asset —non-current 40.4 46.8
Workers’ compensation liability — current 2.9 4.1)
Workers’ compensation liability —non-current (40.4) (46.8)
Workers’ compensation — Total - -
Loan facility (52.4) (50.7)
Other net liabilities (1.6) (1.0)
Restricted cash and cash equivalents of the AICF 108.9 17.0
Net Unfunded AFFA liability $ (1,041.0) $  (1,171.2)
Deferred income taxes —non-current 356.6 384.9
Income tax payable 16.8 19.6
Net Unfunded AFFA liability, net of tax $ (667.6) $ (766.7)
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The following is a detailed rollforward of the Net Unfunded AFFA liability, net of tax, for the year ended 31 March 2017:

Asbestos Insurance  Deferred Tax  Other Loan Restricted Other Net Unfunded
(Millions of US dollars) Liabili . . Cashand  Assets and| AFFA Liability,
iability Receivables Assets Facilities P
Investments  Liabilities net of tax
Opening Balance - 31 March 2016 $(1,302.2) $ 1657 § 3849 $ (507) $ 170§ 186 | S (766.7)
Asbestos claims paid 90.7 - - - (90.7) - -
Payment received in accordance with AFFA - - - - Wil il 91.1
AICF claims-handling costs incurred (paid) 12 - - - (1.2) - -
AICF operating costs paid - nonclaims-handling - - - - (UES)) - (1.5)
Change in actuarial estimate 44.7 (8.2) - - 36.5
Change in claims handling cost estimate 2.1 - - - - - 2.1
Impact on deferred income tax due to change in actuarial estimate - - (11.5) - - - (11.5)
Insurance recoveries - (93.3) - - 93.3 - -
Movement in income tax payable - - (16.6) - - (2.5) (19.1)
Funds received from NSW under loan agreement - (77.0) 77.0 - -
Funds repaid to NSW under loan agreement - - - 74.3 (74.3) - -
Other movements - - 0.8 - (0.6) (1.4) (1.2)
Effect of foreign exchange3 3.8 (0.4) (1.0) 1.0 (1.2) 0.5 2.7
Closing Balance - 31 March 2017 $(1,159.7) $ 63.8 § 356.6 $ (524) S 1089 § 152 ] 8 (667.6)
1 Other assets and liabilities include an offset to income tax payable of US$16.8 million and US$19.6 million at 31 March 2017 and 2016, respectively.

The remaining balance includes the other assets and liabilities of AICF, with a net liability of US$1.6 million and US$1.0 million at 31 March 2017 and
2016, respectively.

2 The payment received in accordance with AFFA of US$91.1 million reflects the US dollar equivalent of the A$120.7 million payment, translated at the
exchange rate set five days before the day of payment.

3 For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Asbestos adjustments of US$40.4 million on the Company’s consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive income include the effect of foreign exchange above of US$2.7 million, which is partially offset by the loss on the foreign currency
forward contract associated with the AICF payment of US$0.9 million.

AICF Funding

We anticipate that we will make a contribution of approximately US$102.2 million to AICF on 3 July 2017. This amount represents 35% of our free cash flow for
fiscal year 2017, as defined by the AFFA.

On 1 July 2016, the Company made a payment of A$120.7 million (US$91.1 million) to AICF, representing 35% of its free cash flow for fiscal year 2016. For the
1 July 2016 payment, free cash flow, as defined in the AFFA, was equivalent to the Company’s fiscal year 2016 operating cash flows of US$260.4 million.

On 1 July 2015, the Company made a payment of A$81.1 million (US$62.8 million) to AICF, representing 35% of its free cash flow for fiscal year 2015. For the
1 July 2015 payment, free cash flow, as defined in the AFFA, was equivalent to the Company’s fiscal year 2015 operating cash flows of US$179.5 million.

On 1 July 2014, the Company made a payment of A$119.9 million (US$113.0 million) to AICF, representing 35% of its free cash flow for fiscal year 2014. For
the 1 July 2014 payment, free cash flow, as defined in the AFFA, was equivalent to the Company’s fiscal year 2014 operating cash flows of US$322.8 million.
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AICF — NSW Government Secured Loan Facility

AICF may borrow, subject to certain conditions, up to an aggregate amount of A$320.0 million (US$244.6 million, based on the exchange rate at 31 March
2017). The AICF Loan Facility is available to be drawn for the payment of claims through 1 November 2030, at which point, all outstanding borrowings must be
repaid. Borrowings made under the AICF Loan Facility are classified as current, as AICF intends to repay the debt within one year.

At 31 March 2017 and 2016, AICF had an outstanding balance under the AICF Loan Facility of US$52.4 million and US$50.7 million, respectively.

To the extent the NSW Government sources funding for the AICF Loan Facility from the Commonwealth of Australia (the “Commonweath”), the interest rate on
the AICF Loan Facility is calculated by reference to the cost of NSW’s borrowings from the Commonwealth for that purpose, being calculated with reference to
the Commonwealth Treasury fixed coupon bond rate for a period determined as appropriate by the Commonwealth.

To the extent that NSW’s source of funding is not from the Commonwealth, the interest rate on drawings under the AICF Loan Facility is calculated as (i) during
the period to (but excluding) 1 May 2020, a yield percent per annum calculated at the time of the first drawdown of the AICF Loan Facility by reference to the
NSW Treasury Corporation’s 6% 1/05/2020 Benchmark Bonds, (ii) during the period after 1 May 2020, a yield percent per annum calculated by reference to
NSW Treasury Corporation bonds on issue at that time and maturing in 2030, or (iii) in any case, if the relevant bonds are not on issue, a yield percent per
annum in respect of such other source of funding for the AICF Loan Facility determined by the NSW Government in good faith to be used to replace those
bonds, including any guarantee fee payable to the Commonwealth in respect of the bonds (where the bonds are guaranteed by the Commonwealth) or other
source of funding.

Under the AICF Loan Facility, the Former James Hardie Companies each guarantee the payment of amounts owed by AICF and AICF’s performance of its
obligations under the AICF Loan Facility. Each Obligor has granted the NSW Government a security interest in certain property including cash accounts,
proceeds from insurance claims, payments remitted by the Company to AICF and contractual rights under certain documents including the AFFA. Each Obligor
may not deal with the secured property until all amounts outstanding under the AICF Loan Facility are paid, except as permitted under the terms of the security
interest.

Under the terms of the AICF Loan Facility, each Obligor must, upon receipt of proceeds from insurance claims and payments remitted by the Company under
the AFFA, apply all of such proceeds in repayment of amounts owing under the AICF Loan Facility. NSW may, at its sole discretion, waive or postpone (in such

manner and for such period as it determines) the requirement for the Obligors to apply proceeds of insurance claims and payments remitted by the Company to
repay amounts owed under the AICF Loan Facility to ensure AICF has sufficient liquidity to meet its future cash flow needs.

The Obligors are subject to certain operating covenants under the AICF Loan Facility and the terms of the security interest, including, without limitation,
(i) positive covenants relating to providing corporate reporting documents, providing particular notifications and complying with the terms of the AFFA, and
(ii) negative covenants restricting them from voiding, cancelling, settling, or adversely affecting existing insurance policies, disposing of assets and granting
security to secure any other financial indebtedness, other than in accordance with the terms and conditions of the AICF Loan Facility.

Upon an event of default, NSW may cancel the commitment and declare all amounts outstanding as immediately due and payable. The events of default
include, without limitation, failure to pay or repay amounts due in accordance with the AICF Loan Facility, breach of covenants, misrepresentation, cross default
by an Obligor and an adverse judgment (other than a personal asbestos or Marlew claim) against an Obligor.
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12. Derivative Instruments

Interest Rate Swaps

The fair value of interest rate swap contracts is calculated based on the fixed rate, notional principal, settlement date and present value of the future cash
inflows and outflows based on the terms of the agreement and the future floating interest rates as determined by a future interest rate yield curve. The model
used to value the interest rate swap contracts is based upon well recognized financial principles, and interest rate yield curves can be validated through readily
observable data by external sources. Although readily observable data is used in the valuations, different valuation methodologies could have an effect on the
estimated fair value. Accordingly, the interest rate swap contracts are categorized as Level 2.

For interest rate swap contracts, the Company has agreed to pay fixed interest rates while receiving a floating interest rate. At 31 March 2017 and 2016, the
Company had interest rate swap contracts with total notional principal of US$100.0 million.

At 31 March 2017, the weighted average fixed interest rate of these contracts is 2.1% and the weighted average remaining life is 2.4 years. These contracts
have a fair value of US$1.1 million and US$3.7 million at 31 March 2017 and 2016, respectively, which is included in Accounts payable. For the years ended
31 March 2017, 2016 and 2015, the Company included in Other income (expense) an unrealized gain of US$2.6 million, an unrealized loss of US$0.6 million
and an unrealized loss of US$2.6 million, respectively, on interest rate swap contracts. Also included in Other income (expense) for the year ended 31 March
2017 was a realized loss on interest rate swap contracts of US$1.3 million. Included in Interest expense is a realized loss on interest rate swap contracts of
US$1.9 million and US$1.3 million for the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Foreign Currency Forward Contracts

The Company’s foreign currency forward contracts are valued using models that maximize the use of market observable inputs including interest rate curves
and both forward and spot prices for currencies and are categorized as Level 2 within the fair value hierarchy. At 31 March 2017, the Company did not have
any forward currency forward contracts.

For the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016, the forward contracts not designated as a cash flow hedging arrangement had an unrealized gain of nil and
US$0.9 million, respectively.

The notional amount of interest rate swap contracts and foreign currency forward contracts represents the basis upon which payments are calculated and are
reported on a net basis when a legal and enforceable right of set-off exists. The following table sets forth the total outstanding notional amount and the fair value
of the Company’s derivative instruments held at 31 March 2017 and 2016.

Fair Value as of

(Millions of US dollars) Notional Amount 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
31 March 31 March
2017 2016 Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Derivatives not accounted for as hedges
Interest rate swap contracts $ 100.0 $ 100.0 $ - $ 1.1 $ - $ 3.7
Foreign currency forward contracts - 0.4 - -
Total $ 100.0 $ 100.4 $ - $ 1.1 $ - $ 3.7
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13. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is involved from time to time in various legal proceedings and administrative actions related to the normal conduct of its business, including
general liability claims, putative class action lawsuits and litigation concerning its products.

Although it is impossible to predict the outcome of any pending legal proceeding, management believes that such proceedings and actions should not,
individually or in the aggregate, have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows, except as
they relate to asbestos and New Zealand product liability claims as described in these consolidated financial statements.

New Zealand Weathertightness Claims

Since fiscal year 2002, the Company’s New Zealand subsidiaries have been and continue to be joined in a number of weathertightness claims in New Zealand
that relate to residential buildings (single dwellings and apartment complexes) and a small number of non-residential buildings, primarily constructed from 1998
to 2004. The claims often involve multiple parties and allege that losses were incurred due to excessive moisture penetration of the buildings’ structures. The
claims typically include allegations of poor building design, inadequate certification of plans, inadequate construction review and compliance certification and
deficient work by sub-contractors.

The Company recognizes a liability for both asserted and unasserted New Zealand weathertightness claims in the period in which the loss becomes probable
and estimable. The amount of reasonably possible loss is dependent on a number of factors including, without limitation, the specific facts and circumstances
unique to each claim brought against the Company’s New Zealand subsidiaries, the existence of any co-defendants involved in defending the claim, the
solvency of such co-defendants (including the ability of such co-defendants to remain solvent until the related claim is ultimately resolved), the availability of
claimant compensation under a government compensation scheme, the amount of loss estimated to be allocable to the Company’s New Zealand subsidiaries
and the extent to which the co-defendants and the Company’s New Zealand subsidiaries have access to third-party recoveries to cover a portion of the costs
incurred in defending and resolving such actions. In addition to the above limitations, the total loss incurred is also dependent on the manner and extent to
which statutory limitation periods will apply to any received claims.

Historically, the Company’s New Zealand subsidiaries have been joined to these claims as one of several co-defendants, including local government entities
responsible for enforcing building codes and practices, resulting in the Company’s New Zealand subsidiaries becoming liable for only a portion of each claim. In
addition, the Company’s New Zealand subsidiaries have had access to third-party recoveries to defray a portion of the costs incurred in resolving such claims.
However, in 2015 the Company’s New Zealand subsidiaries were named as the sole defendants in four claims on behalf of multiple defendants, each of which
allege that the subsidiaries’ products were inherently defective.

The Company has established a provision for asserted and unasserted New Zealand weathertightness claims within the current portion of Other liabilities, with
a corresponding estimated receivable for third-party recoveries being recognized within Accounts and other receivables. At 31 March 2017 and 2016, the
amount of the provision for New Zealand weathertightness claims, net of estimated third-party recoveries, was US$1.1 million and US$1.8 million, respectively.

The estimated loss for these matters, net of estimated third-party recoveries, incorporates assumptions that are subject to the foregoing uncertainties and are
principally derived from, but not exclusively based on, historical claims experience together with facts and circumstances unique to each claim. If the nature and
extent of the resolution of claims in future periods differ from the historical claims experience, then the actual amount of loss may be materially higher or lower
than estimated losses accrued at 31 March 2017.
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Environmental and Legal

The operations of the Company, like those of other companies engaged in similar businesses, are subject to a number of laws and regulations on air and water
quality, waste handling and disposal. The Company’s policy is to accrue for environmental costs when it is determined that it is probable that an obligation
exists and the amount can be reasonably estimated.

Operating Leases

As the lessee, the Company principally enters into property, building and equipment leases. The following are future minimum lease payments for
non-cancellable operating leases having a remaining term in excess of one year at 31 March 2017:

Years ending 31 March (Millions of US dollars):

2018 16.0
2019 13.0
2020 10.6
2021 7.2
2022 6.7
Thereafter _ 17.8

Total $ 73

Rental expense amounted to US$18.4 million, US$16.9 million and US$16.7 million for the years ended 31 March 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Capital Commitments

Commitments for the acquisition of plant and equipment and other purchase obligations contracted for but not recognized as liabilities and generally payable
within one year, were nil at 31 March 2017.
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14. Income Taxes

Income tax expense includes income taxes currently payable and those deferred because of temporary differences between the financial statement and tax

bases of assets and liabilities. Income tax expense consists of the following components:

Years Ended 31 March

(Millions of US dollars) 2017 2016 2015
Income before income taxes:
Domestic $ 172.2 $ 150.1 $ 145.5
Foreign 194.8 180.4 177.1
Income before income taxes: $ 367.0 $ 330.5 $ 322.6
Income tax expense:
Current:
Domestic $ 15.2) $ (12.6) $ (11.9)
Foreign (36.0) (59.2) (39.3)
Current income tax expense (51.2) (71.8) (51.2)
Deferred:
Domestic (4.0) (5.6) @3.7)
Foreign (35.3) (8.7) 23.6
Deferred income tax (expense) benefit (39.3) (14.3) 19.9
Total income tax expense $ (90.5) $ (86.1) $ (31.3)

Income tax expense computed at the statutory rates represents taxes on income applicable to all jurisdictions in which the Company conducts business,

calculated at the statutory income tax rate in each jurisdiction multiplied by the pre-tax income attributable to that jurisdiction.

Income tax expense is reconciled to the tax at the statutory rates as follows:

Years Ended 31 March

(Millions of US dollars) 2017 2016 2015
Income tax expense computed at the statutory tax rates $ (84.4) $ (79.1) $ (75.0)
US state income taxes, net of the federal benefit 3.0) (3.6) (2.4)
Asbestos - effect of foreign exchange 0.8 (0.8) 48.3
Expenses not deductible 2.5) (2.0) (34)
Non-assessable items 0.4 1.9 0.5
US manufacturing deduction 2.2 4.1 2.6
Foreign taxes on domestic income 2.1 (5.7) (0.7)
Amortization of intangibles 2.8 29 2.8
Taxes on foreign income 54) (7.4) 4.5)
Other items 0.7 3.6 0.5
Total income tax expense $ (90.5) $ (86.1) $ (31.3)
Effective tax rate 24.7% 26.1% 9.7%
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Deferred tax balances consist of the following components:

31 March

(Millions of US dollars) 2017 2016
Deferred tax assets:
Asbestos liability $ 356.6 $ 384.9
Other provisions and accruals 52.8 49.0
Net operating loss carryforwards 24.2 242
Foreign tax credit carryforwards 107.5 112.4
Total deferred tax assets 541.1 570.5
Valuation allowance (110.4) (115.0)
Total deferred tax assets net of valuation allowance 430.7 455.5
Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciable and amortizable assets (130.0) (117.4)
Other (12.0) (9.4)
Total deferred tax liabilities (142.0) (126.8)
Total deferred taxes, net $ 288.7 $ 328.7

Deferred income taxes include European and Australian net operating loss carry-forwards. At 31 March 2017, the Company had European tax loss carry-
forwards of approximately US$6.4 million and Australian tax loss carry-forwards of approximately US$17.8 million that are available to offset future taxable
income in the respective jurisdiction. The Company establishes a valuation allowance against a deferred tax asset if it is more likely than not that some portion
or all of the deferred tax asset will not be realized.

The European tax loss carry-forwards relate to losses incurred in prior years during the establishment of the European business. At 31 March 2017, the
Company had a valuation allowance against a portion of the European tax loss carry-forwards in respect of which realization is not more likely than not. During
the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company reversed a valuation allowance of US$4.2 million for a portion of its European tax loss carry-forwards for which
realization is now more likely than not. At 31 March 2017, the Company had European tax loss carry-forwards of approximately US$6.4 million that are available
to offset future taxable income, of which US$3.5 million will never expire. Carry-forwards of US$2.9 million will expire in fiscal years 2018 through 2026.

The Australian tax loss carry-forwards primarily result from current and prior year tax deductions for contributions to AICF. James Hardie 117 Pty Limited, the
performing subsidiary under the AFFA, is able to claim a tax deduction for its contributions to AICF over a five-year period commencing in the year the
contribution is incurred. At 31 March 2017, the Company recognized a tax deduction of US$55.3 million (A$73.4 million) for the current year relating to total
contributions to AICF of US$312.3 million (A$366.9 million) incurred in tax years 2013 through 2017.

At 31 March 2017, the Company had foreign tax credit carry-forwards of US$107.5 million that are available to offset future taxes payable. At 31 March 2017,
the Company had a 100% valuation allowance against the foreign tax credit carry-forwards.

In determining the need for and the amount of a valuation allowance in respect of the Company’s asbestos related deferred tax asset, management reviewed
the relevant empirical evidence, including the current and past core earnings of the Australian business and forecast earnings of the Australian business
considering current trends. Although realization of the deferred tax asset will occur over the life of the AFFA, which extends beyond the forecast period for the
Australian business, Australia provides an unlimited carry-forward period for tax losses. Based upon managements’ review, the Company believes that it is
more likely than not that the Company will realize its asbestos related deferred tax asset and that no valuation allowance is necessary as of 31 March 2017. In
the future, based on review of the empirical evidence by management at that time, if management determines that realization of its asbestos related deferred tax

asset is not more likely than not, the Company may need to provide a valuation allowance to reduce the carrying value of the asbestos related deferred tax
asset to its realizable value.
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Income taxes payable represents taxes currently payable which are computed at statutory income tax rates applicable to taxable income derived in each
jurisdiction in which the Company conducts business.

At 31 March 2017, the Company had income taxes currently payable of US$1.9 million, after taking into account total income tax and withholding tax paid, net of
refunds received, during the year ended 31 March 2017 of US$51.5 million. Income taxes were paid in Canada, Ireland, New Zealand, the Philippines and the
United States. Withholding taxes were paid or refunded in Australia, Canada, New Zealand and the Philippines.

At 31 March 2017, the Company intends to indefinitely reinvest the undistributed earnings of approximately US$201.9 million of a certain subsidiary owned by its
US subsidiary, and has not provided for taxes that would be payable upon remittance of those earnings. The amount of the potential deferred tax liability related
to these undistributed earnings is impracticable to determine at this time.

Due to the size and nature of its business, the Company is subject to ongoing reviews by taxing jurisdictions on various tax matters. The Company accrues for
tax contingencies based upon its best estimate of the taxes ultimately expected to be paid, which it updates over time as more information becomes available.
Such amounts are included in taxes payable or other non-current liabilities, as appropriate. If the Company ultimately determines that payment of these amounts
is unnecessary, the Company reverses the liability and recognizes a tax benefit during the period in which the Company determines that the liability is no longer
necessary. The Company records additional tax expense in the period in which it determines that the recorded tax liability is less than the ultimate assessment
it expects.

The Company or its subsidiaries files income tax returns in various jurisdictions including Ireland, the United States, Australia, New Zealand, the Philippines and
The Netherlands. The Company is no longer subject to US federal examinations by US Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) for tax years prior to tax year 2014 and
Australian federal examinations by the Australian Taxation Office (“ATQO”) for tax years prior to tax year 2013.

Taxing authorities from various jurisdictions in which the Company operates are in the process of reviewing and auditing the Company’s respective jurisdictional
tax returns for various ranges of years. The Company accrues tax liabilities in connection with ongoing audits and reviews based on knowledge of all relevant
facts and circumstances, taking into account existing tax laws, its experience with previous audits and settlements, the status of current tax examinations and
how the tax authorities view certain issues.
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Unrecognized Tax Benefits

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits and interest and penalties are as follows:

(Millions of US Dollars) Unrecognized Interest and
tax benefits Penalties
Balance at 31 March 2014 $ 0.5 $ o
Additions for tax positions of the current year 4.2 0.1
Additions for tax positions of prior year 0.2 0.2
Balance at 31 March 2015 $ 4.9 $ 0.3
Additions for tax positions of the current year 0.2 -
Reductions in tax positions of prior year 4.1) (0.3)
Settlements paid during the current period (0.3) -
Balance at 31 March 2016 $ 0.7 $ -
Additions for tax positions of the current year 0.1 -
Reductions in tax positions of prior year (0.1) -
Balance at 31 March 2017 $ 0.7 $ -

At 31 March 2017, the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits and the total amount of interest and penalties accrued by the Company related to unrecognized
tax benefits that, if recognized, would affect the tax expense is US$0.7 million and nil, respectively.

The Company recognizes penalties and interest accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense. During the years ended 31 March 2017,
2016 and 2015, income of nil, income of US$0.3 million and expense of US$0.3 million, respectively, relating to interest and penalties was recognized within
income tax expense arising from movements in unrecognized tax benefits.

The liabilities associated with uncertain tax benefits are included in Other liabilities on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets.

A number of years may elapse before an uncertain tax position is audited or ultimately resolved. It is difficult to predict the ultimate outcome or the timing of
resolution for uncertain tax positions. It is reasonably possible that the amount of unrecognized tax benefits could significantly increase or decrease within the
next twelve months. These changes could result from the completion of ongoing examinations, the expiration of the statute of limitations, or other
circumstances. At this time, an estimate of the range of the reasonably possible change cannot be made.
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15. Stock-Based Compensation

Total stock-based compensation expense consists of the following:

Years Ended 31 March

(Millions of US dollars) 2017 2016 2015

Liability Awards Expense $ 5.4 $ 4.8 $ 33
Equity Awards Expense 9.3 10.3 9.2
Total stock-based compensation expense $ 14.7 $ 15.1 $ 12.5

As of 31 March 2017, the unrecorded future stock-based compensation expense related to outstanding equity awards was US$15.0 million after estimated
forfeitures and will be recognized over an estimated weighted average amortization period of 1.6 years.

2001 Equity Incentive Plan

Under the Company’s 2001 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2001 Plan”), the Company can grant equity awards in the form of nonqualified stock options,
performance awards, restricted stock grants, stock appreciation rights, dividend equivalent rights, phantom stock or other stock-based benefits such as
restricted stock units. The 2001 Plan was first approved by the Company’s shareholders in 2001 and was reapproved to continue until September 2021 at the
2011 annual general meeting. The Company is authorized to issue 45,077,100 shares under the 2001 Plan.

Under the 2001 Plan, grants have been made at fair market value to management and other employees of the Company. Each grant confers the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share in the capital of JHI plc. The grants may be exercised as follows: 25% after the first year; 25% after the second year; and 50%
after the third year. All unexercised grants expire 10 years from the date of issue or 90 days after the employee ceases to be employed by the Company.

As set out in the plan rules, the exercise prices and the number of shares available on exercise may be adjusted on the occurrence of certain events, including
new issues, share splits, rights issues and capital reconstructions.

Under the 2001 Plan, the Company granted 315,636 and 327,354 restricted stock units to its employees in the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016,
respectively. These restricted stock units may not be sold, transferred, assigned, pledged or otherwise encumbered so long as such units remain restricted. The
Company determines the conditions or restrictions of any restricted stock units, which include requirements of continued employment. At 31 March 2017, there
were 619,581 restricted stock units outstanding under this plan.

Long-Term Incentive Plan 2006

At the 2006 Annual General Meeting, the Company’s shareholders approved the establishment of a Long-Term Incentive Plan 2006 (the “LTIP”) to provide
incentives to certain members of senior management (“Executives”). The shareholders also approved, in accordance with certain LTIP rules, the issue of
options in the Company to executives of the Company. At the Company’s 2008 Annual General Meeting, the shareholders amended the LTIP to also allow
restricted stock units to be granted under the LTIP. The LTIP was re-approved by the Company’s shareholders with certain amendments at each of the 2008,
2012 and 2015 Annual General Meetings.
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As of 31 March 2017, the Company had granted 11,027,496 restricted stock units under the LTIP. These restricted stock units may not be sold, transferred,
assigned, pledged or otherwise encumbered so long as such units remain restricted. The Company determines the conditions or restrictions of any restricted
stock awards, which may include requirements of continued employment, individual performance or the Company’s financial performance or other criteria.
Restricted stock units either vest or expire as set out in the grant documents or LTIP rules. At 31 March 2017, there were 2,720,664 restricted stock units
outstanding under the LTIP.

The following table summarizes the Company’s shares available for grant as options, restricted stock units or other equity instruments under the LTIP and 2001
Plan at 31 March 2017, 2016 and 2015:

Shares
Available for

Grant
Balance at 31 March 2015 24,754,902
Granted (1,410,560)
New Shares Authorized 5,000,000
Forfeitures Available for Re-grant i 74,466
Balance at 31 March 2016 28,418,808
Granted _(1,179,994)
Balance at 31 March 2017 27,238,814

Stock Options

There were no stock options granted during the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016. The following table summarizes the Company’s stock options activity
during the noted period:

Outstanding Options

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Number Price (A$)
Balance at 31 March 2015 i 511,780 8.17
Exercised (333,287) 8.54
Forfeited i (74,466) 7.85
Balance at 31 March 2016 . 104,027 7.22
Exercised i (55,131) 7.97
Balance at 31 March 2017 . 48,896 6.38

The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised was A$0.8 million and A$2.9 million for the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Windfall tax benefits realized in the United States from stock options exercised and included in cash flows from financing activities in the consolidated
statements of cash flows were US$3.0 million, US$0.4 million and US$1.4 million for the years ended 31 March 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
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The following table summarizes outstanding and exercisable options under both the 2001 Plan and the LTIP as of 31 March 2017:

Options Outstanding and Exercisable

Weighted Weighted
Average Average Aggregate
Exercise Remaining Exercise Intrinsic
Price (AS) Number Life (in Years) Price (AS) Value (AS)
6.38 48,896 0.7 6.38 693,834

The aggregate intrinsic value in the preceding table represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value based on stock options with an exercise price less than the
Company’s closing stock price of A$20.57 as of 31 March 2017, which would have been received by the option holders had those option holders exercised their
options as of that date.

Restricted Stock Units

The Company estimates the fair value of restricted stock units on the date of grant and recognizes this estimated fair value as compensation expense over the
periods in which the restricted stock vests.

The following table summarizes the Company’s restricted stock unit activity during the noted period:

Weighted
Average Fair
Restricted Value at Grant
Stock Units Date (A$)
Non-vested at 31 March 2015 4,008,001 8.44
Granted 1,410,560 14.95
Vested (1,219,352) 7.28
Forfeited (149,755) 9.92
Non-vested at 31 March 2016 4,049,454 11.00
Granted 1,179,994 18.54
Vested (1,314,825) 8.60
Forfeited (574,378) 9.10
Non-vested at 31 March 2017 3,340,245 14.80

Restricted Stock Units — service vesting

During fiscal year 2017, 315,636 restricted stock units (service vesting) were granted to employees under the 2001 Plan. During fiscal year 2016, 327,354
restricted stock units (service vesting) were granted to employees under the 2001 Plan. The fair value of each restricted stock unit (service vesting) is equal to
the market value of the Company’s common stock on the date of the grant, adjusted for the fair value of estimated dividends as the restricted stock unit holder
is not entitled to dividends over the vesting period.
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During fiscal year 2017, 304,470 restricted stock units (service vesting) that were previously granted as part of the 2001 Plan became fully vested and the
underlying common stock was issued. During fiscal year 2016, 228,481 restricted stock units (service vesting) that were previously granted as part of the 2001
Plan became fully vested and the underlying common stock was issued.

Restricted Stock Units — performance vesting

The Company granted 407,539 and 503,944 restricted stock units with a performance vesting condition under the LTIP to senior executives and managers of
the Company on 16 September 2016 and 16 September 2015, respectively. The vesting of the restricted stock units is deferred for three years and is subject to
a return on capital employed (“ROCE”) performance hurdle being met. The vesting of the restricted stock units is also subject to negative discretion by the
Board. The Board’s discretion will reflect the Board’s judgment of the quality of the returns balanced against management’s delivery of market share growth and
a scorecard of key qualitative and quantitative performance objectives. During fiscal year 2017, after exercise of negative discretion by the Board, 281,468
restricted stock units (performance vesting) that were granted on 16 September 2013 as part of the fiscal year 2014 long-term incentive award became fully
vested and the underlying common stock was issued. The remaining 152,611 unvested restricted stock units from this grant were cancelled on 16 September
2016.

When the Board reviews the awards and determines whether any negative discretion should be applied at the vesting date, the award recipients may receive
all, some, or none of their awards. The Board may only exercise negative discretion and may not enhance the maximum award that was originally granted to the
award recipient.

The fair value of each restricted stock unit (performance vesting) is adjusted for changes in JHI plc’s common stock price at each balance sheet date until the
performance conditions are applied at the vesting date.

Restricted Stock Units — market condition

Under the terms of the LTIP, the Company granted 456,819 and 579,262 restricted stock units (market condition) to senior executives and managers of the
Company on 16 September 2016 and 16 September 2015, respectively. The vesting of these restricted stock units is subject to a market condition as outlined in
the relevant notice of meeting.

The fair value of each of these restricted stock units (market condition) granted under the LTIP is estimated using a binomial lattice model that incorporates a
Monte Carlo simulation (the “Monte Carlo” method). The following table includes the assumptions used for restricted stock grants (market condition) valued
during the year ended 31 March 2017 and 2016, respectively:

Vesting Condition: Market Market
FY17 FYl6

Date of grant 16 Sep 2016 16 Sep 2015
Dividend yield (per annum) 2.3% 3.8%
Expected volatility 31.5% 36.8%
Risk free interest rate 1.1% 1.5%
Expected life in years 3.0 3.0
JHX stock price at grant date (A$) 20.82 17.76
Number of restricted stock units 456,819 579,262
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During fiscal year 2017, 728,887 restricted stock units (market condition) that were previously granted became fully vested and the underlying common stock
was issued. During fiscal year 2016, 659,725 restricted stock units (market condition) that were previously granted became fully vested and the underlying
common stock was issued.

Scorecard LTI — cash settled units

Under the terms of the LTIP, the Company granted awards equivalent to 458,484 and 566,936 Scorecard LTI units on 16 September 2016 and 16 September
2015, respectively. These awards provide recipients a cash incentive based on an average 20 trading-day closing price of JHI plc’s common stock price and
each executive’s scorecard rating. The vesting of awards is measured on individual performance conditions based on certain performance measures.
Compensation expense recognized for awards are based on the fair market value of JHI plc’'s common stock on the date of grant and recorded as a liability. The
expense is recognized ratably over the vesting period and the liability is adjusted for subsequent changes in JHI plc’'s common stock price at each balance
sheet date.

On 16 September 2016, 316,841 of the 518,647 Scorecard LTI units that were previously granted on 16 September 2013 as part of the FY2014 long-term
incentive award became fully vested and the balance lapsed as a result of the Board’s exercise of negative discretion. The cash amount paid to award
recipients was based on an average 20 trading-day closing price of JHI plc’'s common stock price.

On 14 September 2015, 288,552 of the 506,627 Scorecard LTI units that were previously granted on 14 September 2012 as part of the FY2013 long-term
incentive award became fully vested and the balance lapsed as a result of the Board’'s exercise of negative discretion. The cash amount paid to award
recipients was based on an average 20 trading-day closing price of JHI plc’'s common stock price.

16. Capital Management and Dividends

The following table summarizes the dividends declared or paid during the fiscal years 2017, 2016 and 2015:

us USS$ Millions
(Millions of US dollars) Cents/Security Total Amount Announcement Date Record Date Payment Date
FY 2017 first half dividend 0.10 46.6 17 November 2016 21 December 2016 24 February 2017
FY 2016 second half dividend 0.29 130.2 19 May 2016 9 June 2016 5 August 2016
FY 2016 first half dividend 0.09 39.7 19 November 2015 23 December 2015 26 February 2016
FY 2015 special dividend 0.22 92.8 21 May 2015 11 June 2015 7 August 2015
FY 2015 second half dividend 0.27 114.0 21 May 2015 11 June 2015 7 August 2015
FY 2015 first half dividend 0.08 342 19 November 2014 23 December 2014 27 February 2015
FY 2014 special dividend 0.20 89.0 22 May 2014 12 June 2014 8 August 2014
FY 2014 second half dividend 0.32 142.3 22 May 2014 12 June 2014 8 August 2014
125 year anniversary special dividend 0.28 124.6 28 February 2014 21 March 2014 30 May 2014

During the fiscal year 2017, the Company announced a share buyback program (the “fiscal 2017 program”) to acquire up to US$100.0 million of its issued
capital in the twelve months through May 2017. Under this program, the Company repurchased and cancelled 6,090,133 shares of its common stock during the
second quarter of fiscal year 2017. The aggregate cost of the shares repurchased and cancelled was A$131.4 million (US$99.8 million), at an average market
price of A$21.58 (US$16.40).
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Subsequent to 31 March 2017, the Company announced an ordinary dividend of US28.0 cents per security, with a record date of 8 June 2017 and a payment
date of 4 August 2017.

17. Operating Segment Information and Concentrations of Risk

During the first quarter of fiscal year 2017, the Company changed its reportable operating segments. Previously, the Company maintained three operating
segments: (i) North America and Europe Fiber Cement; (ii) Asia Pacific Fiber Cement; and (iii) Research and Development. Beginning in the first quarter of
fiscal year 2017, the Company replaced the North America and Europe Fiber Cement and Asia Pacific Fiber Cement segments with three new segments:
(i) North America Fiber Cement; (ii) International Fiber Cement; and (iii) Other Businesses. There were no changes to the Research and Development segment.
The Company has revised its historical segment information at 31 March 2016 and for the years ended 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015 to be consistent with
the current reportable segment structure. The change in reportable segments had no effect on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash
flows for the periods presented.

The Company has reported its operating segment information in the format that the operating segment information is available to and evaluated by the CODM.
The North America Fiber Cement segment manufactures fiber cement interior linings, exterior siding products and related accessories in the United States;
these products are sold in the United States and Canada. The International Fiber Cement segment includes all fiber cement products manufactured in Australia,
New Zealand and the Philippines, and sold in Australia, New Zealand, Asia, the Middle East (Israel, Kuwait, Qatar and United Arab Emirates) and various
Pacific Islands. This segment also includes product manufactured in the United States that is sold in Europe. The Other Businesses segment includes certain
non-fiber cement manufacturing and sales activities in North America, including fiberglass windows. The Research and Development segment represents the
cost incurred by the research and development centers. General Corporate costs primarily consist of Asbestos adjustments, officer and employee compensation
and related benefits, professional and legal fees, administrative costs and rental expense, net of rental income, on the Company'’s corporate offices.

Operating Segments
The following is the Company’s operating segment information:

Net Sales to Customers
Years Ended 31 March

(Millions of US dollars) 2017 2016 2015

North America Fiber Cement $ 1,493.4 $ 1,335.0 $ 1,224.7
International Fiber Cement 411.8 379.4 418.4
Other Businesses 16.4 13.8 13.8
Worldwide total $ 1,921.6 $ 1,728.2 $ 1,656.9
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Income Before Income Taxes

Years Ended 31 March

(Millions of US dollars) 2017 2016 2015
North America Fiber Cement 1 $ 343.9 $ 3522 $ 290.0
International Fiber Cement 1,6,7 95.1 77.9 94.5
Other Businesses (6.7) (8.6) (4.5)
Research and Development 1 (25.5) (23.9) (26.0)
Segments total 406.8 397.6 354.0
General Corporate 2 (13.6) (43.6) (19.0)
Total operating income 393.2 354.0 335.0
Net interest expense 3 (27.5) (25.6) (7.5)
Other income (expense) 13 2.1 (4.9)
Worldwide total $ 367.0 $ 330.5 $ 322.6
Total Identifiable Assets
31 March
(Millions of US dollars) 2017 2016
North America Fiber Cement $ 917.4 $ 889.7
International Fiber Cement 335.7 324.0
Other Businesses 28.4 27.7
Research and Development 12.3 13.6
Segments total 1,293.8 1,255.0
General Corporate 4.5 718.9 774.4
Worldwide total $ 2,012.7 $ 2,029.4
The following is the Company’s geographical information:
Net Sales to Customers
Years Ended 31 March
(Millions of US dollars) 2017 2016 2015
North America $ 1,509.9 $ 1,348.8 $ 1,238.5
Australia 252.5 228.4 267.7
New Zealand 73.3 61.4 64.7
Other Countries 85.9 89.6 86.0
Worldwide total $ 1,921.6 $ 1,728.2 $ 1,656.9
Total Identifiable Assets
31 March
(Millions of US dollars) 2017 2016
North America $ 953.1 $ 925.1
Australia 237.0 2324
New Zealand 31.8 26.5
Other Countries 71.9 71.0
Segments total 1,293.8 1,255.0
General Corporate 4.5 718.9 774.4
Worldwide total $ 2,012.7 $ 2,029.4
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1 Research and development expenditures are expensed as incurred and are summarized by segment in the following table:

Years Ended 31 March

(Millions of US dollars) 2017 2016 2015
North America Fiber Cement $ 6.2 $ 6.6 $ 6.1
International Fiber Cement 1.5 1.2 1.4
Research and Development a 22.6 21.7 24.2
$ 30.3 $ 29.5 $ 31.7

a The Research and Development segment also included selling, general and administrative expenses of USS$2.9 million, USS2.2 million and US$1.8 million in fiscal years 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

2 The principal components of General Corporate costs are officer and employee compensation and related benefits, professional and legal fees,
administrative costs, and rental expense on the Company’s corporate offices. Also included in General Corporate costs are the following:

Years Ended 31 March

(Millions of US dollars) 2017 2016 2015
Asbestos adjustments $ 404 S 55  § 334
AICF SG&A expenses $ as s 7 s (2.5)
3 The Company does not report net interest expense for each operating segment as operating segments are not held directly accountable for interest

expense. Included in net interest expense is net AICF interest expense (income) of US$1.1 million, US$0.3 million and US$(1.4) million in fiscal
years 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

4 The Company does not report deferred tax assets and liabilities for each operating segment as operating segments are not held directly accountable
for deferred income taxes. All deferred income taxes are included in General Corporate costs.

5 Asbestos-related assets at 31 March 2017 and 2016 are US$573.8 million and US$619.8 million, respectively, and are included in the General
Corporate costs.

6 Included in the International Fiber Cement segment for the year ended 31 March 2016 was a gain on the sale of the Australian Pipes business of
US$1.7 million.

7 Included in the International Fiber Cement segment are adjustments to the provision for New Zealand weathertightness claims.

Years Ended 31 March
(Millions of US dollars) 2017 2016 2015

New Zealand weathertightness claims (expense)/ benefit $ - $ 05) § 43
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Concentrations of Risk

The distribution channels for the Company’s fiber cement products are concentrated. If the Company were to lose one or more of its major customers, there can
be no assurance that the Company will be able to find a replacement. Therefore, the loss of one or more customers could have a material adverse effect on the
Company'’s consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

We have one customer who contributes greater than 10% of our gross sales in each of the past three fiscal years.

This customer’s accounts receivable represented 9.1% and 8.1% of the Company’s accounts receivable at 31 March 2017 and 2016, respectively. The following
is gross sales generated by this customer, which is from the North America Fiber Cement segment:

Years Ended 31 March
(Millions of US dollars) 2017 2016 2015
% % %
Customer A $ 226.0 10.3% $ 197.0 10.1% $ 177.4 10.7%

Approximately 21%, 22% and 25% of the Company’s net sales in fiscal year 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively, were from outside the United States.
Consequently, changes in the value of foreign currencies could significantly affect the consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the
Company’s non-US operations on translation into US dollars.

18. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

During the year ended 31 March 2017 there were no reclassifications out of Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss):

Foreign
Currency
Cash Flow Translation
(Millions of US dollars) Hedges Adjustments Total
Balance at 31 March 2016 $ 0.3 $ 0.5 $ 0.8
Other comprehensive loss - (3.0) (3.0)
Balance at 31 March 2017 $ 0.3 $ 25 s (2.2)
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If you have any questions with respect to the contents of this report, please do not hesitata 1o
COMtact us,

Yours sincaraly

e cgm

Meil Donbevy MA FIA FIAA Jetferson Gibbs BSc FIA FIAA

Executive, KPMG Actuarial Pty Ltd Executive, KPMG Actuarial Pty Lid

Fellow of the Institute of Actuanes (London)  Fallow of the Institute of Actuaries (London)
Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries of Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries of
Australia Australia

0 T KPWAG Acsuaial Py Lich i afilria of KA. PG i an Auioslar: s inondogs mnd oo ferm of o KIPWAG natworlt of indiepeccierd morrbos fires afflsied wif
[ — TG ", 8 Swien onity. Alligfon romervocl, The K rarre, koo and "custting sheaugh compleuiry” ses rogiuserad
Ieamierrarts of KPRAC ivateegonsl Loty iryshodi by # mcheeng sromoved urede Potessons it Ui



EXecutive Summary

Important Note: Bases of Report

This valuation report (“the Report”) has been prepared by KPMG Actuarial Pty Lud (ABN 91 144 686
0461 (" KPMG Actuarial”) in accordence with an “Amended and Restated Final Funding Agreement in
raspect of the proavision of longterm funding for compensation arrangements for cemain wictims of
Asbestos-related diseases in Australia” (hereafter referred to as the “the Amended Final Funding
Agresment”) between James Hardie Industries NY inow known as James Hardie Industries plel
(hereafter referred to as “James Hardie®), James Hardie 117 Py Limited, the State of New South
Wales and Asbastos Injunies Compensation Fund Limited [ AICFL™ ) which was signed on 21 November
2006.

This Report is intended to meet the requirements of the Amended Final Funding Agreement and values
the asbestos-ralated disease liabilities of the Liable Entities to be met by the AICF Trust,

This Report is not intended 1o be used for any ather purpese and may not be suitable, and should nat
be used, for any other purpase. Opinions and estimates contaimed in the Report constitute our judgment
as of the date of the Report.

The information contained i this Report is of a general nature and is not intended 1o address the
objectives, financial situation or needs of any particular individual or antity. It is provided for information
purposes only and does not constitute, nos should it be regarded in any manner whatsoever as, advice
and is not intended to influence a person in making a decision in relation to any financial product or an
interest in a financial product. Mo ane should act on the information comained in this Report without
obtaining appropriate professional advice after a thorough examination of the accuracy and
appropristeness of the information contained in this Report having regard 10 their objectives, financial
situation and needs.

In preparing the Report, KPMG Actuarial has relied on information supplied to it from various sources
and has assumad that the information is accurate and complete in all material respects. KPMG Actuarial
has not independently verified the accuracy of completeness of the data and information used for this
Report.

Except insofar as lisbility under statute cannot be excleded, KPMG Actuarial, its executives, directors,
omployees and agents will not be held liable for any loss or damage of any kind arising as a consequence
of any use of the Report or purported reliance on the Report including any errors in, or omissions from,
the valuation models,

The Report must be read n its entirety. Individual sections of the Report, including the Executive
Summary, could be misleading if considered in isclation, In particular, the opinions expressed in the
Report are based on a number of assumptions and qualifications which are set out in the full Report.




It resgluc teon

The Amended Final Funding Agreement requires the completion of an Annual Actuanal Report
evaluating the potential asbestos-related disease liabilities of the Lisble Entities 1 be met by the AICF
Trust. KPMG Actuanial has been retained by AICFL to prowide this Annual Actuanial Report as required
under the Amended Final Funding Agreement and this is detailed in gur Engagement Letter dated 24
Movamber 2016,

The Lighbe Entities are defined as being the following entities:

= Amaca Pty Ltd lformerly Jamas Hardie & Coy);

= Amaba Pty Ltd (formerly Jsekark, James Hardie Brakes and Better Brakes), and

= ABNBO Pty Lid {formerly James Hardie Industries Lid).

In addition, the liability for Baryulgil claims is deemed 1o be a liability of Amaca by virtue of the James
Hardie (Civil Liability) Act 2005 (NSWI. Under Part 4 of that Act, Amaca is liable for the "Marlew
Asbestos Claims” or “Marlew Contribution Claims” as defined in that Act.

Our valuation is on a central estimate basis and is ntendad to ba effective as at 31 March 2017. It has
beeen based on claims data and information as at 31 March 2017 provided 1o us by AICFL.
Overview of Recent Claims Experience and comparison with pressous valuation projections

Ini this section we compare the actual experience in 201617 (referred to in the following tables as
“F¥17 Actual®) with the projections for 201617 that were contained within our previous valuation
report at 31 March 2016, We will refer 1o these projections for 2016117 as "FY17 Expected” in the
tables that follow.

Claim numbers.

There have been 373 mesothelioma claims reported in 201617, a 6% decrease compared to the 397
mesothelioma claims reported in 201516 and 7% below expectations for 201617

For non-mesathelioma claims (excluding workers compensation claims), there have been 158 claims
reported in 2016117, a 5% ncrease comparad 1o 161 claims repodted in 2015/16.

The following table shows the comparison of actual experience with that which had been forecast at
the: previous valuation,




Table E.1, Comparison of claim numbars

EY1T Ratio of
FY1T Actual Actualte  FY16 Actual
Expected =
Expacted
(%)
Mesathelioma | | 397
Asbestosis | e | 10 | e %
Lung Cancer 18 24 | % 19
ARPD & Other il % | BG% k1l
Wharf 11 12 | 2% 11
Workers R 3 | % - -
Total 557 625 | BI% 577

Avarage Claim Awards

Avarage clams awands n 200617 have been lower than expectations across all disease types.

There have been two large mesotheborma claim settliements being clasms in excess of $1m in 200607
rngney 1ermsh in 20061 7, This is sgnificantly lwer than our expectations., Total claims expenditure on
large claims has baan B2% bilow expectations, mflec:mg e lovew murmbeer of large clims feported dod
satiled wy 20161 7.

The followang table shows the companison of actual experience with that which had been lorecast at
the privious valuation,

Table E.2, Companigon of average claim size of normnil claims

S Ratio of
FY17T Actual Expected Actual to FY16 Actual
Expeacted
() (s) (%) is)
Lung Cancer | 40708 137500 | 30% 120,991
ARPD & Other 94,575 100500 | 84% 105,908
Whar | 36308 12100 | 32% 140,165
\Workers | 156000 | 0% 0
Mesathelioma Large
Claims (settled)
|_N.I|-r|mr e ..._.g —e __q SUSETGTITE I i W
Average claim size | 1.637,500 | 2,260,000 72% 3,296.800
claim -
Lane g | 3275000 | 18080000 |  18% 9,890,400

Mote: FY16 Actuals have bean inflated by 4% to mid 201617 values



Caszhilow expendilure: gross and net
Gross cashflow expenditure, at $125.0m, was 26% below expectations,
Mat cashflow expenditure, at $12.2)m, was 102% below expactations.

Table E.3. Comparison of caghfiow

EY4T Ratio of

FY17 Actual Actualto  FY16 Actual

Expected
poce Expected

($M) ($M) (%) ($M)

Gross Cashflow 125.0 T4% 154.7
Insurance and Other

R i (22.3) (20.3) 110% (23.7)
Insurance recoveries

from HIH and from (105.0) 0.0 na 2.0)
commuiations

Net Cashflow (2.2) 147.7 -2% 129.0

Gross cashflow was lower than expactations primarily due to the lower average claim size of non-nil,
non-kange claims which were 24% below expectations for mesothehoma and 36% below expectations
for asbestosis, together with lower expenditure on large mesothelioma claims, which were $15m
fawourable o expectations,

Met cashilow was beneficially impacted by commutation proceads arising from the Equitas
Commutation in the amount of $105.0m.
Liability Assessment

At 31 March 2007, our projected central estmate of the labilities of the Liable Entrties (the Discounted
Central Estimate] to be met by the AICF Trust is $1,740.1m (March 2016: 1,904 1m). We have not
allowwed for the future Operating Expenses of the AICF Trust or the Liable Entities in the lability
B58088MENT,

Table E.4. Comparison of central estimate of liabdlities

3 March 2017

Gross of Het of Met af
FECOVEriés | recoveries | recoveries recoveries
Totad uninfiated and
ried cash. 14676 AR 12867 14338
Inflation allowance B43.0 290 a14.0 SH3.0
Tolal nflaled and
i eaahd 231086 1109 21907 24269
Discounting allowance (480.8) 21.4) (459.8) (522.8)
Net present value
liabilities 18207 89.5 1.740.1 1,904




Comparison with previous valuation

Ini the absence of any change 1o the claim projection assumptions from our 31 March 2016 valuation,
other than allowing for the changes in the discount rate, we would heve projected a Discounted Central
Estimate lability of $1,.789.6m as at 31 March 2017, Le. a reduction of $114.5m frem our 31 March
2016 valuation resuli,

This decrease of $114.5m is due 10;

= A reduction of $111.7m, being the net impact of expecied claims paymenis {which reduce the
fabilityd and the "unwind of discount™ (which increases the [ability and reflects the fact that
cashflows are now one year nearer and therefore are discounted by one year less).

* A reduction of $2.8m resulting from changes 1o the yield curve between 31 March 2016 and 31
March 2017,

Ouwr liabulity assessmeant at 31 March 2017 of $1,740.1m represents a dacrease of $49.5m, which arises
from changes to the actuarial assumptions, The decrease of $49 5m is principally a consequence of:

=  Lower average claim sizes and defence legal cost assumptions across most disease types;
= Areduction in tha assumed number of large mesotheboma claims; and

= Lower claims inflation assumplons in the knger-tenm;

offset by

= Lower future insUrance recoveries as a result of the Equitas Commutation.

The following chart shews an analysis of the change in our liability assessmaents from 31 March 2016
to 31 March 2017 on a discounted basis.

Figure E.1. Analysis of change in central estimate liability (dizcounted basis)
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Amended Final Funding Agreement calculations

The Amended Final Fundmg Agreement sets out the bases on which payments will be made to the AICF
Trust,

Additionally, there are a number of other figures specified within the Amended Final Funding
Agreement that we are required to calculate. These ara:

= Discounted Central Estimate;

= Term Central Estamate; and

»  Period Actuarial Estimate,

Table E.5. Amended Final Funding Agreenent calculatons

Digcounted Central Estmate (nel of Cross-claim recovenss,

Insurance and Other Recoveries) A |

Penod Actuarial Estimate (et of cross-claim recovenies,
gross of hsuranice ang Other Recoveries) comprsing: | " |
Discounted valus of cashfiowin 201718 1516

4828 |

Discounted value of cashiiowin 204845 106.8'

Discounted value of cashfiowin 207520 1644
Term Central Esbmate (net of cross-claim recoveries, 17315
Insurance and Other Recoveries) ! )

The actual funding amount dua at a particular date will depend wpon a numbeer of factors, including:
s thae net asset position of the AICF Trust at that tima;
= the free cash flow amount of the James Hardie Group in the preceding financial year; and

= the Period Actuanal Estimate in the latest Annual Actuarial Report,

Uncartainty

Estimates of asbestos-related disease lisbilties are sulyect to considerable uncertainty, significantly
mora than personal injury lisbilities in relation to other causes, such as CTP or Workers Compensation
claims.

It should therefore be expected that the actual SMEergence of the habilites wall wlry from any estumate.
As indicated in Figure E.2, depending on the actual out-turn of experience relative to that currently
forecast, the variation could potentially be substantial,

Thus, no essurance can be given that the actual liabilities of the Liable Entities to be met by the AICF
Trust will not ulimately exceed the estimates contamed i this Report. Any such vanation may be
significant.

We have performed sensitivity testing to identify the impact of different assumptions upon the size of
the Eabilites, The diffarent scenarios selectad are documented at Section 11,2 of this report.




We have not included a sensitivity test for the impact of changes in discount rates although, as noted
in this Report, changes in discount ratas can introduce significant volatility to the Discounted Central
Estimate result reported at each year-end,

We note that these sensitivity test ranges are not intended to correspond to a specified probability of
sufficiency, nos are they intended 1o indicate an upper bound or a lower bound of all possible autcomes,

Figure E.2. Sensitivity testing results — Impact arcund the Discounted Contral Estimate (in Sm)
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The single mast sensitive assumption shown in the chan is the timing of the peak period of claims
raporimg against the Lisble Entities. Shifting the assumed perod of peak claims reparting by a further
2 years for mesothelioma (i.e. assuming that claim reporting begins to reduce after 2018/159) tegether
with increased clams reporting from 2026727 onwards relative to current actuanial projections, could
add approcimately $600m (34%] on a discounted basis to our valuation {as shown in the abowve chart
by the scanaro labelled “masothalioma incidence pattern (2)").

Tablie E_6. Summary results of sensitivity analysis {Sm)

Central esmate 2,199.7 17401
Low Scendario 1,570.8 12793
High Scenario 4,496.0 32488

Whilst the table above indicates a range around the discounted central estimate of habilities of -$461m
to +51.609m, the actual cost of lisbilties could fall outside that range depending on the actual
AxpETIEnce,




Data, Reliances and Limitations
We have been provided with the following data by AICFL:
= Clams dataset at 31 March 2017 with indnadual claims listings;

= Accounting transactions dataset at 31 March 2017 (which includes individual claims payment
details); and

= Detaled insurance bordereaux information (being a isting of claims filed with the msuress of the
Liable Entities) produced by Randall & Quilter Investmant Holdings as at 31 March 2017,

Whila we have tested tha consistency of tha various data sets provided, we have not otherwise verified
the data nor have we undertaken any auditing of the data at sowrce. We have relied on the data provided
&3 being complete and accurate in all material respects, Consequently, should there be material errors
or incompleteness in the data, our assessment could be affected materially.

Executive Summary Not Report

Please note that this executive summary is intended as & brief overview of our Report. To properly
understand aur analysis and the basis of our liability assessmaent requares examination of aur Repert in
full.
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SCOpe and Purpose

Intreduction

The Amended Final Funding Agreement requires tha completion of an Annual Actuarial Repart
avaluating the potential ashestos-related disease liabiities of the Liable Entities to be met by
the AICF Trust,

Liable Entitses

The Liable Entities are definred as being the following entitias:

= Amaca Pry Lwd {formerly James Hardia & Coyl:

= Amaba Pty Ltd (formerly Jsekarb, James Hardie Brakes and Better Brakes); and

*  ABNBO Py Lid {formerly James Hardie Industries Lid).

Im addition, the kability for Baryulgil claims is deemed 1o be a liability of Amaca by viriue of the
Jamas Hardie (Civil Liability) Act 2005 (NSW). Undar Part 4 of that Act, Amaca is liable for
“Marlew Asbestos Claims” or “Marlew Contribution Claims ™ as defined in that Act.

Personal asbestos claims

Under the Amended Final Funding Agreement, the labdities to be met by the AICF Trust relate
to parsonal ashestos-related disease lishilities of the Liable Entities,

Such claims must relate 1o exposure which tock place in Australia and which have been
brought in & Court in Australia,

The pracise scope of the liabdities is documented in Section 1.2 and in Appendix F of this
Report.

Purposa of report

KPMG Actuarial has been retained by AICFL to provide an Annual Actuarial Report as required
under the Amended Final Funding Agreement and 1his is detailed in our Engagement Letter
dated 24 Movember 2016.

The prior written consent of KPMG Actuarial is required for any other use of this Repon or the
infarmation containad in it.

Owr valuation is effective as at 31 March 2017 and has been based on claims data and
information as at 31 March 2017 provided 1o us by AICFL,




Scope of report

Wi hawe been requested to provide an actuarial assessment as at 31 March 2017 of the
b -related di liabifities of the Liable Entities to be met by the AICF Trust,
consistant with the tarms of the Amended Final Funding Agreemant.

The assessment is on & central estimate basis and is based on the claims experience as at 31
March 201 7.

A “central estimate” lisbility assessmeant is an estimate of the expected value of the range of
potential future abality outcomes. In other wards, if all the pessible values of the habilites are
expressed a5 a statistical distribution, the cantral estimate is an estimate of the mean of that
distribution.

It 15 of nate that our liability assessment:

L Relates to the Liable Entities and Marlew (in relation to Marlew Clamms arising fram
asbestos mining activities at Baryulgil).

. Is mtended to covar:
—~  The amount of settlerments, judgments or awards for all Personal Asbestos Claims.

- Claims Legal Costs incurred by the AICF Trust in connection with the settlement of
Personal Asbestos Claims.

= I3 not intended to cowver:

= Personal injury or death claims arising from exposura to asbestos which took place
outside Australia,

=~ Personal njury or death claims, ansing from axposure 1o Asbestos, which are
brought in Courts outsida Australia.

- Claims for economic loss, ether than any economic loss forming part of an award
for damagas for personal injury andfor death,

- Claims for loss of property, including those relating to land remediation.

- The costs of asbestos or asbestos product removal relnting 1o #50es10s or ashastos
products manufactured or wsed by or on behalf of the Liable Entites,

= Includes an alowance for:

= Compensation to the NSW Dust Diseases Board or a Workers Compensation
Scheme by way of a claim by such parties for contribution or reimbursement from
the Liable Entities, but only to the extent that the cost of such claims is within tha
limits of funding for such claims as outlined within the Amended Final Funding
Agreament.

- Workers Compansation claims, baing claims from former employeas of the Liable
Entities, but only to the extent that such habilives are not met by a Workars
Compensation Scheme or Policy {see section 1.2.1).

*  Assumes that the product and public Rability insurance policies of the Liabla Entitias will
continuee to respond to claims as and when they fall due. We have not made any




allowance for the impact of any disputation concerning Insurance Recoveries, nor for any
legal costs that may ba incurrad in resolving such disputaes,

= Makes no allowance for:

= potential Insurance Recoveries that could be made on product and public liability
insurance pobces placed from 1986 omwands which were placed on a “claims
made” basis.

- the future Operating Expenses of the Liable Entities or the AICF Trust, Separate
allowanca for future Operating Expensas should be considered by the management
of AICFL.

= the inherent uncerainty of the kability assessment. That is, no additional provisaon
lor risk margin) has baen included in excess of a8 central estimate.

Readers of this Repert may refer to our previous reports which are available
at www.ir jameshardie.com.au and www.aicf.org.au.

Wiorkers Compensation

Workers Compensation claims are claims made by former amployees of the Lishle Entities.
Such past, current and future reported claims wera insured with, amangst others, Allianz
Australia Limited, OBE and the varicus State-based Workers Compensation Schemes.

Under the Amended Final Funding Agreement, the part of a future Workers Compensation
claim that is met by a Workers Compensation Scheme or Policy of the Liabde Entitias is
outside of the AICF Trust, The AICF Trust is, howewver, 10 provide for any part of a claim not
covered by a Workars Compansation Schame or Policy le.g. as a result of the existence of
limits of incemnity and policy deductibles on those policies of insurance).

On this basis our habiity assessmaent m relation o Workers Compensation claims and which
relates to the AICF Trust, includes only the amount borne by the Liable Entities in excess of
the anticipated recoveries due from a Werkers Compensation Scheme or Policy.

Im making our assessment we have assumed that the Workers Compensation imsurance
programme will contnug to respond to claims by former employees of the Lisble Entites as
and whan they fall due. To the extant that they were not to respond owing to (say) insurer
insetvency, Insurer Guarantes Funds may be available 1© meet such obligations,

Dust Disease Board and Other Reimbursements

There exists a right under Section BE (Reimbursement Provisions) of the Dust Diseases Act
1942 for the NSW Dust Diseases Board ("DDBT) to recover certain costs from common law
defendants, excleding the employer of the claimant.

This companant of cost is implicitly included within our liability assessment as the claims
awards made in recent perods and in recent settlements contam allowance for DDB
resmbursement where applicable. Furthermore, currently reported open claims have an
allpwvance within their case estimates for the costs of DDB reimbursement where relevant
and applicable.

The Amended Final Funding Agreement indicates that the AICF Trust is intended to meet
Parsonal Asbestos Claims and that claims by the DDB or a Workers Compensation Schama




for resmbursement will only be met up to a cerain specified limit {aggregated across the DDB
and Workers Compensation Schames), being:

*  In the first financial year (2006/07] a limit of $750,000 applied;

= Inrespect of each financial year thereafter, that limit is indexed annually in ling with the
Consumar Price Index. At 31 March 2017, the annual limit is $871,170;

*  There is an ovarall unindexed aggregate cap of $30m;

= AL 31 March 2017, AICF has paid out $8,523992 to the DDB, Additionally, there are
approximataly $2.5m of unpaid claims at 31 March 2017; the pace of payment of which
would be subject 10 the impact of the annual limit.

The cashflow and lability figures contaned within this Report have already removed that
component of any reimbursements that will not be met by the MICF Trust owing to the
application of these limits and caps,

Baryulgil (" Marlew Cliams ™)

“Marlew Asbestos Claims™ and “Marlew Contribution Claéms™ are deemed to be liabilities of
Arnaca. These claims specifically include:

#  Claims made against Amaca Pty Lid or ABNGO resulting from their past ownership of the
mina; and, n the case of Amaca, includes claims made in relaton to the jont vanture
{Asbestos Mines Pty Lidl established with Wunderlich in 1944 1o begin mining at
Baryulgl,

+  Claims made against the subsequent owner of the mine (following its sale by James
Hardie Industries to Woodsreef in 1976], being Marlew Mining Pty Ltd (" Marlew") which
ig in liguidation, are to be met by the AICF Trust except where such claims are Excluded
Marlew Claims, which are recowarable by the Claimant from other sources.

These claims are discussed further in Section 5.7,

Risk hargins

Australisn-licensed insurance companies are required to hold, and many non-insurance
companias elect to hold, insurance and seli-insurance claims provisions at a level above the
central estimate basis 1o reflect the uncentainty attaching 10 the Eability assessment and to
incluede an allbwance in respect of that uncertainty.

A risk margin is an additional amount held, above the ceniral estimate, so as o increase the
likalihood of adequacy of the provisions to meet the ultimate cost of settlement of thosa
liabilities.

W note that the Amended Final Funding Agreement envisages the ongoing financing of the
AICF Trust is to be based on a "central estimate™ approach and that the Annual Actuarial
Report should provide a Discounted Central Estmate valuation.

Accordingly, we have made no allowance for any risk margins within this Repart.




Discounting
W have determined a Discounted Central Estimane in this Report by discounting (to 31 March
2017) the projected future cashflows using yields on Commonwealth Government Bonds.

Conceptually, the Discounted Central Estimate at 31 March 2017 would normally represent
an amount of money which, if fully provided in advance [i.e. as of 31 March 2017) and invested
in risk-free assets (such as Commonwealth Government Bonds) of term and currency
appropriate 1o the lisbilities, would generate the necessary investrent income such that
(together with the capital value of those assets) it would be expected 10 be sufficient to pay
for the liabilities as they fall due.

To the extent that the actual investments are:
= of differant terms; and/or

= in different currancias; andior

= provide different expected rates of return
invastmeant profits or losses would emerge.

One of the uncertainties in our valuation is the fact that fixed interest Commonwealih
Government Bonds do not exist at most of the durations of our cashflow projection,

This means we need 1o take a long-tarm view on bond yields that is not measured by market-
abservable rates of return,

We note that the actual funding mechanism under the Amended Final Funding Agreement
only provides for up to three years’ worth of projected Claims and Claims Legal Costs
expenditure and one year's worth of Operating Expenses at any one time.

Areas of potential exposure

As identified in Section 1.2, thera are other potential sources of claims exposure beyond those
directly considered within this Report. However, in a number of cases they are unguantifiable
even if they have the potential to generate claims. This is especially the case for those sources
of future claim where there has been no evidence of claims to date.

General sreas of potental expasure

Areas of potantial changes in claims exposure we have not exphcitly allowed for in our
valuation include, but are not limited to:

= Future significant individual landmark and precedent-setting judicial decisions;
+  Significant madical advancements;

*  Unampasred claims, e, claims for fear, stress, pure nenvous shock of psychologcal
illnesas. In this regard, we note the 2010011 decisions by the Suprerne Court {in relation
1o two coses: Tamaresis v Amacs and Galea v Amacal which indicated that the AICF
Trust was not required to meet the cost of nervous shock claims brought by individuals
wha have not been exposed 10 asbestos;




1.3.2

= A change in the basis of compensation for asymptomatic plawral plagques for which no
associated physical impairment is exhibited;

= A proliferation (compared to past and current levels of activity) of “thisd-wawe™ claims,
L@, claims ansing as a result of indirect axposure such as home renovation, washing
clothes of family members that worked with asbestos, or from workers involved in the
removal of asbestos or the demalibon of buildings contaming ashestas;

+  Changes in legislation, especially those relating to ton reform for asbestos sufferers,
Examplas include the amendments wnder the Wrangs Act in Victora (as noted in Secton
1,33 of this Repor) and the current consultation by the Law Reform Commission in
Wastern Australia in relation to damages for gratuitous sarvices and provisional damages;

= Introduction of new, or elimination of exsting, heads of damage;

= Exemplary and aggravated or punitive damages [being damages awarded for personal
injuries caused as a result of megligence or reckless conduct);

+  Changes in the basis of apportonment of swards for asbestos-related diseases for
claimants who have smoked twe note the dacisions in Amaca v Eilis [2010] HCA 5 and
Evans v Quaanbeyan City Councl! [2010] NSWDDT 7 which we understand are
consistent with the pravious decision in Judd v Amacs [2002] NSWDDT 256);

+  Changes to taxation; and

+  Future bankruptces of other asbestos claim defendants (le. other kable manufacturers
or distributors).

Monetheless, implicit allowance is made in respect of some of these itemns in the allowance
Im&upﬂimposed inflation included in our Bability assessment. Furthermore, 1o the extent that
some of these have emerged in past claims experience, they are reflected in our projections.

Mew Zealand and olher oversess exposures

We have made no allowance for the risk of funther developrmaent in relation 1o New Zealand
exposuras and the rights of claims from New Zealand claimants in Australian courts (as par
Frost v Amaca [2005), NSWDDT 36 although this decision was successfully sppealed by
Amaca in August 2006} nor for the risk of additional exposures from overseas. This is bacause,
as noted in Section 1.2, the AICF Trust is not required 1o maet the cost of these claims as
they are Excluded Claims.

In relation to claimants where exposures have imvolved more than ane country (e.g. UK and
Australial, we have assumed that the AICF Trust will only maet that part of the cost which is
attributable to the Australian-related exposure.

Victoran amendments to the Wrongs Aot

In 2015, the State of Victena implemented amendments to the Wrongs Act ithe Wrongs
Amendment Act 2015) to incorporate the payment of Swiiven vs Gordon ewards. These
amendmaents came inte force on 19 Novembar 2015,
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The Department of Justice and Regulation of Victoria made amendments to the Regulations
that apply to Dust Diseasas, namaly the Wrongs (Part VB) (Dust and Tobacco-Related Clasms)
Regulations 2006,

‘We have been adwised that the effect of the vanous amendments is that from 10 May 2016,
the AICF Trust has been reguired to pay for Suffvan vs Govdon awards (to the extent
apphcablel in relation to claims brought against the Liable Entities in Victoria,

Such swards constitute Payable Liabilities under the Amended Final Funding Agreemant.

We have therefore made allowance for these awards in our valuation, We have allowed for
such amounts over all future years over which claims are projected to amargs and settle.

Owr allowance, being $20,000 per mesothelioma claim in 201617 money terms, has added
the {O"DWIHQ values to the ovaerall Babilives that are included in this Report:

= $57m on an uninflated & undiscounted basis,
+  $9d4m on an inflated & undiscounted basis.

= §73m on an inflated & discountad basis,

Third-wave claims

Wie have made allowance for so-called “third-wave” claims. These are defined as claims for
personal injury and / or death arising from asbestos expesure during home renovations by
individuals or o builders involved in such renovations. Such claims are allowed for within the
projections 1o the extent 10 which they have ansen o date and 10 the extent our exposure
model factors in these exposures in its projection.

We have not allewed for a significant additional surge in third-wave claims (over and above
currant levels of activityl in the future arising from renovations, but conversaly we have not
allowed for a tempering of thase third-wawe claims already included within our projection as
aresult of mproved education of individuals as to the nsks of such home renavations, of of
any bocal Councils or State Governmenis passing laws in this regard.

It should be noted that claims for the cost of asbestos or asbestos preduct remeoval from
homes and proparties or any claims for economic loss arising from asbestos or asbesios
products being within such homes and properties 1s rot required 1o be met by the AICF Trust.

Data reliances and limitations

KPMG Actuarial has relied upon the accuracy and complatensess of the data with which it has
been prowided. KPMG Actuarial has not verified the accuracy or completeness of the data,
alfthough we have undertaken steps to test its consistency with data previously received.
However, KPMG Actuarial has placed reliance on the data previously received, and currently
provided, as being accurate and complete in all material respects.

Uncertainty

It must be understood that astimates of ssbestos-related disease labilities are subject to
considerable uncartainty.




This is due to the fact that the ultimate disposition of future claims will be subject 1o the
outcome of ewents that have not yet occurred. Examples of these avents, as noted in Section
1.3, include jury decisions, court interprélations, legislative changes, epidemiological
developmants, medical adwancements, public attitudes, potential additional third-wave
exposures and social and economic conditions such as inflation,

Therefora, it should be expected that the actual emergance of the liabilities will vary, perhaps
materially, from any estimate, Thus, no assurance can be given that the actual liabiities of the
Liabbe Entities to be met by the AICF Trust will not ultimately exceed the estmates contained
hesein, Any such veriation may be significant.

Distribution and use

The purposa of this Report is as stated in Section 1.1,

This Report should not be used for any purpose other than those specified.

This Report will be provided 1o the Board and management of AICFL. This Repart will also be

providad to the Board and management of James Hardia, the MSW Government and to Ernst
& Young m thes capacity 88 suditors to both James Hardse and AICFL.

We understand that this Report will be filed with the ASX and placed on James Hardse's
‘website in its entirety.

Woe understand that this Report will also be placed on AICFL's website in its entirety.

KPMG Actuarial consents to this Report being made available to the above-mentioned parties
and for the Aeport to be distributed in the manner described above.

To the extent permitted by law, neither KPMG Acwearial nor its Executives, directors or
amployess will be responsible to any third parties for the consequences of any actions they
take based upon the epinons expressed with this Repest, including any use of or purported
refiance upan this Report not contemplated in Section 1.2. Any raliance placad is that party's
sole responsbility.

Where distribution of this Report is permitted by KPMG Actuanal, the Report may only be
distributed in its entirety and judgements about the conclusions and comments diawn from
this Report should only be made after considering the Report in its entirety and with necessary
consultation with KPMG Actuarial.

Readers ane also advised 1o refer to the “Important Note: Basis of Report” section at the front
of the Executive Summary of this Repart.

Date labelling convention used in this Report

In our analyses thioughout this Report (unbess otherwise stated), the “year” we reler o aligns
with the financial year of AICFL and James Hardie and runs from 1 April to 31 March.

A" 2008" notified claim would be a claim notified in the period 1 Apal 2008 to 31 March 2009,
This might also be referred to as “2008/09" or "FY0@".

Sirnilarty, 8 “2016" claim settlement would be a claim settled in the peried 1 April 2016 to 31
March 201 7. This might also be refesred 1 as "2016M1 7% or “FY17°.




1.1

Author of the repon

This Report is authored by Meil Donlevy, an Executive of KPMG Actuarial Pty Lid, a Felfow of
the Insttute of Actuaries (London) and a Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries of Australia,

This Report is co-authored by Jetferson Gibbs, an Executive of KPMG Actuarial Pty Ltd, a
Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries (London) and a Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries of
Australia,

Im relation to this Report, the primary regulator for both Meil Donlevy and Jefferson Gibbs is
the Institute of Actuanes of Australia,

Professional standards and compliance

This Report details a waluation of the outstanding claims habilities of entities which hold
liabilities with features similar to general insurance liabidities as self-insured entities, and which
have purchased related insurance protection.

In preparing this Report, we have complied with the Professional Standard 300 of the Institute
of Actuaries of Australia [*PS300"), “Valuation of Genaral Insurance Claims™.

However, as we note in Section 1.2, this Report does not include an allowance for the future
Operating Expensaes of the AICF Trust (which are estimated by AICFL] and nor does it include
any allowance for a risk margsn to reflect the inherant uncartainty in the liability assessment.

Control processes and review

This valuation report and the underlying analyses have been subject 10 technical review and
internal peer raview.

The technical review focuses on ensuring that the valuation models and supporting claims
axperiance analysas that are carred out are parformed correctly and that the calculations are
heing correctly applied, The 1echnical review also focuses on ensuring that the data that is
being usad has bean reconciled insofar as possibla.

Internal peer review involves a review of the approach, the methods, the assumptions
selocted and the professional judgments applied.

Both the technical review and internal peer review processes are applied to the Report as
wall as the valuation models,

Funding position of the AICF Trust

This Report does not analyse nor provide any opinion on the current, or prospective, funding
position of the AICF Trust, nor of its likely funding needs and its potential use of the loan
facility provided by the NSW Government.

This is because to do so within this Report would require consideration, estimation and
decumentation of the future financial performance of James Hardia.

This Report only provides analysis and opinion on the estimates of the future expenditure to
be rat by the AICF Trust,




The cashflow estimates contained in this Report assume that all claims against the Liable
Entitias will continue 1o ba paid in full as and whan they fall dua.

1.12  Basis of preparation of Report

W have boen advised by the management of AICFL w prepare the Report on a "going
concarn” basis {i.e. we should assume that AICFL will be able 10 meat any shortfall in the
cost of the Rabilities of the Liable Entities as they fall due).
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Data provided to KPMG Actuarial

W have been provided with the following data by AICFL:
= Claims dataset at 31 March 2017 with individual claims listings,

*  Accounting transactions dataset at 31 March 2017 twhich includes individual claims
payment details); and

+  Detailed insurance bordereaux information (baing a listing of claims fled with the insurers
of tha Liable Entities) produced by Randall & Quilter Investment Haldings as at 31 March
2m7.

We have allowed for the benefits of the product and public Eability insurance policies of the
Liabde Entitias based on information provided to us by AICFL relating to the insurance
programme’s structune, coverage and layers,

We have also considered the claims data kstings which formed the basis of our previous
wvaluation assessments.

The data structures for the claims and accounting databases provicded to us by AICFL as of 31
March 201 7 ara detailed in Appendix E.

Data limitations
W have tested the consistency of the varous data sets provided to us at different valuation
dates. Section 2.3 outlings the nature of the testing undertaken.

However, wa have not otherwise verified the data and have instead reled on the data
providad as being complete and accurate in all material respects.

Wie have relied upon the robustness of AICFL"s internal administration and systems as to the
completeness of the data provided,

Consequently, should there be material errors or incompleteness in the data, our assessment
could also be affected materially,

Data reconciliation and testing

We hawe performed a reconciliation of the data provided at 31 March 2017 with the data
provided at 31 March 2016,

Wie have undertaken a number of tests and reconciliations 1o test the accuracy of the data to
the extent possible, noting the limitations outlined above.
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Reconciliation with previous valuaton®s data

W have performed a reconciliaton of the clams database as at 31 March 2017 with that
provided at 31 March 2016,

Ouwr findings are:

+  Claima notifications: There were no new claimsa reportad that hed a report date prios to
31 March 2016. No claims changed notification date between the two databases.

= Portfolio categony: Four claims changed category. All of these related to claims reported
in 2015/16.

»  Sattlemant date: There have been twa claims with a settlement date prior to 31 March
2016 that changed settlement dates,

Changing and developing data is net unexpected of fo be considered as adverse. Indeed,
changing data is common to all claims administration systems. We do not consider the
number or extent of the changes noted abowe 10 be unreasonable, nor do we consider the
changes to be material to the valuation.

Reconciliation of claims settlernant amounts between claims and accounting databases
The accounting database exiract contains the following fields:

=  Damages — which are gross of cross-claim recoverias;

= Cosls;

*  DDB reimbursements;

#  Other costs;

= Payments to Madicare; and

+  Defence legal costs.

The claims database extract contains the following fialds:

= Damages - which in some cases are net of cross-claim recoveries, and which in others
are gross of cross-claim recoveries. We are able to identify which records are gross of
cross-claims recovenes and which records are net of cross-claim recovenes. We have
then restated all damages data to be gross of cross-claim recoveries;

+ Costs;

= DODB reimbursements,

= Other costs (Consulting costs and payments to Medicare), and
*  Defence legal costs.

‘Wie heve mapped the financial data between the two databases into standardised groupings
a5 follows:




Table 2.1: Grouping of financial data from claims and accounting databases

pocard Outabise) |Medicare
|

Costs | Oer database) |Costs pius Consulting
i

\Defence logal cosis | Detence legal cosls. Imw«*

Note: Recovery amaunis arg gvailablg from the accounting database
We have compared the payment records between the claims database and the accounting
database from the earliest date to the current file position,

The table below shows the results of this reconcilistion for all claim transactions 10 date.

Tabbe 2.2: Comparison of amounts from claims and accounting databases ($m)

(CLAIMSE DATABASE ACCOUNTING DATABASE
Damages (gross of recovenas,
aachuding modcans) 14703 Damages (gross of momenes) 14804
Costs 424 Cosls 435
DDEB 136 DDB 137
Diher {ine Medicara) 55 Consuling 23
Medicang 32
Detence kegal eosts 1777 Defence logal costs 1794
Total Value 41,7088  Total Valus 41,7224
Standardisation
Awnrd phuz Medicars plus DDB 14870 Award phrs Modicora pius DDB 14073
(Costs / Othar 448 | Costs [ Othar A58
Datence kegal costs 1177 | Detenca lagal costs 1791
Totsl Value 1,709.5 Totsl Value 1,722

The standardisation is the most relevant comparison becouse, as noted earlier, the two
database extracts allocate the information (particularly in relation to Medicare) in slightly
different ways.

Once the standardisation has been undertaken, the two datasets reconcile closely — with
reconciliation differences for claim awards totalling approximately $10.3m or 0.7% {31 March
2016: $9.8m].

Our approach for each claim record has baen to take the maximum value of tha two databases
for each claim record. This results in the following owerall totals being used in our analysis:

= $1,497.9m for the claims award component;
+  346.2m for the costs f other component; and
= 3179.2m for the defence legal costs component.

This approach, of taking the maximum value for each casms record, may result in some minor
prudence in our averall analysis although the amaunt of prudence is not considerad 1o be
sagnificant in the context of the size of the potential Eabilities and the underlying uncertainty
in any valuation estimating future claims costs over the next 40 years or more,
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Data conclusion

Wi have not varified the underlying data nor have we undertaken “auditing at source™. Mo
material data issues have been identified and notified 10 us by the Approved Auditor of AICFL
(Ernst & Young) during thair testing.

‘We have tested the data for internal consistency with the data provided at the previous
valuation (31 March 20186).

Based on that testing and reconciliation, and subject to the limitations described in Section
1.4, we have formed the view that!

+  Generally, the data is consistent between valuations, with any differences in the data
being readily explainable;

= The financial data appears 1o reconcile reasonably between the two data sources (the
claims dataset and the accounting datasst);

*  Any data issues that have emerged are not significant in relation 1w the size of the
liabilities; and

#  Therefore, the data is appropriate for use for the purposaes of this Report.
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3.2

Previous valuation work and methodology changes

‘Wie have, in broad tarms, maintained the core valuation methodology adopted at our previous
valuation at 31 March 2016,

Overview of current methodology

The methodology involves essessing the Eabilities in two separate components, being:

Allowance for the cost of settling claims which have already been raported but have not
yet been settled |“pending claims™); and

Allowance for the cost of settling claims which have not yet been reported (" Incurred
But Mot Repedted” or “IBNR™ clams),

For pendmng clams, we have used the case estimates hwhere avadable) with some
adjustiments 1o reflect the extent 1o which the case estimates [on averagel tend to overstate
the ultimate cost, For IBNR claims we hawe used what can best be described as an “average
«cost par claim method”.

In brief, the overall methodology may be summarnsed s follows:

Project the future number of claims expected 1o be reported in each future year by
disease type (for product and public liability) and for Werkers Compensation and wharf
claims taking into account the expected future incidence of mesotheborma and other
diseases and also the past rate of cojoining of the Lisble Entities;

Analyse past average attritional claim costs of non-nil claims i mid 201617 money
terms. We hava defined attritional claims 1o be claims which are lass than $1m in 2006/07
maoney terms, We estimate a baseline attritional non-nil average claim cost in mid
201617 money terms. This reprasants the Liable Enties’ share of a claim rather than
the total claim settlement. For Workers Compensation claims, the average cost
represents only that part of a claim which is borne by the Liable Entitias fi.e. it is net of
any inswance proceads from a Workers Compensation Scheme or Policy);

Analyse past historical average plaintiffiother and defendant legal costs for non-nil claim
settlements;

Analyse past histoncal average defendant legal costs for nil claim settlements;




=  Estimate a "large claims loading” for mesothelioma claims by estimating the frequency,
o incidence rate, and average claim size and legal cost sizes of such claims (being claims
which are in excess of $1m in 2006/07 money terms);

o Project the pattarn and incidence of future claims settlemants from the claims reporting
profile projected. This is done by using a sattlamant pattern derived from conssderation
of past experence of the pattern of delay between claim reporting and clam setthement
for each disease typs;

=  Estimate the proportion of clasms which will be settled with no lability against the Liable
Entities by reference 1o past proportions of claims settled for nil claim cost (we refer to
this as the "nil settlement rate™);

= Inflate aversge claim, plaintifffother and defence legal costs and large claim costs o the
date of settlement of claims allowing for base inflation and [where applicablel
supenimposed inflation;

= Multiply the claims numbers which are expected to be setthed for non-nil amounts in a
pericd by the inflated average non-nil claim costs (including the “large claims loading”)
and plaintififother and defence legal costs for that period;

=  Make allowance in defence legal costs for that proportion of settled claims which ara
axpected to be setthed for no labslity but for which defence costs will be mcurred;

+ Inflate average defence legal costs of nil claims to the date of settlement of claims
allowsing for base inflation;

= Multiply the claims numbers which are expected 1o be settled for nil amounts in a period
by tha inflated average defance legal costs for nil claims for that period;

*  Add the expected claims and legal payments relating 1o pending claims (after allowance
for the potential savings on case estimates) after making allowance for the assumed
settlement pattern of pending claims;

= This gives the projected future gross cashflow for each future financial year;

+  Adjust the projected gross cashflow for the impact of the annual and aggregate caps on
DOB reimbursements;

+  Estimate the recoveres resulting from cross-claims made by the Liable Entities against
other parties [" cross-clim recoverias”);

= Project Insurance Recovenes to establish the net cashflows;

+  Discount the cashflows using a yield curve derved from yields on Commanwealth
Gowvernment Fixed Interest Bonds at the valuation date to armwe at our present value
liability assessmeant.

It should be noted that this description is an outhne and is not intended to be exhaustive in

consideration of all the stages we consider or all investigations we undartake. Those other

stages are autlingd in mare detail elsewhers in this Repont and readers are advised 1o refer
to those sections for a more detailed understanding of the process undertaken.

As discussed elsewhere, the liabilities are established on a central estimate basis.
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Disease type and class subdivision
Claims records excluded from our analysis

‘We have excluded cross-claims brought by the Liable Entities against other defendants,
Where the cross-claim is brought as part of the main proceedings the claim is automatically
counted in our analysis of the number of claims. Howewver, where the cross-claim by the Lishle
Entitses is savered from the main precesedings, the existence of a sepaate record in the claims
dataset does not indicate an additional claim {or liability against the Lisble Entities). In these
circumstances such claims records are not counted in our analysis.

We have also excluded "insurance recovery” claims records. This is because the insurance
recovery record i 8 separate record that exists for claims records where an insurance
recovery is dua. In other words, the clasm against the Liable Entity has already been included
in our analysis and the insurance recovery record exists for operational purposes only, We
have, however, made separate, explicit allowance in the waluation for future insurance
reGOVenas.

Categoreas of claim

Wie have sub-divided the remaining claims into the fallowing groups:

*  Product and Public Liability;

*  Workers Compensation, being claims by former employees of the Liable Entities; and

#  Wharf claims, being claims by individuals whose occupations involved working on the
docks of wharves, of where part of their expesure related to wharves.

Wie hava separated the Workers Compensation claims from product and public liability claims
because claim payments from Workers Compensation claims do not generate recoveries
under the product and public lability insurance cover, so thatin arder 1o valug those insurance
policies we need 1o separately identify the cashflows from product and public ability claims
and the cashilows from Warkers Compensation claims.

Wie have separated out wharfside workers claims because such claims may have a different
exposure and incidence profile compared with produet and public lability claims.

Categories of disease

For product and public liability claims, we have separately analysed the individual disease
tpes.

Wie have split the data by disease type because there is sufficient volume of claims to do so,
because different disease types display substantially different average claim sizes, and
because the incidence pattern of future notifications is expected to vary betwean the different
disaaze types.

‘W have not danded the Warkers Compaensation or wharf claims data by disease type, given
their low financial significance and the reduced credibility of the data if sub-divided by diseasa
type tgiven the low number of claimsl,
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For the purpeses of our analysis, we have allocated each claim once and therelore 1o one
disaase only. Wa have selected the following order of priority, basad an the relative severity
of the disease:

= Mesothelioma,
+  Lung cancer f Other cancer;
= Asbestoss; and then

= Asbestos-Aelated Pleural Disease and Other ("ARPD & Other”),

This means that if @ product or public liabdity claim has mesathelioma as one of its listed
diseases, it is counted as &8 mesothelioma claim. If a product or public Rability claim has lung
cancer or othar cancer as one of 115 isted diseases [but not mesotheboma), it 15 counted as a
lung cancer claim. If a product or public Bability claim has asbestosis as one of its listed
diseases, it is only counted as asbestoss if it has no reference to mesothelioma, lung cancer
or other cancer as one of its diseases.

Mumbers of future claims notifications

To project the pattern of incidence of claims against the Liable Entities, we have constructed
& model which utilizes the following inputs:

+  The exposure to asbestos in Australia, adjusted to allow for the Liable Entities” particular
incadence of usage, noting that for the period 10 1987 they had approximately a stable
markat share, but thereafter wede not imvolved m asbestos products;

o The average period over which claimants are typically exposed; and

+  The statistical distribution of the latency period from average exposure for each disease
ype, together with the underlying parameters (the mean and the standard deviation) of
the latency model,

Statistically speaking, the projected peak incidence of mesotheloma is not equal 10 the peak
vear of production (or consumption) plus the awerage |atency of mesotheliora.

Instead, the projectad peak of claims reponing derived from our model is a function of the
ovarall shape of the exposure and the full distnbution of the latency pericd. In statestical
terminology. the projected claims incidence curve is a "conwolution” of the statistical
distribution of “modalled consumption” and the statistical distribution of the latency period.

Furthermare, the notification pattern will not be symmetrically distributed around the peak
year, The notification pattern is derived from the combined impact of the expasure model and
the latency model. The exposwre model is not 8 symmetrical distribution; whereas the
assumed tency model is a symmetrical distribution,

The following chart shows the timeline of exposure, latency, diagnosis and claims reporting.
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Figure 3.1: llustration of imeline of exposure, latency and claim reporting texample shown
is for mesotheliomal

<—Ppruad ot whath BapoBar Scoumel—>
~Eyearsaber st~ 16 poars aher el
P e < = i moniha —>
Dot of

cormascarant ol Aveage sl Enddate ol

huT-I l:p\l-n q:]-n Mdrni Dﬁﬂlrim

KPR Sufnton viad for KPS modal for e iataney panod ol
chairres [mean = 35 years, sid dew = 80 peans

e ———

Exposure Model

We have constructed a proxy for an “exposwre modal” by referance to statistics showing the
levels of Australian usage of asbestos,

Wie do not have detailed individual exposura informaton for the Liable Entites, its products
or whera the products were used and how many people were exposed to those products.
Howevar, given the market share of James Hardie over the years (through 1o 1887) and its
redative stability, we have used a national pattern of usage as a reasonable prowy for the Liable
Entities’ exposure.

Wi start by constructing an exposure index from the annual consumption of asbestas within
Ausiralia from 1900-2002. We split this between the various asbestos types and by year of
‘consumption.

‘We have not allowed for multiple exposures with respect 1o the Liable Entities from each unit
of asbestos consumed, .. where the Liable Entities wesa both minmg and milling the same
asbestos. While there was some [moderatel mining at Baryulgil, in relative terms it is not
significant. In any ewent, we have made separate explicit allowance for mining activities at
Baryulgil within our liability sgsesament,

Figure 3.2 shows maasures of the production and consumptian of asbestos m Australia in the
period 1930 to 2002,

It can b2 seen that the exposure, being measured in consumption, appeared 1o peak in the
aarly-1970s 1o mid-1970s. It can also be seen that for Austrakia as a whole, asbastos
consumption continued at significant levels until the mid-1980s and then began to fall through
o 2002,
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Figure 3.2: Consumption and production indices - Australia 1930-2002
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Source: World Mingral Statistics Datase!, British Geological Sunvey, waww, mingralsuk. com
R Virta, USGS Website Annual Yearbook
The dats undanying this ehart (& shown i Appendix 0.

The “modelled consumption” is derved as the consumption averaged over tha pravious aight
years, i.a. from the implied start date of exposure to the average date of exposwra.

This selection of aight years is based on the analysis contained in Section 6 which shows that
a typical claimant has an average exposure period of 16 years and that the average date of
exposure is therefore typically eight years after the start date of exposure,

It is the “modelled consumption” which is used, together with an assumption about the

statistical distribution of the latency period, as a basis for projecting future mesothalioma
clasm numbers.

There s an implicit assumption within the use of the “modelled consumption” to derive the
leved of future claim notifications that:

+ the consumption of asbestos is directly correlated with, and is a suitable proxy for, the
number (and extent of exposurel of people exposed to asbestos in any year, and

= the rate of incidence of individuals developing an asbestos-related disease ansing from
axposure to ashestos is the same for each exposure year and is indapendent of the typa
of asbestos used or the age of the individuals exposed,

Latency muwodel

Our assumption is that the latancy pattern (from the average date of exposura) for all disease
types is statistically distributed with & mormal distribution.
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The parameters (e, the mean and standard deviation) of the distribution have been set by
referance 1o pravious work undertaken by Professor Berry at al', by Jim Leigh et al? and by
Yeung et al?

The parameters for the mean and, in particular, for the standand dewviation have also been set
taking into account the claims experience of the Liable Entities to date,

The parameters vary by disease type.

The analysis supporting the selaction of these parametars is summarisad in Section 6.2,

Projecting tha claims notification curve using the exposure and latency model

Our methodology is to take each year of exposure, using “modelled consumption” of
asbestos in tonnage for that year, and project an mdex of the number of clams we project to
emerge in each future reporting year resulting from that exposure year,

The latency period is assumed to be normally distributed with a mean and a standard deviation
which vary by disease typa.

This means that for any given exposure year, the peak incidence of reporting claims would be
[ the case of mesatheliomal 35 years after the average exposure date from that exposure
year.

W then aggregate the claims notification index curves projected for each exposure year to
produce an overall curve which showes the index of claim notifications arising from all exposura
petiods,

The curve is dascribed as an ndex because consumption is used as a proxy measure for the
number of individuals exposed and because we don't know what proportion of those people
whe were exposed will develop ashestosrelated dissases.

Therefora tha mathodology produces a shape of the number of claims, rather than an absoluta
levied of the number of claims o be repored,

This mathodology providas not only the shape of claims reporting as an index but it also
projects the implied peak year(s) of incidence for each disease type and the rate of decay in
clams reporting lewels after the peak year of incidance.

We allow for each of the diseases having differemt average latency periods. This results in
different projected peak years and incidence patterns for the different diseases.

These are summarised in Sections 6.2 and 6.3,

Calibrating the curve index to currant reporting esgpenience

We take the claim curve index and then calibrate the number of motifications in each futura
year by referance to the recent lavels of clwms raporting and the number of clasms we have
assumed for the 201218 financial year,

1

wural ared in fomar menars and millars of crocidoite ot Witionoom, Westem Ausinala; G Bormy, N

H de Kiark ot al (2004]

2 Mahigrant Mesotahons n Ausieala: 1345-2000; J Legh 1.8 2002}
3 Distribuiion of Mesothakoma Cases in Differant Oecupationsl Grougs and Indusines. 19751995 P Young, A Rogers, A Johnson 115650
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This approach implicitly assumes that:

+  The future rate of incidence of asbestos-related diseases manifesting as a result of a past
exposure to asbestos will remain stable;

= The pattern of disgnesis and the delay between diagnosis and reportng remain stable;
+  The “propensity to claim” by indwiduals will remain stable; and
=  The rate of co-joining the Liable Entities in common law claims will remain stabla.

Changes to any of these factors over time will result in changes to the actual pattern of
incidence of claims reporting compared with that derved in Section 3.4.3.

Our assumptions for the base number of claims projected to be reportad in 2017118 are
summansed in Sections 4.4 and 5.6,
Model adiustments made at 31 March 20014 for mesothehoma claims

As a consequence of heghtened mesotheboma claims reportmg obsemved in 2013114 {and
which has continued thereafier), we made some medifications 1o the future incidence patiern
for mesothelioma in our 31 March 2014 valuation,

The changes werea most pronounced for the period of claims reporting through to, and
including, 2016117 and the changes are documented maore extensmely in our Annual Actuarial
Report effectve at 31 March 2014,

We have maintained those modifications te the incidence pattern.

Incidence of claim settlernents from future claim notifications

Wie derive a setllement pattern by analysng triangulations of the numbers of settlerments and
clasms payments by delay from the year of notification,

Fram these settiement pattern analyses, we have astimated the pace at which claims notified
in the future will settbe, and used this to project the future number, and monetary amount, of
settlements in each linancial year for aach disease type.

O analysis and assumptions selectad are summarised in Section 9.6,

Average claim costs of IBNR claims
Antritional claims

W define a large clamm as one for which the award is greater than or equal to $1m n 2006/07
maney terms [which equates to approximately $1.48m in mid 201617 maney terms).

We define an attritional claim as a non-nil, non-large claim, We define a nil clasm as one for
which the award payable by the relevant Liable Entity is zaro.

‘We have estimated the following five companents to the average cost assessment
+  Average award (sometimes including plaintiff legal costs) of a non-nil “attritional” claim.
= Average plaintiff kegal / other costs of a non-nil “attritional” clasm.

= Average defence legal costs of a nonenal " attritional” claim,
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3.7

= Average defence lagal costs of a nil claim.
= Large claim awards and logal cost allowances.

All of our analyses have been constructed using past average awards, which have been
inflated to mid 201617 money terms using a historical base inflation index lof 4% per annum),
This allows for basic inflation effacts when identifying trends in historical average settlamants.
We then determing & prospective sverage cost in mid 200617 money 1erms,

W perform the same analysis for the defence legal costs for nil and norenil claims and for
plaintiff legal f other costs in respect of non-nil cleims (together "Claims Legal Costs™).

Our analysis and azsumptions are summasised in Section 7.

Large claims loading
W analyse the historical incidence rate of large claims (baing measured as the ratio of the

number of large claims to the tatal number of non-nil claims), and the average claim size and
lagal costs of these claims.

We have determined a prospective incidence rate and an average cost in mid 2016017 money
terms to arrve at 8 “per claim” loading (being the average large claim cost multipbed by the
large claim incidence rate per claimb being the edditional amount we need to add to our
attrivonal awerage claim size to allow for large claims.

Our analysis and assumptions are summarnsed in Section 7.8,

Future mflation of average claim sizes

Mllowance for future claim cost inflation is made. This is modelled as a combination of base
inflation plus superimposed inflation. This enables us 10 project future average settlement
costs in each future year, which can than be applied to the IBNR claims numbers as they
settle n aach future year.

Owr analysis and assumptions in relation to claims inflation are summarised in Sections 8.2
and 8.3,
Propartion of claims settled for nil amounts

Wie apply a “nil settlernent rata” to the overall number of settlements to estimate the number
of clasms which will be settled for nil claim cost {ie. other than in relation 1o defence legal
costsl and those which will be settled for a non-nil claim cost.

The prospective nil settlement rate is estimated by reference 10 the analysis of past trends in
the rata of nil settlements.

Owr analysis and assumptions selectad are summarised in Section B.
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Pending claims
Definition of panding claims

A 31 March 2017, there were 393 claims (31 March 2016: 464) for which claim awards have
not yet bean fully settbed by the Liable Entitias.

Additionally, thera are a numbar of other claims for which defence lagal costs have not yet
been settled, even though the awards have been settled,

W have adopted three definitions of settlement status:

*  Whese there is a closure date, there are not expected to be any luither award or kegal
costs incurred.

= Whese thera is no closure date but the claim has a settlement date, there is the possaility
of further emerging defendant legal costs. even though the claim award has been settled.

= Whera there is no settlernent date, thera is the possibdity of award, plaintiff legal costs
and defendant legal costs being incurred,

Evaluating the haltulity for pending claims

The excess amount of the liability for panding claims, over the case estimates held, is what
the ingurance industry terms Incurred But Mot Encugh Reported (“IBNER™).

Depending on the case estimation procedure of a company and the nature of the liabdlities.
IBMER can be aithar positive or negative, with a nagativa IBNER implying that the ultimate
cost of settling claims will be less than case estimates, i.e. that there is some degree of
redundancy in case estimates.

Findings

Our analysis has indicated that there is a degree of redundancy in case estimates, ie &
negative IBMER.

The comparison of current case estimates with actuarially-projected future settlernent costs
fior claims reportad 1o date suggests that potential saings from cose astimates in relation to
the award component could be of the order of 25%.

MICFL's own analysis also suggests that histosically there have also been savings which have
typically varied betwean 20% and 30%.

Furthermore, we have assessed whether the cost of claims reported up to and including 31
March 2017 has deteriorated lor improved) compared to our prior estimate (as at 31 March
2016),

The table below shows that there has been no detenoration compared to the estimates we
previously adopted and are currently adopting (both of which have already madae allowance
fos a 25% saving on case estimates), This analysis lends further suppaort to the view that the
allowance we have made for the extent of redundancy in case estimates of 25% is reasonable
and 15 borne out by the actual experience,

Wie have maintained our assumption for the lavel of redundancy in case estimates on currently
reported claims at 25% at this valuation (March 2018: 25%), This assumption is only applied
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to the case estimates for the claim award, iLe. it is not applied to plaintififother costs or
defance costs.

Tabbe 3.1: Change in cost of caima during 2016017 financial year ($m) - claim award
companent only

Paid amounts in yaar 1o 31 Merch 2017 85 arz 1068

Entrnatics fo7 pheding cliimd 31 Massh I
2017 fuedh 5 =R 153 I
Incurrid Cost in e Ananchil year e nray Lk

The: table above shows that there has been a $17.4m saving in the case estimates for claims
that were reported prior to 31 March 2016. This saving supports the 26% assumption we
have adopted for savings on case estimates,

It should be noted that making allowance for savings from case estimates is expacted to have
amore significant impact on the near term cash flows and a lesser impact on the longer-term
cashflows, with more than 95% of the cost of pending claims expectad to be setthed within
the next six years.

Insurance Recoveries

Insurance Recoverias are defined as proceeds which are estimated to be recoverable under
the product and public liabdity insurance policies of the Liable Entities, and therefore exclude
any such proceads from a Workers Compensation Scheme or Policy in which the Lisbla
Entities participate or which the Liable Entities hald,

In applying the insurance programme we consider only the projected gross cashflows refating

to product and public kability claims.

W split out product hability cashilows from public liability cashilows as they are covered by

different sections of the insurance policy under differant bases:

*  Product liability claims are coverad by an aggregate policy which provides cower for all
product lisbility claims costs attached to any one year up 1o an overall aggregate limit for
thirt yesar; and

+  Public liabdity clasmns are covered by an "each and every loss” policy which provides
cowver for each public liabilty claim up to an individual claim limit for that year.

Historical analysis of the claims data suggests that approximately 97,5% of all liability claims
by cost have been product liability claims,

We make no allowance for the Workers Compansation cashflows in astimating the Insurance
Recovenes, as the insurance programime only provides insurance cower to product and public
liability exposures.

Prngramrr‘.e overvew

Until 31 March 1985, the Liable Entities had in place General and Products Rability insurance
podicies with a $1m primary policy layer,




382

In addition, until 31 May 1986, the Liable Entities maintained further excess “umbrella™
insurance policies, with warying retentions and palicy limits. That is, the insurance policies paid
all eosts aniging from claims with exposure in 8 specified year from the retention up to the
redevant policy Bmit. All claim costs in relation to a given exposure year in excess of the Bmit
‘would be retained by the Liable Entities,

Product liability claims wera insured under thasa insurance policias on an “in the aggragate”™
basis whilst public lability claims were insured on an “each and every loss” basis,

These insurance policies were placed amongst a number of insurance providers on a claims
occurring basis.

From 31 May 1988, ihe insurance policies were placed on a claims made basis in relation to
asbestos-ralated product and public Rability cover.

In summary, the insuranca policies were placed as follows:

*  For the pariod up to June 1976, the insurance palicies wera written on a claims occurring
basia. The insurance was provided by QBE but the cover provided by these policies was
commutad n June 2000 for a consideration of $3.1m par annum for the following 15
years (through to 30 June 2014),

=  For the pericd from June 1976 to 31 May 1988, the insurance policies ware written on a
claims oceurning basis, CE Heath scted as the undenwriting agent and nsured the risk in
Australia and also into Lloyd's of London and the London Market, Howewver, during this
peried CE Heath Undenwritng & Insurance (Australia) Pty Ltd (CEH U&I) also insured
some of the risk, reinsuring their placement on a facultative basis.

*  For the perod 31 May 1986 to 31 March 1888, the insurance policies wera writtan on a
claims-made basis. CE Heath acted as the undenwriting agent and insured the risk into
Lloyd's of London and the London Market,

= For the period 31 March 1989 10 31 March 1397, the insurance policies were written on
a claims-made basis. However, CE Heath Casualty & General Insurance Ltd (later HIH
Casuslty & Generall acted as the insurer of the programme and reinsured it on a
facultative basis into Lloyd's of London and the London Market. CE Heath Casualty &
Genaral Insurance Ltd retained some share on some of the layers,

Modeling insurance recovenas an the ciims aocurnng programmae

Our methodology for projecting the future insurance recoweries to be collectad by AICFL
invotves the following steps:

+  Identify the current contract positions for each insurance policy year. This assumes that
all monees due have been collected, and does not allow for the impact of commutations
that have taken place.

+  Allocate the projectad future gross cashilows to individual insurance policy years wsing
an allocation basis that has been determined by reference 1o the expasure methodalogy
used 1o project future claim numbers and also using a “peried of exposure” and "time
an rigk”™ allocation,

#  This gives a projection of how the insurance programme is utilised over time.
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This method allows us to:
+  evaluate the total insurance recoveries due by payment year,;

= detarmine how the insurance recoveries due will be assigned to each layer and therefora
1o each nsures; and

+ identify and allow for when the individual layers are projected to be fully exhausted,

We then make an additional adjustment to the projected recoveries to exclude those
projected future insurance recowerias that are assignad to the participations of insurars who
have already commuted their coverage with AMICFL and the Liable Entities of insurers who
have setthed their coverage by way of a Scheme of Arrangamant.

Equitas Commutation

Im March 2017, AICFL finalised & commutation agreament with Resolute Management
Services Limited on behalt of Equitas and certain Lbowd's Syndicates who had provided
insurance coverage 1o the Liable Entities in the period from 1 April 1380 1o 31 May 1386,

AICFL eommuted its insurance cowerage with Equitas for a payment of $105.0m effective as
at 28 February 2017, and this amount was paid to AICFL on 31 March 2017,

As a consequence of the Equitas Commutation:

= Net payments made by AICFL in 201 7 were negative, reflecting that insurance proceads
{including the Equitas Commutation payment] exceeded gross expenditure in the year,

*  AICFL's net cash position has been significantly improved,

=  Future insurance recoveries are now propected at a much lower laval than previowshy
assumed,

= Al other things being equal, the net liability has incressed significantly compared with
the previous year 1o reflect the lower future insurance recoveries expected to be
recaivad.

Other Commutations

Other commutations have been entered nto by AICFL in previous years and these
commutations have typecally (other than OBE) invoheed the payment of a lump sum amount.

In these circumstances, we have assumed that the insurance liabiliies of that company to
the Lisble Entities have been fully discharged and no further recovenies will fall due.

We have made no allowanca or adjustment to tha timing of receipt of insurance racoveries
for any potential future commutations,
HIH

Wie have assumed that all monies have bean paid in ralation to insurance recovernes for the
claims occurring period from HIH. Any future insurance proceeds from HIH are not expecied
1o be material.
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Schemes of Arrangement

For the claims occurning percd, whaere a claim filed against a company under a Scheme of
Mrrangemant has been accepted and payment made, we have assumed that the insurance
liabilities of that company to the Lable Entities have been fully discharged and no further
recoverias fall due,

Unpaid insurance recovenes
We have not mcluded within our |iﬂbi|lﬂl’ estimate any allowance for insurance recoveries
under the claims occurring pericd that are due but hawve not yet been collectad (“unpaid

balances”). We are adwised that such monies amount 1o approximately $1.5m at 31 March
2017,

These amounts are more appropriately dealt with as being debiors of AICFL,

Claims made insurance protection from 31 May 1986 onwards

Insurance protection purchased from 31 May 1986 1o 31 March 1997 was placed on a " claims
made” basis and a5 such may not provide protection of recoveries against the cost of future
dlasm notifications made by claimants aganst the Liable Entities.

For the purpose of this Report, we have made no allowance for the value of these insurance
policies in our kability assessment,

Bad and doubtful debt allowance on Insurance Recoveries

We have made allowance for bad and doubtful debts on future Insurance Recowverias within
ouf valuation by use of the default rates specified in Appendx A. These have been sourced
from Standard & Poors’ 2015 Annual Global Corporate Default Study and Rating Transitions,
dated 2 May 2016 and they are based on bond default rates.

W have considered the credit rating of the insurers of the Liable Entities as at March 2017
and applied the relevant credit rating default rates to the expected future cashflows by yvear,
treaty and insurer,

Where additional information regarding the expected payout rates of solvant and inschwent
Schemes of Arangement is available, we have instead taken the expected payout rates to
as5as5s the credit risk allowance to be madea in our Bability assessmant.

Cross-claim recoveries

A cross-claim can be brought by, or against, one or more Liable Entities. Cross-claims brought
against a Liable Entity ("Contribution Claims™) are included in owr analysis of the claims
EXPETIENGE,

Cross-claims brought by a Liable Entity relate to circumstances where the Liable Entity seeks
to poin {as & cross-defendant) another party to the claim in which the Liable Entity is already
Joined,

To the extant that tha Lisble Entities are successful in jsining such other parties to a claim,
the contribution to the setthement by the Liable Entities will reduce sccordengly.




Our approach in the valuation has been 1o separately value the rate of recovery (“cross-claims
recovery rate”h as a percentage of the gross award based on historical experience of such
rBCOVeries,

Our analysis and assumptions selected are summansed in Secton 9.5

Discounting cashflows

Cashflows are discounted on the basis of yields available at the wveluation date on
Commanwealth of Australia feed intarest Government Bonds (" Commanwaealth Government
Bonds") of varying coupon rates and duratiens to maturity imatehed to the lisbility cashflows),
with & long-term discount rate of 5.50% per annum assumed [March 2016: 6.00% per
annum).

It should be recognised that the yeld curves and therefore the dscount rates applied can vary
considerably between valuations and can, and do, contribute significant volatiity to the
present value of the labdity at different valuation dates,

There have baen minor vanations in chsarved yields on Commonwaealth Government Bonds
in the last twelve months.,

Owr approach to the determination of the discount rates s unchanged from the approach
adoptad at 31 March 2016, other than in relation to the selected long-term discount rate
assumed, and is:

= For years 1 to 16, zero coupon spot rates were determined by reference 1o the prices,
coupons and durations of Commonwealth Gowernment Bonds;

*  For years 19 and onwards, we have salected a uniform long-term discount rate of 5.50%
per annum; and

= Foryears 17 and 18, we have salected spot rates that “lnearly imterpolate” batween the
year-16 rate and the year-18 rate (of 5.50%).

Our selected assumplions are summansed in Section 9.4,

Wi observe that the long-term discount rate assumption (5.50% per annum) does not

materially affect the overall Discounted Central Estimate. This is because the vast majority of
the tuture cashilows [approximately 30%) are projected to be paid cwer the next 18 years.

By way of illustration, if we selected a long-term discount rate of 5.00% per annum, the
Discountad Central Estimate would increase by approximately $3m (0.2%).




4. (laims Experience: Mesothelioma

4.1

Claim Numbers

Owverview

The following chart shows the numbar of mesothalioma claims reported by year of
netificaticn,

Figure 4.1: Numbar of mesaothelioma claims reported annually
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Adter three successive years of increases in clems reporting from 2011012 through to
2014715, there have now bean two years of reductions in claims reporting actvity.

Claims reporting i 201516 reduced by 4% to 397 claims and fell by a further 6% in 201617
to 373 claims,

Monthly an of nouficatons

We have examined tha number of mesothelioma claims reported on a manthly basis to batter
understand the nature of the claims expenence obsenved on an annual basis,



Figure 4.2: Monthly notifications of mesathelioma claims
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It is abserved that:

*  The number of claims reported in 201617 (373 claims) has been 7% below our previous
expectations (400 clams) and 6% below the level observed in 201516 (397 claims),

+  April 2016 represented the highest claims reporting activity in the 2016117 year, with 40
claims reported in that month,

+  In 2016017, six months of the year had 30 o fewer claims reported.
Redling averages

Wi have reviewed the rumber of mesothelioma clasms reported on a moanthly basis and
reviewwed the rolling 3-month, &-month and 12-month averages in recent periods,

Figure 4.3: Rolling annualsed averages of mesolhelioma clasm netifications
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It can b seen that the current annuaksed rolling averages at 31 March 201 7 are between 364
[3-month average) and 382 (B-month avarage).
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Profile of mesothelioma claims
Claims by State

We have analysed the number of mesothelioma elaim notifications by the State in which the
Figure 4.4: Mumber of mesathelioma claims by Stata
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Historically NSW contributed more than 45% of all claims reported. Since 20042008 this
proportion has declined and remained relatively stable between 40% and 45%.

Direct claims and cross-claims

The following chart shows the number of claims natified by year of notfication and separately
a5 between claims brought by claimants (which we refer to as “direct claims’) and claims
brought by ather defendams, some of which are brought a number of years after the claim
‘was first notified (thesa claims we refer to as “cross claims').

Figure 4.5: Number of mesothelioma claims by type of claim
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It can be seen that the increase in claim numbers that were observed in 2012013 was primarily
a function of a highar number of cross-claims baing brought by other corporations and by
State and Federal Government Entities,

The higher level of cross claims has continued with the number of cross claims reported in
the last four financial years at a similer level to 2012013

MNSW is currently the primary source of cross claims (making up approximataly 52% of the
total number of cross claims in 2001617).

The reduction in the overall number of mesothelioma claims since 2014/15 has been antirely
attributable 1o direct claims. Additional analysis indicates that NSW has been the primary
driver of this feature.

Source of claims

We have analysed the number of mesothelioma claims according to whether they volve
remavation activity or not.

The number of non-renovator claims has been broadly stable aver the four years from 201314
to 2016017,

The chart shows that the number of renovator claims showed a significant increasa from
2011712 to 201415 but has since moderated, albeit remaining at levels higher than previously
observed.

Figure 4.6: Mumber of mesothelioma claims by source of claim
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Mumber of defendants

The following chart shows the numbaer of claims natified by year of notification and by number
of defendants.

Figure 4.7: Number of mesothelioma claims by number of defendants (direct claims only)
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The number of claims reported involving only the Liable Entities {i.e. single-defendant claims)
has now sean two successive years of reductions, following three years of significant
increases.,

Clairns in which the Liable Entities are the only defendants to the clasm are typically associsted
with highar average claim sizes whilst claims imwolving multiple defendants typically involve
the Liable Entities paying 65% or less of the 1otal settlement (see Section 7.2),

This feature is a contributor to the trands in average claim sizes experienced in the last threa
years,
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Age profile of claimants

Thae follewing chart shows the proportion of clams notfied by vear of notification and by age
of claimant.

Figure 4.8: Proportion of mesotheboma claims by age of claimant
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The proportion of claims reported involving claimants over the age of 70 has gradually
increasad, evident by the downwards trends in the chart from left 1o night.

In ebsolute terms, the number of claims arising from claimants agad 70 years or older rose
by 81% from 14000 2011012 te 263 in 200617,

By contrast, the number of claims arising from claimanis aged less than 70 years has declined
by 10% from 118 in 2011012 1o 106 in 2001617,

There are currently 14 claims notified in 201617 where the age of claimant is not yet known;
pramarily retating to very recent claim notifications.

The growth in overall mesothelioma claim numbers that took place from 20011012 10 201416
has tharefore primarily arisan from claimants aged 70 or alder.

The higher proportion (and number) of claims involving claimants over 70 years of age has
been a contributar to the trends n average clam sizes experienced in the last ten years
(thereby acting to offset other claims inflation drivers) and in particular the reductions in
BETaG R claim sizes expenenced n the last three WORAars,
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Delay from diagnosis io nofification

The chart below measures the time-lag (in days) from diagnosis to natification. The chart
shows that direct claims are reponed more quickly than cross-claims.

Direct clisms have typically taken between 5 months and 8 months 10 be reported after
diagnosis of mesathelioma.

Figure 4.9: Delay from diagnosis of mesothelioma 1o notification of claim against the Liable
Entitias
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There has been a significant speed up in claims reporting for direct daims in 201617, The
average time between diagnosis to notification has reduced to 141 days, and this represents
the lowest level observed by AICF since its formation.
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External statistics on mesothelioma claims incidence

The following chart compares the total number of mesothelioma cases raported (diagnosad)
nationally to the number of mesothelioma claims received by the Liable Entities.

It should be noted that the two sets of data correspond to different definitions of year and so

are not directly comparable and some caution should be exercised.

The “yess” is calendar year for the national cases (i.e. 2002 i3 the year running from 1 January
2012 1o 31 Decembear 2012); whilst for the Liable Entities it is the financial year {i.e. 2012 is
the year runnang fram 1 April 2012 to 31 March 20013),

Figure 4.10: Number of mesothelioma casas raported nationally compared o the number of
clams received by the Liable Entities
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The anmual number of mesothelioma cases disgnosed nationally has been relatively stable for
the period 2007 to 2014 varying between 667 and 732 cases.

In calendar year 2015, the number of cases disgnosed nationally (as currently reported) fell to
650, It should be noted there may be a considerable degree of under-reporting in the 2015
year, noting that:

#  The 2013 year was initially reported as 575, and this increased to 676 las reported in the
2014 Australian Mesotheborna Registry Report) and 692 (as reponed in the 2016
Australian Mesothelioma Registry Report); and

¥ The 2014 year was first repored as 641 and this moreased 1o 732 (a8 reported in the
2016 Australian Mesathelioma Registry Repon).

These increases in national statistics lead to a lower ratio for the number of Liable Entity
clasms a5 a percentage of the number of national cases of mesothelioma. As a consequence
the currently estimated 61% for 2016/16 may be over-stated and (f previous experience of
initial undar-reporting of the numbser of national cases wera to recur) may be more in the order
of 55% (consistent with 2014/15),



It should be noted that not all cases of mesathelioma result in a claim being browght in
Commeon Law. Furthermaore, even if a claim is brought, not all claims will involve the Liable
Entities,

In refation to NSW, we have additional infermation from the Dust Diseases Tribunal that allows
us to measure what proportion of commen law claims the Liable Entities are joined in for
NSW.

For the DDB/DDA data, the “year” is financial year (i.e. 2012 is the year running from 1 July
2002 1o 30 June 2013). In contrast, in the DDT data, “year™ is defined as a calendar year (e,
2012 is the year renning from 1 January 2012 to 31 Decembear 2012). It should be noted that
the four sets of data correspond to different definitions of year and so are not dirsctly
comparable and some caution should be exercised.

Figure 4.11: Number of mesothelionma cases reported in NSW
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The chart shows that whilst the number of NSW cases of mesothelioma has been relatively
stable from 200607 to 2015/16 (as has the number of cases received by the DDB/DDA), the
number of commaon law claims has risen by mare than 100%. At the same tima, the Liabla
Entities have expenienced a very simalar rate of growth,

The data would sppesar ta indicata that the Lisble Entities ane nat beng incieasingly poined in
common law claims in MSW, nor that there is an increasing prevalence of mesothefioma in
MNSW, but rather that the proportion of people being disgnosed who then bring a common lavw
claim is the primary factor leading to the increases in claim numbers that have been observed
in the last ten years i.a. thera has bean an ncraase in the propansity to clam).
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Base valuation assumption for nurnber of mesothelioma claims

The actual claims experience in 2016/17 has been favourable compared to expectations. for
006N 7 in relation 1o overall mesothelioma claim numbers and therefore it has provided no
avidence, at this time, for a higher level of claims reparting being assumed in 201 718,

Equally, whilst experience has been favourable, this is the first year of materially favourable
axperiance in the last four years, Therefore, at this time, there is no strong evidence 1o support
areduction in the levels of future claims reporting to be assumed.,

Therefare, we have selected our assumption of 372 claims for 2017/18; this being the same
level that had peeviously been assumed lat 31 March 2016} for the level of claims reporting
for 2001718,

There remain material uncertainties in relaton to the base level of claims reporting and it is
possible that claims activity could increase next year, or fall next year.

There also remain material uncertainties as to the pace at which future claims reporting will
reduce {“the decay rate™) as well as the rate of co-joining of the Liable Enfities in commaon
lawe claims.,

Depending on the outcome of future experence, further changes to the wvaluaton
assumptions and therefore to the valuation results may be necessary in future periods, Such
changes could be mataral,

As & consequence of the above noted uncertainties, further volatility in relation to the valuation
result should be anticipated for at least the next lew years.
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5.1

5.2

Claims Experience: Claim
numbers (non-mesothelioma

Owverview

The tabla balow shows the numbar of claims reported by year of notification and by disease
CALBGOTY.

Tabba 5.1: Mumbser of claims by disease typa
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Asbestosis claims
For ashestosis, the three years of claims reporting from 2006007 to 200809 saw claims
reporting activity reasonably stable, at between 161 and 171 claims,

The years 2008/10 to 2013/14 saw claims reporting reduce, varying between 110 and 140
climms.

Im 2014/15, claims reporting increased to 144 claims, although this reverted back to 80 claims.
in 2016/16,

There ks some evidence that the high level of claims reporting in 201415 was due in part to
an acceleration of claim lodgernents and that this had consequential effects to the low level
of claims reporting in 201516,

Im 2016/17, there was a moderate increase in claims reporting to 98 daims, albeit lowwer than
aur assumption of 120 claims,

In salecting our assumption for 201 7/18, we have (in broad terms) taken the average of the
last three years as a base level.

We have assumid 108 asbestoss claims will be reporied n 200718,
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Lung cancer claims

The number of lung cancer claims reported has typically bean betwean 25 and 40 claims per
annurm,

Howavar, reporting in 2000711 and 201112 was substantially lower, at 13 and 15 claims
respectively.

In 2015/16, the number of claims reported fell 1o 19 and in 2006017 it reduced to 18 claims,

In selecting our assumption for 201718, wa have (in broad terms) taken the average of tha
last three years as a base lewel,

Wi have assumed 21 lung cancer claims will ba reported in 2017018,

ARPD & Other claims

The number of ARPD & Other claims, has typically been between 30 and 45 over the last
aleven years, although in 2013114 the number of claims reported was the highest observed
histarically, at 48 claims.

Im ol 2015/16 and 2006017, the number of claims reported was 31,

In salecting our assumption for 201718, we hawe (in broad terms) taken the average of the
last three years as a base level.

‘We have assumed 33 ARPD & Other clasms will be reposted in 201718,

Waorkers Compensation and Wharf claims

The number of Weorkers Compensation claims, including those met in full by the Liabla
Entities’ Workers Compensation insurers, has historically exhibited some degree of volatility,
However claims reparting activity has bean relatively stabbe in the mast racant saven years
ranging from 26 claims 10 34 claims.

In 201516 there wara 29 claims reported, in 201617 there weara 26 claims reported.
Wie have assumed 30 Workers Compeansation claims will ba reported in 2017118,

It should be noted that the financial impact of this source of claim is not substantial to the
Liabde Entities givan the proportion of claims which are settbed for nil lability against the Liabla
Entities typically above 90%), which results from the ingurance arrangemeants in place,

For Whart claims, thera have been 11 claims reported in each of the last three yaars, We have
assumad 12 claims will be notified in 2017/18. Again, the financial impact of this source of
clasm is not currently significant,
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Summary of base claims numbers assumptions (including mesotheliomal

In forming a view on the numbers of claims projected to be reported in 2017/18, we have
taken into account the emerging experience in the latest financial vear and a revised view of
the expacted numbers of claims reported based on recent trends.

Az gutlined in Sections 4 and 5, our assumptions as 1o the number of claims to be reported
in 2017718 are as follows:

Tabla 5.2: Claim numbers experiance and assumptions for 2007118

BT M1 DOURMT M2 201617 AT
fanmualised)  (annualised) ox pecied Assusmption

Lung Cancar " 18 Y 10 T 2
ARFPD & Caher H ki ® % k) 3
Wha " " 12 10 12 12
Workor 2 s | 2% Py 3 20
Total &7 887 sm Eid 625 576

Annualised figuwes do not make aliowance for any seasonality of reporting.
They are calcwlated by muitiphang the hal-yaar expediance by a factor af 2.
2016017 Expacted is the sssumplion selected for 20016/1 7 in our previous valuation report.

Baryulgil

Almost half of the claems settled which relate to asbestos mining activites at Baryulgil fas
discussed previously in Section 1.2.3) have been settled with no liabdity against the Liable
Entities; and for the remaining settled claims, the Liable Entities have typically borne one-third
1o one-half of the settlament amount, reflecting the contribution by other defendants to tha
averall settlement inchuding those which have since been placed in hquidation),

For the purposes of our valuation, we have estimated there to be 11 future claims reported,
comprising & mesothelioma claims, 2 other product and public Bability claims and 3 Workers
Compensation claims.

‘We have assumed average claims and legal costs, net of Workers Compensation insurances,
braadly in line with those described in Secton 7.
Owr projected liability assessmant at 31 March 2017 of the additional provision (for claims not

yet reported) that could potentially be required is an undescoumed liabdity of $3.3m and a
discounted liability of £2.8m, all of which is deemed to be a liability of Amaca.




6.1

6.1.1

EXposUre and Latency
EXperience and Incidence Pattern
Assumptions

Exposure information
Average exposure period

The following chart shows the derivation of, and support for, the assartion that claims have
resulted from, on average, approximately 16 years of exposure,

Figure 6.1: Mix of claims by duration of exposure (years)

bl W
“gnn gl s lgl-gge=8g
l|. l Il. 1%
ol SRR ERERE 1
.|| 410
- i |
..I Il l,
= g
HII i
-
=

K ML WD NG BN NS BN K0 B N NN M XU S BM Bt B

Tam of neticaton
- e Ho - LR L LY LI L e il

It cam be seen that generally the average duration of exposure has varied between 14 years
and 18 years and is currently 15.3 years,

Exposure informaton from clams notified to date

We heve reviewed the actual exposuwre information available for claims notified to date. This
has been conducted by using the exposure dates stored in the claims database at an indaidual
ddasm level and idantifying the number of person-years of exposure in each exposura year. Wa
have reviewed the pattern of exposure for each of the disease types separately, although we
note that they all tend 1o follow a similar pattern.




Figure 6.2: Exposure [persen-years) of all Liabde Entities’ claimants to date
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The chart shows that, currently, the peak year of exposure for claims reported to date is in
1970. It should be recognised that there is a degree of bias in this analysis in that the claims
notified to date will tend 1o have arisen from the eslier pericds of expesure.

Ower time, we expect the right-hand side of this curve to develop and the peak year of
exposure to trend towards the early-1970s to mid-1970s, and an increase in the absolute level
at all pariods of exposure as mare claims are notified and the associated exposures from
these are incluced in the analysis,

The ralatvely low lavel of exposure from 1987 onwards (about 5% of the total) is not
unexpacted given that all asbestos products ceased being manufactured by the Liable Entities
by 1987, The exposure after that date likely results from usage of products already produced
and sold before that date,

The: chart above is a curmulative chart of the position to date and does not show temporal
trends in the allocation of claims to exposure years.

For example, one would expect that more recently reported claims should be associated with,
on average, later exposures; and that claims reported in future years would continue that
trend towards later exposure periods,

To understand better these temporal tends, we have modelled claimants’ exposures for each
past elaim report year. The chart below shows the analysis for mesothelioma claims only.
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Figure 5.3: Exposure [persen years) of all mesothelioma claimants to date by report year and
exposure pariod
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As can be seen in the chart above, there has been a genaral increasing shift towards the
exposure period after 1970, evident by the downwards trends in the chart from beft 1o right
indicating that an mcreasing proportion of the claimants' exposure relates to more recent
exposure periods,

For example, pre-1970 exposures made up approximately 55% of mesothelioma claims
axposuras in 200506 but less than 35% of claims exposwes in 2001617,

We would expect that such a trend should continue for some time to come and that an
increasing proportion of the exposura (in relation 1o future reported claims) will relate to the
period 198182 to 198586,

Latency period of reported claims

O latency model for mesothelioma assumes the latency period from the average date of
expasure is normally distributed with an underlying mean latency of 35 years and a standard
deviation of 10 years.

‘We have analysed the actual latency pernod of the reported claima of the Liable Entities in
ordar to test the validity of thase assumptions.

Wie have measured the average actual latency pericd from the average date of axposure to
the date of notification of a claim,

Im strict epidemiclogical terms, the latancy period should be measurad from the date of first
exposure 1o the date of diagnosis,

Because our model utiises laency assumptions from the average date of exposure, the
latancy period reported in the following charts is not directly comparabile with that referred to
in epidemniclogical lnerature.

The average period of exposure for claimants against the Liable Entities is approximately 16
years, This means the actual latency period from the date of first exposure is approximately
8 years graater than indicatad in the following charts.




Fusthermore, given that the date of notification lags the date of diagnosis by approximatoly &
to 8 months for mesothelioma and by approximately 2 years for non-mesothelioma diseasa
types, the latency trends shown in the following charts might shghtly overstate the latency to
diagnosis.

The chart below shows the average latency observed for mesothelioma claims reported in
@ach raport year from 2000001 to 201516, and the 25th percantile and 75th percentila
abservations,

Figure 6.4: Latency of mesethelioma claims
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The abowe chari indicates that the cbserved average latency period from the average
axpasura is currently approximately 43 years for mesothelioma,

Epidemiological studies tend to suggest that the observed latency period ifrom first exposurel
for mesothelioma is between 4 and 75 years, with an average latency of around 35 to 40 years
and an implied standard dewiation of approximately 11 years. This is supported by the
abserved latency distribution of mesothelioma claims reported across all years, shown in the
chart below.

Figure 6.5; Latency distribution of mesothelioma claims
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Our latency model assumes a "normal distribution” and the above chart seems to support
that assumption at this time.

Given the average pariod of exposura is 16 years, this implies our mean latency assumption
from the date of first exposure is approximately 43 years (being 35 + %*16). Ouwr modal
therefore generally accords with epidemiclogical literature and, if anything, assumes slighthy
longar latencies than epidemiological studies suggest.

At presant, given that we are approximately 45 years after tha main peried of exposure, claims
currently beang reported reflect a broad mix of claims of varying latency periods, Accordingly,
any analysis of the chserved awerage |latency period of reparted claims during the mast recent
5 to 10 report years:

+  Should provide a good indicator of the underlying average latency period of each disease
type; and

= Should have shown an upwards trend given the reduction in exposure in the late 1970s
and 1980s.

Over the past ten years, the observed average latency of mesothelioma claims reported in a
report year has increased from 37 years ta 43 years, increasmng at a rate of about 0.6 years
with every year that passes,

The observed average latency of clams reported in future report years should also be
axpected 1o show a further upward trend in the coming years.

The currently obsarved standard deviation of the latency peried is 7.2 years.

The clamns expenence to date and the assumptions selected seem to broadly accord with
epdemiclogical research in relation to mesothelioma, once the relevant adjustments to
standardise anto a consistent terminalogy are made,

The trand in latancy periods for other disease types is shown in the following charts.
Figure 6.6: Latency of asbestosis claims
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Figure &.7: Latency of lung cancer claims
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Figure 6.8: Latency of ARPD & Other claims
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The average obsered latency pericds for the other disease types show a more swrprising
trend, appearing to be longer than epidemiological literature has terded to suggest.

A summary of our underlying latency assumptions by disease type are shown below, The
mean and standard deviation values quoted are applied 1o & normal distribution model for the
latancy period.




6.3

6.3.1

Table 6.1: Assumed underlying latency distribution parameters from average date of
exposure to date of notification

Standard
Mean latency deviation of
{years) latency (years)

Mesoihebioma 35 10 |
Asbestosis 35 B
Lung Cancar 35 10
ARPD & Other 32 10
Whar! na wa

Workers compensation | va | wa 1

These assumplions are unchanged from the previous valuation.

An indication of how different assumptions would affect the incidence curve and therefore
the number of IBMR claims is as follows:

* A higher maan latency period would increase the peak parod of claims reparting (ie. a
higher number of IBNR claims),

* A |ower standard deviation would lead to a faster decay in the number of claims being
reported after the peak penod of claims reporting (e, fewer IBMR claims),

Modelled peak year of claims

Modelled assumptions {excluding mesotheliomal

Based on the application of our exposure model and our latency model, and the assumptions
contaned exphttly of mplicitly within those models, as described in detail in Section 3.4, the
peak year of notification of claims reporting against the Liable Entities for each disease type
(excluding mesotheliomal is modeled to be as follows:

Table 6.2: Modaled peak year of claim notifications

Current valuation Previous valuation

Asbestosis 200809 2008/09

Lung Cancer 201011 2010011
ARPD & Other 2007108 2007108
Wharf 2008108 2000001
Waorkers Compensation 2007108 2007108

The modelled peak year for Wharf has been shifted from 2000/01 to 2008009 in light of the
observed Wharf claims reporting over the last five years. The peak year for Wharf has been
selected to be in ling with a blend of the assumptions selected for the other disease types,

Otharwise, these modelled assumptions are unchanged and reflect no changes to the
exposure data and no changes 1o the latency model assumptions at this time.

We note that whilst the “modelled peak”™ derved from our model is as shown above, this
does not astomatically translate to, nor doas it imply that, the “highest claims reporting year™
will be those years, This is because variation from year 10 year is expected due to normal
"statistical variation” in claim numbers,
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6.4

Patential future considerations and impact on future valuations for mesothelioma claims
reporting

M 31 March 2014, we modified the incidence pattern for mesothelioma to reflect the
hesghtened claims reporting that emerged in 201314, We adepted a peak periad of reporting
of 20014015 10 200617,

That change in incsdence pattern has been maintained at the current valuation given that actual

axperience has been favourable to expectations for 20161 7, i.e. that there is no evidence at
this stage 1o suggest further increase 10 the incidence levels have been warramed.

Should mesathelioma claims reporting ascalata in future periods, further valuation responses
in future years may be necessany,
Such responses would also likely lead to the need to make additional adjustmants to the

longar-term incidence pattern assumptions and those changes could be material to the
valuation result,

The ewperience from 2012013 to 201617 has created additional uncertainty in setting
valuation assumptions for mesothelioma clam numbers and this means that we expect
additional valuation volatility for at least the next few years,

That additional volatility is likely to remain until such time as sufficient experience has been
gathered to determine i the recent claims expenence was abenational o 15 a more
permanent feature of future levels of mesothelioma claims reporting.

Pattern of future claim notifications assurmed

Mesotheloma

The following chart shows the pattern of future naotifications which have resulted from the
apphcation of our methedology as described in Section 6.3,

Figure 5.9: Projectad future clamm notifications for mesathelioma
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Other disease types

W have projected the future numbaer of claim notifications from the curve we have derved
using our exposure model and our latency model. We have applied this curve to the base
number of claims we have estimated for each disease type for 2017018 as summansed in
Section 5.6,

The following chart shows the pattern of future notifications which have resulted from the
application of our exposure and latency model and the recalibration of the cune 1o our revised
expectations of claims reporting activity for 2017/18.

Figure 6.10: Projected future claim natifications for other disease types
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Claims Experience: Average
Glaims and Legal Gosts

Owverview

‘We have analysed the average clam awards, average plaintifffother costs and average
defendant legal costs by discase type in arriving at our valuation assurmptions.

The table balow shows how the average settlament cost for non-nil attritional claims has
waried by chent settlernent year. All data have been converted into mid 2016017 money terms
using a historical base inflaton index of 4% per annum,

We refer to these amounts as “inflated average attritional awards” in the charts and tables
that follow.

Thex avarage amaounts shown hereafter ralate to the avarage amount of the contribution made
by the Liable Entities, and does not reflect the total award payable to the plaintiff unless this
is clearly stated to be the case,

In particular, for Workers Compensation the average award reflects the average contribution
by the Liable Entities for claims in which they are joned but relates only 1o that amount of the
award determined against the Liable Entities which is not met by a Workers Compensation
Scheme or Policy,

Table 7.1: Awerage atwritional non-nil claim award (inflated to mid 2016/17 money terms)
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7.2

Mesothelioma claims
Im setting our assumption for mesothelioma, we have considered average attritional awards
over the past 3, 4 and & years,

Figure 7.1: Average attritional awards (inflated to mid 2016f17 money terms) and numbser of
nen-nil claims settlements for mesothelioma claims lexcuding large claims)
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The chart shows the hastorcal wanability in average clism szes for mesothelioma, i.e. from
$276,000 1o $366,000 in mid 2016/17 monay 1erms.

The average of the past three years is $303,000; the average of the past four years is $314,000
and the average of the past five years s $319,000.

The expanence in 201617 was 24% below expectations.

Taking all of the above factors into consideration, we hawe adopted a base valuation
assumption of $325,000 for mesothelioma claims in mid 2016/1 7 monay tarms.

We hawve then mede explicit allowance for the impact of Sulivan vs Govdon in Victoria (zee
Saction 1.3.3 of this report]. The per claim loading of $§20,000 has been derived based on past
experienca of the cost of Sullivan va Gordon in NSW {of approximately $70,000 per claim) and
applying this to Victorian daims, which make up approximately 30% of claims by numbser.

The overall size assumption of $345.000 represents a 4% decrease in inflation-adjusted
terms.

Table 7.2: Average mesothaloma claims asswmptions

Claim settlement year

Valuation Report 20 200617
31-Mar-16 340,000 359,600
H-Mar-17 na 345,000

Nore: 2015/18 setthements arg in 2015/18 dollars whilst 2016/1 7 seltiements ave in 2016/17 dollars,




It is worth noting the variation between the cost of direct claims and cross claims and
between the number of defandants in a “direct claim”.

Figure 7.2: Average attritional awards (inflated to mid 2016 7 money terma) split between
Diract claims and Cross claims
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Figure 7.3: Average attritional awards Gnflated to mid 201617 money terms) by number of
defendants for Direct claims
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Averaga mesothelioma daim sizes payabde by the Lisble Entities have fallen in the last threa
years, It can be seen from the above charts that this has occurred both for single-defendant
casas (whera the Liable Entities pay 100% of the awardl and multi-defendant cases (where
the Lisble entities are on average paying around 65% of the total amount awarded 1o the
clasmant).



The reduction in average claim sizes is primarily @ result of the lower proportions of
mesothelioma claimants under the age of 70 (sea Figure 4.8 of this report).

Ms shown in the following chart, there is a marked difference between the average cost of
nendarge claims for claimanis aged undes 70 years, and those aged 70 and aver.

Figure 7.4: Average attritional awards (inflated to mid 201617 money terms) by age of
clasmant
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If we congsder the period 201011 to 2015116 lignering the very favourable experience in
201617), we can obsarve that:

= The average claim size for under-70 years old claimants has been broadly stable.
+  The average claim size for 70-80 year old claimants has been broadly stable,

#=  The average claim size for claimants over B0 years of age has seen a reduction of around
18%.

The key factor tharefore driving down the average claim size has been a change in the mix of
clasmns by claimant age (as discussed further in Figure 4.8 of this report).

Tha: sharp fall in overall average Clasm sizes in 201601 7 appears 1o be primarily a result of fewer
dams over $500,000; claims of this siza pramarily come from the undes-70 years old cobort
of claimants,

Given the smaller number of claims involved in relation to under-70 years obd claimants, it is
possible that the 201617 experience is more & function of random varniability and specific
characteristics of the small numbar of claimants. As such, we have not given significant
credibility 1o the 2016017 experience in setting the valuation assumptions.,
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Asbestosis claims

For asbestosis, it can ba seen from Table 7.1 that the pericd since 2003/04 has had volatile
average claim size experience, with average claim sizes ranging from $78,000 to $169,000 (in
mid 201817 money terms).

Figure 7.5: Average awards (inflated to mid 201617 meoney terms) and number of noa-nil
clams settlemants for asbestosis claims
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The average of the past three years is $88,000; the average of the past four years is $101,000
and the average of the past five years is $110.000,

In setting an assumgtion, we also note there has beaen one asbastosis claim settled for mora
than $1.6m in 2016/17 money terms e it is 8 “large claim” and i3 not shown in the above
analysis).

Taking all of the above factors into consideration, we have adopled a valuation assumption of
$112,000 for asbestoses claims in mid 201617 monay terms. This assumpion represents a
B% decrease in inflation-adjusted terms,

Tahle 7.3; Average ashestosis claims assumptions

Claim settlement year

Valuation Report 201618 200617
31-Mar-16 115000 | 121,600
31-Mar17 wa | 112,000

Mote: 201518 settlements are in 201518 dotlars whilst 201611 7 settiements are in 201671 7 dallars.




7.4

Lung cancer claims

The avarage award for lung cancer claims has axhibited some volatility in the past five years,
although this is not unexpected given the small volume of claim settlements [approximately
1010 30 claims per annumi).

Figure 7.6: Average awards inflated to mid 201617 meoney terms) and number of noa-nil
claims settlemants for lung cancer claims
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The average of the past three years is $115,000; the average of the past four years is $116.000
and the average of the past five years is $120.000,

At this valuation, we have adopted an awerage award size of $125,000, which broadly
reprasents the average observed experience in recent years but alse takes into conssderation
the historic volatility in average cost of this disease type. This assumption represents a
decrease of 9% in inflaton-adjusted terms from our previous assumplion.

Tably 7.4; Average lung cancer claims assumptions

Claim settlemaent year

Valuation Report 2016118 201617

31-Mar-18 130,000 137,500
A7 nia 125,000

MNara: 201518 settlements are in 2015/16 dollars whilst 201671 7 sariements are in 201611 7 dolars.




ARPD & Other claims

The average award size over the past nine years has beean relatively stable, with the exception
of the low average award sizes observed in 2007108 and 201415,

Figure 7.7: Average awards (nflated to mid 201617 money terms) and number of non-nil
claims settlements for ARPD & Other claims
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For ARPD & Other claims, the average of the past three years is $92,000; the sverage of the
past four years is $97,000 and the average of the past five years is $98.000.

Taking all of the above factors into consideration, we have adopted a valuation assumption of
$100,000 for ARPD & Other claims in mid 201617 monay terms. This assumption is in ling
with our previous assumption in inflation-adjusted terms.

Tabbe 7.5: Averaga ARPD & Other claims assumptions

Claim settloment year
Valuation Report 2016186 200617

31-Mar-16 i
o 3Mara?

Mote: 201518 settlaments are in 201518 datlars whilst 20161 7 settlements are in 201671 7 dollars.
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Workers Compensation claims

The average award for non-nil Workers Compensation claims has shown a large degrea of
volatility, reflecting the small number of non-nil claims,

Figure 7.8: Average awards (nflated to mid 201617 money terms) and number of non-nil
clams settlements for Warkers Compensation claims
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It should be noted that the high sverage claim size in 2001712 1s due to one claim of $500,000
(im 2011/12 walugs). Furthermore, we understand that this claim payment was able 1o ba
recovered from the workers compensation msurer a1 a later date,

There have been no non-nil claims settled in 20161 7.

At this valuation, we have adopted an average award size of $130,000, which represents a
decrease of 17% in inflation-adjusted terms from our previous assumption,

This assumpdtion is not material to the ovarall lizhility given the high proportion of claims (in
excess of 90%) which are settled with no retained liability against the Ligble Entities,

Table 7.6: Average Workess Compensation claims assumptions

Claim settlement year

Valuation Report 2016/16 201617
31-Mar-16 147,500 156,000
[ 31-Mar-17 wa 130,000

MNara: 201516 settlaments are in 2015/16 dollars whilst 2001611 7 satmements are i 20161 7 aolars.




Wharf claims
For whart claims, the average of the past three years has been $81,000; the average of tha
past four years has been $96,000 and the average of the past five years has been 585,000,

Figure 7.9: Average awards (nflated to mid 201617 money terms) and number of non-nil
claims settlements for wharf claims
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The exparience in 2008008 was impacted by one large caim of almost $600,000 {in 2008/09
values). In the absence of this claim, the average claim size for that year would have been
$122,000,

Wie hawve adopted a valuation assumption of $110,000 in mid 2001617 money terms which
represents a 2% decrease compared 1o our previous valuation in inflation-adyusted terms,
Given tha small wolume of wharf claims, this assumption is not financially significant to tha
overall resulls.

Table 7.7: Average wharf claims assumptions

Claim settlemaent year
201618

Valuation Report

MH-Mar16 | 106,00
H-Mar-17 na

MNara: 201518 settlements are in 2015/16 dollars whilst 201671 7 sariements are in 201611 7 dolars.
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Mesothelioma large claim size and incidence rates

There have been B5 masothalioma claims settled with awards in excess of $1m in 2008/07
money terms. All of these caims are product and publc liabdity claims,

Figure 7.10: Distribution of individual large claims by sattlamant year
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In aggregate these claims have been settled for $143.6m in mid 2016017 money 1erms, a1 an
average cost of approximately $2.21m. There have baen two claims of more than $5.0m each
in mid 2016/17 money terms,

At the 31 March 2007 valuation, there are no large masothefioma claims that are open.

In sedecting a large claim incidence rate, or expected annual number of large claims, we have
analyzed the number of large claims by year of notification,

The chart below shows the number of claims that are currently assessed as large. We have
separately shown the number of claims that have been settled and the number of claims that
ara yet to sattle but are currently anticipated to be settled as a large claim; although wa nota
that at this valuation, there are no such pending large claims.,

Wi have also indicated our previcus valuation assumption a1 31 March 2018 (bemng for B large
dlmms based on a 2% incidence rate for 400 claims) and our revised valuation essumption at
31 March 2017 (being for 5.6 claims, based on a 1.5% incidence rate for 372 claims),




Figure 7.11: Number of mesothelioma large claims by year of notification
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We have assumed a future large claim incidence rate of 1,50% over all future years, The
incidence rata assumption is reduced from our assumption of 2.00% at the previous valuation.

For the average large claim size, we have adopted a valuation assumption of $2.21m in mid
20067 money terms which represents a 2% reduction compared 10 our previous
assumption in inflation-adjusted terms.

Implicitly, this allows for the cccasional $5.0m claim at an incidence rate broadly equivalent
to past expenence (approximataly one such clasm avery five yoars).

As a consequence, the overall claim cost loading per non-nil mesothelioma claim (excluding
legal cost allowances) to make allowance for large claims is $33,150 (being 1.50% x
$2,210,000). This is @ 27% reduction from our previous valuation assumption of 545,260 (in
2016117 money terms) (baing calculated as 2.00% x $2, 140,000 x 1.0675).

In relation to legal costs, we have made an additional allowance for plasntiff legal costs to
allpwy for those instances where such costs are made additional to, rather than included with,
the claims award and also for defence costs.

The actual incidence of, and settlament of, large claims is not readily predictable and therefora
deviatons will occur from year to year due to random fluctuatons because of the small
numbers of large claims (betweaen § and 10 per annum).

For pther disease types, we observe that there has been (in 201415} one asbestosis claim
which exceeds the “large claims threshold™. We have made implicit allowance for this claim
in settng cur attritional claim size assumption for that disease type.
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Summary average claim cost assumptions

The following table provides a summary of our average claim cost assumptions at this
valuation, and those assumed at the previous valuation,

Table 7.8: Summary average claim cost assumplions

Current Previous

Valuation Valuation
Mesothelioma 345,000 359,600
Asbestosis 112,000 121,600
Lung Cancer 125,000 137,500
ARFD & Other 100,000 100.500
‘Wharf 110,000 112,100
Workers Compensation 130,000 156,000

Average Size: | Awrage Size:

Mesothelioma Large 52.21m. $2.26m.

Claims {award only}) Frequency: Frequency:

1.50% 2.00%

Mate: Both the currant valuation assumpdion and the grewious valuaiion assumglion are expressed in
20161 7 money terms.
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7.10.2

Defence legal costs
Mon-nil claims

The average defence legal costs for non-nil claims by settlement year have been relatively
stabla over tha last ten years for mesothelioma, asbestosis and ARPD & Other,

The average defence coests for lung cancer have shown a greater dagree of variability,
although this is not unexpected given the small volume of claim settlements lapproximately
10 to 30 claims per anmumy).

Figure: 7.12: Average defence legal costs linflated to mid 2001601 7 money terms) for non-nil
dmms settlements by settlement year
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Male, The charl does noal indlude average defence costs for Wharf and Worker clums due to the
smaller number of claims involved and the varabiity that exists 35 8 consequence.

For mesothelioma and asbestosis, defence legal costs have averaged between $17,000 and
$20,000 ower the past three 1o five years,

For lung cancer, the average of the past three years is $23.000; the average of the past four
years is $18,000 and the average of the past five years is $19,000,

Fed ARPD & Other, the average of the past thiee 1o five years is around $20,000.

Large claims
The average defence legal costs across all 65 large claims has been $148,000 although this
has generally been trending downwards over time,

By way of illustration, the average defence legal costs for claims settled in the period 2010111
10 201617 has been $83,700.

W have allowed for defence kegal costs of $93,000 ped large claim having regard 1o the more
recent experience.
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Mil claims

The average defence legal costs for nil claims by settlement year has been volatile for all
disease types.

Fod masotheboma, the volatility i3 a consequence of low nil settlemant rale, meaning that
there may be 20 to 30 ni claims in any year.

For the other disease types. the number of nil claims might typically be of the order of 10
claims per annum for each disease type.

Figure 7.13: Average defence legal costs (inflated to mid 2016/ 7 money terms) for nil
clams settlemants by settlement year

Ve 000

80,000
120,000
& 100,500

=

& sosoo

F w0
20,000

2003 2004 2005 JOO6 2007 2008 2000 2010 1 2002 2013 24 28 e
Sattlement year

——Mesothaboms ——Ashosions ——Lung cencey  —— ARPD & Othar

Nore: The chart does nol include average defence costs for Wharf and Worker claims due fo the
smalar number of claims invafved and the vanability thal exisls a5 a consequeance.

Summary average defendant legal costs assumptions

The following table provides a summary of our defendant legal costs assumptions at this
valuation, and those assumed at the previcus valuation.

Table 7.9: Summary average defendant legal costs assumptions
Current Valuation Prev faluation

Non NIl Hil Non Hil Hil
Claims Claims Claims Claims

Workers Compensation
Mesathaiioma Larg

Maota: Both the currant valuation assumgdion and the grewious valuaiion assumgplion are expressed i
2016 7 monay terms.




6. Claims Experience: Nil Settiement
RALes

B.1 Owverview
We have analysed the nil settlement rates, being the number of nil settlaments expressed as
a percentage of the total number of settlements Ind and nonenilk,

The table below shows the observed nil settlement rates by disease type and by settbement
year.

Table 8.1: NIl settlernent rates
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Mesothelioma claims

The fodlowing chart shows tha number of claims settled for nil cost, the total number of claims.
settled and the implied nil settlement rate for each settlement year,

Figure &.1: Masothelioma nil claims expanence
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Im considering the future nil sattlemeant rate assumption, we note the following:

&

The nil settlement rate for the past three years has averaged 12%, for the past four years
has averaged 10% and for the past five years has sveraged 10%. Each of these s
significantly impacted by the 20% rate observed in 2016017,

The nil settlement rate for the 201314 year at 3% has been the lowest nil settbement
rate observed histosically,

The nil settlament rate for the 201617 year at 20% was due to 54 Queansland statutory
recovary clisms being closed at nil cost in December 2016,

Excluding the 54 Queensland Statutory nil claims, the nil settlement rate for 2006017 was
7.8%, compared with our assumption {at 31 March 20161 of 7.0%.

Taking all of these factors into consideration, we have assumed a future nil settlameant rate
of 7.086, unchanged from our prévious valuation,




B3 Asbestosis claims

As with mesothalioma, tha historical asbestosis nil settlarment rate has bean volatila.

Figure 8.2 Asbestosis nil claims experience
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In considaring the future nil settlemant rate assumption, we note the following:

s The nil settlement rate for the past three yaars has sweraged 10%, for the past four years
has averaged 9% and for the past five years has averaged 11%.

+  The nil settlernent rate for 201617 was 13%. Excluding 2 Queensland Statutory nil
claimag, the nil settlemeant rate was at 11%, compared with our assumption (a1 31 March
2016) of B.5%.

Taking all of these factors into consideration, we have assumed a future nil settlement rate
of 9.0%, an increase from our previous valuation assumption of 8.5%.
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Lung cancer claims

Givan tha small volumeas of claims, volatility in the nil settlement rate for lung cancer claims
i 10 be expected,

Figure 8.3: Lung cancer nil claims exparence
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In considering the future nil sattlemeant rate assumption, we note the following:

#  The nil settlement rate for the past three years has averaged 32%, for the past four years
has averaged 23% and for the past fve years has sveraged 23%. Each of these s
significantly impacted by the 3% rate observed in 201314 and the 58% rate observed in
2061 T,

+  The nil settlement rate for the 2013/14 year at 3% has been the lowest nil settlement
rate in the past 16 years;

= The nil settlement rate for 2006017 was 58%, the highest nil settlerment rate observed
historically, and this compares with our assunmption {at 31 March 2016) of 20%.

Taking all of these factors into consideration, we have assumed a future nil settlement rate
of 23%, an increase from our previous assumption of 20%.
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ARPD & Other claims

As with other disease types, thera has been significant volatility in the historical nil settbement
rate, given the low numbers of claims for this disease.

Figure &.4: ARPD & Othar nil claims exparience

50 5.

40 e 3
gﬂﬂ k2
k-]
ia‘n 2%

2
v e
L

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2000 2000 2011 2092 2013 2014 2015 2018
Settiement year

— Hurmber of rd dlaims. — Humber of seidiements = IhH sediemen raie

The nil senbement rate for the past three years has averaged 9%, for the past four years has
averagad 10% and for the past five years has averaged 13%.

‘W have selected 13% as our nil settlement rate assumption, unchanged from our previous
waluation,




B&

Workers Compensation claims

The nil settlement rates for Workers Compensation claims have been high and reflect the
portion of claims whose costs are fully met by 8 Workers Compensation Scheme or Policy,
The proportion of such claims which are fully met by insurance has been ralatively stabbe sinca
1907/98, typically varying between 80% and 100%.,

The nil setthement rate has been in excess of 0% for seven of the past ten years, and it has
been above B0% for nine out of the past ten years,

Figure 8.5 Waorkers Compensation nil claims experience
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‘W have selected 97% as our nil settlement rate assumption, unchanged from our previous
vahuation,

The owerall financial impact of this assumption is not material.
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Wharf claims
During the past six years, the nil settlament rate has exhibited considerably volatility for whart
claims, varying between 0% and 40%.

The nil settlermant rate for the past three years has averaged 9%, for the past four years it
has averaged 11% and for the past five years it has averaged 16%:.

Figgure: 8.6 Wharf nil claims experence
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‘W have selected a nil settlement rate assumption of 15%, a decrease from our previous
valuation assumption of 18%.

Given the low volume of claims activity for wharf claims, this assumption is highly subjective
bt is also not material 19 the ovesall liability assessment.

Summary assumptions

The following table prowides a surmmary of our nil settlement rate assumptions at this
valuation, and those assumed at the previous valuation.

Tabla 8.2: Summary nil settlement rate assumptions

Current Previous

Valuation Valuation
Masothelioma T.0% T.0%
Asbestosis 9.0% B.5%
Lung Cancer 23.0% 20.0%
ARPD & Other 13.0% 13.0%
Wharf 15.0% 18.0%

Workers C a7.0% o7 0%
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Economic and Other
Assumptions

Overview
The two main economic assumptions required for our valuation are:

= The underlying claims inflation assumptions adopted to project the future claims
settlement amounts and related costs,

*  The discount rate adopted for the present value detarminations.
These are considered in turn in Sections 9.2 10 9.4,

We also discuss the basis of derivation of other assumptions, being:
+  The cross-claim recovery rate; and

#  The pattern of settlemant of future reported claims and pending claims.

Claims inflation

We are required to make assumptions about the fuure rate of inflation of claims ¢osts, We
have adopted a standard Australian actuarial claims inflation model for lisbilities of the typa
considered in this report that is based on:

+ Anunderlying, or base, rate of general economic inflation relevant to the labilities, in this
case based on wage/salary (earmngst mflation; and

* A rate of superimposed inflation, i.e. the rate 8t which claims costs inflation exceeds
base mflation,

Basa inflation basis

Ideally, we would aim to derive our long term base inflation assumptions based on observable
market indicators or other economic benchmarks, Unfortunately, such indicators and
benchmarks typically focus on inflation measures such &s CP le.g. CPl index bond yields and
RBA inflation targetsh,

Wie have darved our base inflation assumption from CPI based indscators together with long
terrm CPLJ AWOTE relativities,
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CPI assumption

We have considered two mdicators for our TPl assumption:
= Market imphed CPl measures.

=  RBA CPlinflation targets.

We have measured the financial market imphed expectations of the longer-term rate of CPI
by reference 1o the gap batwean the yield on Commonwealth Government Bonds and tha
real yield on Commanwealth Government CPI index-hnked bonds,

The chart below shows the yields avadable for 10-year Commanwealth Government Bonds
and Index-linked bonds, The gap between the two represents the implied market expeciation
for CPLat the timie,

Figure 9.1: Trends in Bond Yields
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Source: Reserve Bank of Austraila
It can be seen that the implied rate of CP1 has varied between 1.3% per annum and 4.2% per
annum during the past 10 years.

At 31 March 2017, the effective annual yield on long-term Commonwealth Government
Bonds was 2.8% per annum (31 March 20016: 2.6% per annum) and the equivalent effective
real yield on long-term index-linked bonds was approximately 1.25% per annum (31 March
2016: 1,1% per annuml. This implies current merket expectations for the long-term rate of
CPl are of the order of 1.55% par annum.

In considering this result we nate that:

*  The yield on both neminal and CPl-linked Commonwealth Government Bonds is driven
by supply and demand, The yields on both, and their relativity, are subject 1o some
wolatility.

*  The RBA's long term target is for CPI to be maintained between 2% and 3% per annum.

«  The implied CPI rate stayed consistently above 3.2% per annum from March 2006 o
Septamber 2008, peaking at almost 4.2% in May 2008,
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= Since October 2008, the impSed rate of CP| has ramained below 3.0% per annum.

= Since Aprl 2015, the imphed rate of CPI has generally decreased from a level of 1.9% in
April 20016 10 1.3% in Septernber 2016. Since then it has increased to 1.65% in March
2017,

Wieighing this evidence together suggasts a long term CP1 inflation banchmark of 2.50% to
3.00% per annum, albeit that in the near term fates might be lower,
Wages (AWOTE) £ CPI relativity

The following chart summarises the annualised rate of AWOTE and CPI inflation, and their
redativity, for the 1971 1o 2016 peried. The years shown in the char are calendar years,

Figure 9.2: Trends in CPland AWOTE
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In considening the above, we note:

+»  The perod from 1995 reflects largely & contineous penod of economic growth which
may nat be reflective of longer term trends.

= The longer pericds cover a range of business cycles, albait that the penod from 1971
includes the umique events of the early 1970's {Le. general inflationary pressuras, both
lescalty and worldwide, and the impact of high od prices owing to the il Crisis in 1973).

Allowing for these factors, the historical data suggests a CPl / AWOTE relativity, or gap, of
approximately 1.50% 10 2,00% per annum,

Given a longer wedm CPI benchmark of 2.50% to 3.00%, this suggests a longer-term wage
inflation (AWOTE] assurnption of 4.00% to 5.00% p.a.
Impact of claimant ageing and non-AWOTE inflation effects

The overall age profile of claimants is expected to rise over future years with the consequent
impact that, other factors held constant, claim amounts should tend to increase mara slowly
than average wage inflation (excluding any societal changes, @.g. changes in retiremant agel,




This is due to both reduced compensation for years of income or life lost, and a tendency for
post-retiremant age benefits to increasa at a rate closer o CPl than AWOTE.

Furtharmore, we note that:

+ some heads of damage. such as genersl damages and compensation for loss of
axpactation of life, would typically be expected 10 increase at CPl or lower;

# other haads of damage, including loss of earnings, would be expected to increase at
AWOTE (gnoning the ageng effect); and

+  medical expenses and care costs would be expected 1o increass in line with medical cost
inflation which in recent years has been considerably in excess of AWOTE.

Figure 9.3: Age profile of mesothelioma claimanis by report year
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The chart indicates that the median age of mesothaboma claimants is increasing by
approximately 0,50 years esch year, with the median age now in excess of 74 years.

The fallowing chart shows how average claim size vanes by decade of age.

Figure 9.4: Average mesothelioma claim settlement amounts by decade of age (inflated to
mic-2016/17 money tedms)
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The analysis suggests that the average mesothelioma award reduces by approximately 30%
for each increasing decade of age whan considaring the typical age range of the claimants
fi.e. over 60 years of age), although it can be seen that the rate of reduction in award sizes by
decade of age decreases after 80 years of age.

Weighing these various factors tpgether, and allewing for the relative mix of claims between
mesothelioma and nonsmasothelioma, we consider that a reasonable assumption for the
deflationary allowance for the impact of increases in the average age of claimants upon
average Sizes s approxmately 0.75% to 1.00% per annum,

Taking all of these factors into account, we have adopted a long-term base inflation
assumption of 4,00% per annum.

The adopted assumption is slightly lower than our previous long-term assumption of 4.25%
e andiurm,
ﬁt:_uﬁmmmﬁ 10 base inflation ARSUMPLONS i the shart 1erm

With the current prevailing econamic conditons, incleding lower yields and imphed lower
outiook for inflation measures, we consider it appropriate 1o select lower short term
assumptions for base inflation.

In the short to madium term, we have adopted 3.50% as the base inflation assumption for
2017018, ncreasing to 3.75% for 2008119 and 4.00% for 201920. These assumptions have
been maintained from our pravious valuation.

We have assumed that the long-term rates of base inflation will apply from 2020/21 anwards.

The following table summarizes the base inflation assumptions we have selected for the
current and pravious valuations.

Tahle 9.1: Base inflation assumptions

Previous

Current

Valuation Valuation

nia

201617

201718 3.50%

201819 3.75% 3.75%
2019720 4.00% 4.00%
Long-term_ 4.00% A4.25%

These assumptions apply both to claims awards and legal costs.
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Superimposed inflation
Overview

Superimposed inflation is a term commenly used by Australian actuaries te measure the rate
at which average claims costs escalate in excess of a base (usually wage] inflation measure.

As a rasult, superimposed inflation is a “catch-all” for a range of potential factors affecting
claims costs, incheding [but not limited to):

+  Courts making cOMpensation payrments in relation 1o new heads of damage;
+  Courts changing the lewvels of compensation paid for existing heads of damage;

= Advancaments in medical treatmants - for example, this could lead to higher medical
treatment costs le.g. the cost of the use of new drug treatments);

=  Allowance for medical costs to rise faster than wages becausa of the use of enhanced
medical technologies,

«  Changes in life expectancy;

s  Changes in retirement age - this would have the potential 1o increase future econamic
loss awards;

+«  Changes in the ralative share of the liabdity 1o be borne by the Liabla Entities' fwhich we
refar to as “the contribution rate ™) and which might result frem changas in the number
of defendants joined in claims; and

= Changes m the mix of clims costs by different heads of damage.

Additionally, superimposed inflation also captures those characteristics of claims exparence
which might have different relative claim sizes but which are currently modelled in aggregate
(rather than explicitly and separately modelled). This incledes factors such as:

s  Changes in the mix of claims batween diract and cross claims;

= Changes in the mix of clams between rencvator and nonrenowvator clams;

+  Changes in the mix of ¢laims by the numbers of defendants to each claim; and
= Changes in the mix of claims by claimant age.

Whilst the future rate of superimposed inflation is uncertaim, and not predictable from ona
year 10 1he next, it is of note that the average claim costs appear 1o have been relatively stable
in racent years (after adjusting for wage inflation) and that, if anything, everage claim sizes
have trended downwards in the last three years. As descussed alsewhere in ths report, this
reflects the changing mix of clasmants by claimant age (shifting towards clder claimants].

Furthermore, the emergence of new or expanding heads of damage does not tend to proceed
smoothly but progresses in “steps”, depanding on the outcome of legislative and other
developments,




Analysis of past rates of supernmposed inflation

Wi have reviewed the rate of inflation of claims costs by settlerment year for the past 19 years
for mesothelioma claims. We have assessed this by analysing uninflated claim costs and

therefare the following chart measures the trend in the total rate of clamms inflaton.

The following chart can then be used to determine the rate of inflation of claim awards over
and above base inflation (e, measuring the rate of supenmposed inflation] in any ane year or
an annualised rate of superimpased inflation over & longer term. The rate of inflation of claims
costs measured by this chant therefore includes the negative effect of ageing upen claim

awards.

Figure 9.5; Average mesothelioma awards of the Liable Entrties (wninflated)

From Figuie 9.5, we have the followang observations in relation 1o the rate of wtal clam
inflation fi.e. including both base inflation and superimposed inflation) of the Liable Entities’

Aol CIIT D0 (Uraniated)
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share of claims awards:

From 199880 to 2006/06,
From 1998/89 to 2007/08,
From 1998/39 to 2008/09,
Fram 200808 to 201112,
From 200808 10 201314,
From 200809 to 201516,

the average rate of claims inflation was 5.9% per annum,
the average rate of claims inflation was 5.6% per annum.
the average rate of clams inflation was 6.9% per annum.
the average rate of claims inflation wag 2.4% per annum.
the average rate of claims inflation was 3.2% per annum.

the average rate of claims inflation was 1.4% per annum.

The impact of the above is that:

From 1998/99 1o 2011112,
From 1998/99 to 2013114,
From 199899 1o 201516,

the everage rate of claims inflation was 5.8% per annum.
the average rate of claims inflation was 5.6% per annum.

the average rate of claims inflation was 4.6% per annum,
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The actuarial approach for this report is 1o take an average view for superimposed inflation to
be applied over the long-term, noting that there will necessarily be deviations from this
average on an annual basis and that cashflows are projected for the next 50 or more years,

Weighing all of the evidence togather, and in particular recognising that the 15-year panod
singe 2001/02 has generally been benign, wa have adopted an assumed long-term rate of
future superimpaosed inflation of claims awards of 2.00% per annum.

This is lower than our previous assumption of 2.25% per annuwm.
There is no superimpased inflation applied 10 legal costs.

The outcome of this assumption 5 a “supenmposed milation allowance” of approximately
£225m on a discounted central estimate basis. The majority of this “superimposead inflation
allowance” arises n the projected cashflows from 2020 1o 2040,

Discount rates: Commonwealth bond zero coupon yields

We have calculated the zero coupon yield curve at 31 March 2017 underlying the prices,
coupons and durations of Commionwealth Govarnment Bonds for the purpose of discounting
the liabilities for this report,

The use of such discount rates is consistent with standard Australian actuarial practice for
such Rabilities, is in accordance with the Institute of Actuaries of Australia’s Professional
Standard PS300 and is also consstent with our understanding of the Australian accounting
standards.

The chart balow shows the essumptions for the current valuation and the previous valuation.

Figure 9.6; Zero coupon yiekd curve by duration
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Cross-claim recovery rates

The following chart shows how the experience of cross-claim recoveries has varied over the
last six years, both in monetary terms and expressed as a percentage of gross payments.

Figure 9.7: Cross-claim recovery axperignce
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Cross claim recovenies reduced year on year from 201213 10 201516, both in absolute terms
and as a percantaga of gross paymants. [n 2018/17, there was a material increase in tha laval
of cross-claim recoveries,

A this stage, and given this s only ona year's exparience, we hava ratained our préevious
assumption for cross-claim recoveries at 1,5% of claims awards,

Settlement Patterns

Trangulation methods are used to derive the past pattern of settlement of claims and are
used in forming a view on future settlemeant pattems,
The: fallowing triangles provide an llustrative example of how we perform this:

Figure 9.8: Settlernant pattern derrvation for mesothelioma claims: paid as % of ultimate
Cosl
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Figure 9.9: Settlerment pattern derrvation for non-mesothelioma claims: pasd a5 % of

ultimate cost
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We have estimated the settlement patiern for future clasm reporting as follows:

Table 9.2: Settlement pattern of claims awards by delay from claim reparting

35.0%
308
1.0%
1.0%
0.5%
0.5%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0% 0.5%

WO o O U B R R e O

These assumed settlements patterns have bean micdified slightly since our pravious
valuation, resulting in an assumption of a slight slowing down for mesothelioma claim
sattlemnents and a shght speedng up for non-masothaboma claim settlements.
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Valuation Results

101  Central estimate liability
A 31 March 2017, aur projected central estimate of the lisbilities of the Lasble Entities (the
Discounted Central Estimatel to be met by the AICF Trust i $1,740.1m (March 20186:
$1.904.1m}.
Wie have not allowed for the future Operating Expenses of the AICF Trust or the Lable Entities
in the liability assessmeant,
The lallownng tabde shows a summary of our central estimate liabilkty assessment and
comparas the current assessment with our previous valuation.
Table 10.1: Comparison of central estimate of liabilties

Gross of Net of Het of
Insurance Insurance Insurance insurance
recoveries recoveries recoveries recoveries

Total uninflated and
Fer e 1467 6 B1a 1,385.7 14338
Infiation allowance 8430 200 8140 3.0
Total inflated and
e cashill 23106 110.9 21997 24268
Discounting allowance {480.9) [21.4) {459.86) (522.8)
Net present value
\iablli 1820.7 B0.5 1,740.1 1,904.1

10.2  Comparison with previous valuation
In the absence of any change 1o the claim projection assumptions from our 31 March 2016
valuation, other than allowing for the changes in the discount rate, we would have projected
& Discounted Central Estimate Eability of $1,789.6m as at 31 March 2017, i.e. a reduction of
§114.5m from our 31 March 2016 valuaton result.
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This decrease of $114.5m is due to:

= A reduction of $111.7m, being the net impact of expecied claims payments (which
reduce the liability) and the “unwind of discount” fwhich increases the hability and
reflacts the fact that cashflows are now one year nearer and therefore ara discounted by
one yaar lassh,

& Adecrease of $2.8m resulting from changes 1o the yield curve between 31 March 2016
and 31 March 2017.

Ouwr kability assessment at 31 March 2017 of $1,740.1m represenis a decrease of $49.6m,
which arises from changes to the actuarial assumptions.

The decreasa of $49.5m is principally a consegquence of:

»  Lower average claim sizes and defence lagal cost assumptions across most diseasa
ypes;

= Areduction in the assumed number of large mesothalioma claims; and

= Lowaer claims inflation assumptions in the longer-term;

offset by

*  Lower future insurance recaveries as a result of the Equitas Commutation.

The following chart shows an analysis of the change in our liability assessments from 31
March 2016 to 31 March 2017 on & discounted basis,

Figure 10.1: Analysis of change in central estmate ability (discounted basis)
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Mote: Green bars signal that this factor has given rise to an increase in the Kabiity whilst light blue bars
signal that this factor has given rige fo a reduction (n the Labibry.
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The tollowing chart shows an analys:s of the change in our liability assessments from March
2016 to March 2017 on an undiscounted basis.

Figure 10.2: Analysis of change in central estimate liability (undiscounted basis)
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The undiscounted liability as of 31 March 2017 has decreased from $2,279m (based on the
31 March 2016 valuation] to $2200m. This represents a decrease of $79m. On an
undizcounted basis, the Equitas Commutation has contributed an increase of §140m.
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103

Comparison of valuation results since 30 September 2006

Wie have analysed how our valuation results have changed since the Initial Report las defined
in the Amended Final Funding Agreement] at 30 September 2006,

The table below shows the rasults over time.

We have used the inflated and undiscounted rasults as the comparison. We consider this to
be the mast spproprate assessment as it removes the impacts of changes in discount rates
and the “unwind of the discount”.

Table 10.2: Compansen of valuation resulis since 30 Seplember 2006

prewoun francisl pear b Laii AT A L i EAx] AmY i) ExL) LR
- Ll - - M M - A1} L Bl £}
| aam  ame 2w 1008 Q0 RS 24W Q0 2eM 2Au 241
o EL ] L - - B NP

It o BTN NSRRI
£} am ] am 1w ] ] e = £ E-]

]
30 Bepimmber 1008 a5 - an i b L] A o HHE i Ll

Nafe: For FY2007, the stariing valuation (83, T68m) s the valualion at 30 Septembar 2006, not the
valugtigr al 31 March 2006,

The 1able shows that whilst there have been sorma years whore there have been increases
and some years where there have bean decreaszes arising from changes to actuarial valuation
assumplions, over the pericd from 30 September 2006 to 31 March 2007 the valuation has
improved by $106m (3% of the valuation contained in the Inital Report).

Im terms of nei cashflows, actual net paymenis of $863m have been made since 30
September 2006. This compares with an estimate of $1,072m projectad for the same pariod
(1 October 2006 1o 31 March 2017) in the valuation at 30 September 2006,

Adter allowing for remeval of the beneficial impact of HIH and other commutations (81 78m),
actual net cashflows have been approximately $31m {3%) below those projected in the
valuation a1 30 September 2006,

Gross cashflows in the same period have baen $21m (2%) below those projected in the
valuation at 30 September 2006 ($1.224m vs $1,245m).
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10.4

10.4.1

Cashflow projections
Historical cashflow expenditure

The following chart shows the monthly rate of expenditure by AICF relating to asbestos-
related claim settlements owver the past nine years,

Figure 10.3: Historical claim-ralated expenditure of the Liabla Entities
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Gross cashflow payments in the 12 months to 31 March 2007 were $125.0m (FY16:
$154.7mj).

Gross cashilow was lower than expectations by $43m, primarily due 10 the lower average
clasm siza of mesothelioma claims which were 24% below expectations, together with lower
axpenditure on large mesotheboma claims, which were $16m favourable to expectations,

Actual net cashflow in 200617 ($2.2m) was lower than the net cashflow propcted for
200617 {$147.7m) in our 31 March 2016 valuation report.

Im the absence of the Equitas commutation proceeds, sctual net cashilow was $44.9m (30%]
lower than the net cashilow projected for 2016/17.
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10.4.2  Future cashilow projections

The following chart shows the projected net

cashilows underlying our current valustion and

the projectad net cashflow projection underlying our previous valuation at 31 March 2016,

Wie have also indicated the actusl annual net cashflows for all financial years since 2000/01
[the green bars) and the level of the actual net cashilows in the absence of HIH recoverias ar

commtation proceeds (the purple bars repre

sant the incremaental amount of those proceeds),

Figure 10.4: Annual cashflow projections - inflated and undiscounted ($m)
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Appendix B.

shilows underlying this chart are documentad in

Given the extremely long-tailed nature of asbestos-related liabdities, a small change in an

individual assumption can have a significant

impact upon the cashflow profile of the labilities.
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105  Amended Final Funding Agreement calculations

The Amended Final Funding Agreement sets out the basis on which payments will be mada
to the AICF Trust,

Additionally, there are a number of othar figures specified within the Amended Final Funding
Agresment that we are required o calculate, These are:

= Discountad Central Estimate;

s Term Cantral Estimata; and

+  Period Actuarial Estimate,

Tabbe 10.3: Amended Final Funding Agreement calculations

Discounted Central Estmate (net of cross-claim recoveries,
Insurance and Other Recoveries)

Period Actuarial Estimate (nel of cross-claim recoveries,
gross of Insurance and Other Recovernies) comprising:

Discownted vaiue of cashifowin 201748 1518

17401

4828

Diseounted valve of cashfowin 201819 166.8

Discounted vaive of cashfiowin 201920 1644

Term Ceniral Estimate (net of cross-claim recoveries,
Insurance and Other Recoveries)

1718

The actual funding amount due at a particular date will depend upon a number of factors,
including:

= the net asset position of the AICF Trust at that time;

= the free cash flow amount of the James Hardie Group in the preceding financial year;
and

®=  the Period Actuarial Estimate in the latast Annual Actuarial Report.
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Insurance Recovearies

O liabality valuation has made allowance for a discounted central estimate of Insurance
Recoveries of $89.5m,

This astimate is comprisad as follows:

Tabbe 10.4: Insurance recoverias at 31 March 2017

Gross liability
Product Bakilty reccrenies. 104.0 B4
Bad and doubti debd allowance (product) 2.8 @21
Prublic Rabilty o oo 28 T4
Bad and doubtiul debl allpwance (public| 0.2 K]
Insurance recovery assel 110.9 @85
Het liability 2188.7 1,740.1
e Bnoh MeCoery rate 45% 5.0%
Bad and doubthil debt rate 2T 28%
Value of insurance Policies
gt Facility 223

The combingd bad and doubtful debt rate is 2.5% on a discounted basis (2016: 2.0%),

The AICF Facility Agreement requires the Approved Actuary to calculate the discounted
central estimate value of certain Insurance Policies, being those specified in Schedule & of
the AICF Facility Agreement.

At 31 March 2017, the discounted central estimate of the Insurance Policies, as specified in
Schedule 5 of the AICF Facility Agreemaent, is $82.3m (March 2016: $219.7m).

The significant reduction in the value of Insurance Recowerias is a result of the Equitas
Cammutation,
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Uncertainty

Overview

There is uncertainty invoheed in any valuation of the liabilities of an insurance company or a
self-insurer. The sources of such uncertainty include, but are not Emited to:

= Parameter error = this is the risk that the parameters and assumptions chosen ultimately
prove not o be reflective of fulure experience,

= Model emor - this is the risk that the model selected for the valuation of the liabilities
ultimately proves not to be adequate for the projection of the kabilities,

*  Legal and social developments - this is the risk that the legal enviranment in which claims
are settled changes relative to its current and historical position thereby cauwsing
significantly differant awards.

= Future actual rates of inflation being different from that assumed.
*  The general economic environment being different from that assumed,

*  Potential sources of expasure - this is the risk that there exist sources of exposure which
are as yet unknown or unguantifiable, or for which no lisbilities have yet been observed,
but which may wigger future claims.

In the case of asbestos labdites, these uncenainties aie exacerbated by the extienvoly long
latency pariod from exposure to onset of disease and notification of a claim. Asbestos-related
clams often take in excess of 40 years from original exposure to become noatifed and then
settled, compared with an average delay from exposure to settlement of 4-5 years for many
oAhar compensation-type labilities such as Comprahensivie Third-Party injury liabilities or other
Wiorkers Compensation lisbilities.

Specific forms of uncertainty relating to asbestos-releted disease labilites include:

= The difficulty in quantifying the extent and pattern of past asbestos exposures and the
number and incidance of the ultimate number of lives that may be atfected by asbestos
related diseases ansing from such past asbestos exposures;

= The timing of the peak level and future pattern of incidence of claims reporting for
miesothelioma, particularly in ight of the high level of claims reporting activity in 200809,
the lower levals of activity through to 20011712 and the significant increases in claims
reporting in the next three years through 1o 2014/15;

=  The propensity of individuats affected by diseases arising from such exposure to file
comiman law claims against defendants;

= The extent to which the Liable Entities will be joined in such future commen law claims;
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=  The mix of claimants by age, in particular noting the shift towards older daimants and
which has had a downwards effect on average claim sizes in recent years;

= The fact that the ultimate severity of the impact of the disease and the quantum of the
claims that will be awarded will be subject to the outcome of avents that have not yet
occurred, inchuding:

- medical and epdemiclogical developments, including those relating 10 life
axpactancy in genaral;

- court interpretations;

= logeslative changes;

= changes to the form and range of benefits for which compensation may be awarded
(“heads of damage”);

= public attitudes ta claiming;

= the potantial for future procedural reforms in NSW and other States affecting tha
legal costs incurred in managing and settling claims;

= petental third-wave exposures; and

= social and economic conditions such as inflation.
Sensitivity testing

As we have noted above, there are many scurces of uncenainty, Actuaries often periorm
“sansitivity testing” to identify the impact of different assumptions on future experience,
thereby providing an indication of the degree of parameter error risk 1o which the valuation
assassmant s axposed.

Sensitnity testing may be considered as being & mechanism for testing “what will the
liabilities ke o instead of choosing (k] for assumption [al we choose [yl?" It is also a
mechanism for identifying how the result will change if experience turns out different in a
particular way ralative to that which underlies the central estimate expectations. As such, it
providas an indication of the level of vanability inherant in the valuation.

We have performed some sensitivity tests of the results of our central estimate valuation, We
have sensitivity tested the following factors:

*  number of claims notified: 10% above and balow our cantral estimate assumption,

*  average claim cost of a non-nil claim: 5% above and below cur central estimate
assumption.

* nil settlement rate: 2 percentage points above and below our central estimate
ASSUMPLIoN,

=  superimposed inflation: being 0% per annum or 4% par annum over all future years.
»  mesothelioma incidence pattern: we have tested two soparate alternative oulcomes:
= Pattarn 1 takes our cantral estimata pattern through to 202526 but assumes an

increased rate of joining of the Lisble Entities from 2026/27 orwards.
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1.3

= Pattern 2 takes pattern 1 and shifts it out by a further two years, i.e. mesotheloma
claims reporting doas not begin to raduce until after 20189, This also therefora
impacts the incidence patern for all years after 201819,

There are other factors which influence the liability assessment and which could be sensitiity
tested, including:
= The cross-claim recovery rate;

*  The vanation in timing of clasm notifications (but with no change in the overall number of
notifications); and

=  The pattern and delay of claim settternents from claim notification.

We have not sensitivity tested these factors, viewing them as being of less financial
significance indnvidually.

We have not sensitivity tested the value of Insurance Recoveries as uncartainties typscally

redate ta legal risk and disputation risk, and it is ROt possible to parametense a sensitivity test
in an informed manner.

We have not included a sensitrvity test for the impact of changes in discount rates although,
as noted in this Report, changes in discount rates can introduce significant volatility to the
Discounted Central Estimate rasult reporned at each year-end,

Results of sensitivity testing

The chart below shows the impact of various individual sensitivity tests on the Discounted
Central Estimate of the liabilities, and of a combined sensitivity 1est of 8 number of factors.

Alhough we have tested multiphe scenanos of each assumption, one cannat gauge sn ovarall
potantial range by simply adding these tests together. Accardingly, we have prepared a ranga
based on a combination of factors,

Figure 11.1: Sensitivity tasting results - Impact arcund the Discountad Central Estimate fin
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Figure 11.2: Sensitivity testing results - bmpact around the undiscounted central estimate (in
$m}

b e | T —
e e ks
e gt [ |
gt —
i s et | ]
s e [—"
P— e
P— ey
= = 1 - ™ ) ™ 1

The singhe mast sansitive assumption shown in the chart is the peak period of claims reporting
against the Lable Entities. Shifting the assumed period of peak claims reporting by a further
2 years for masothelioma from that currantly assumed of 2006017 (e, assuming that claim
reporting beging to reduce after 2001819) together with increased claims reporting from
2026/27 onwards relative to currant actuarial projections, could add approximately $600m
(34%) on & discounted basis to our valuation (as shown in Figure 11,1 by the scenario labelled
“masothalioma incidence pattarn (2)”).

Tabba 11.1: Summary resulis of sensitivity analysis (Sm)

Central estimate 21997 17401
Low Scenaric 15708 1279.3
High Scenario 44380 32458

Whilst the tabde abowe indicates a range around the discounted central estimate of liabilities
of -$461m to +$1,509m, the actual cost of lisbilities could fall outside that range depending
o i SCtual expedience,

Wi further note that these sensitvity test ranges ara not intended to correspond to a specitied
probabiliy of sufficiency nor are they intended 1o indicate an uwpper bound or a lower bound
of all possible outcomes.
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A~ Credit rating default rates by duration

0.00% 0.03% 0.14% 0.25% 0.35% 0.47% 0.52% 0.61% 0.67% 0.73% 0.76% 0.79% 0.82% 0.89% 0.96%

ARA

Al 0.00% 0.06% 0.06% 0.11% 0.17% 0.23% 0.29% 0.35% 0.41% 0.47% 0.54% 0.61% 0.68% 0.75% 0.82%
An 0.02% 0.04% 0.09% 0.23% 0.38% 0.508 0.64% 0.75% 0.85% 0.96% 1.05% 1.11% 1.23% 1.30% 1.38%
AR 0.03% 0.10% 0.21% 0.30% 0.38% 0.499% 0.57% 0.62% 0.69% 0.75% 0.82% 0.89% 0.92% 0.97% 1.03%
At 0.06% 0.12% 0.25% 0.40% 0.52% 0.62% 0.75% 0.89% 1.04% 1.21% 1.36% 1.53% L73% 1.96% 2.14%
A 0.07% 0.18% 0.28% 0.42% 0.57% 0.77% 0.97% 116% 1.38% 1.63% 1.84% 2.00% 2.14% 2.22% 2.41%
A- 0.09% 0.22% 0.36% 0.49% 0.68% 087 1.14% 1.34% 1.50% 1.64% 1.78% 1.93% 2.07% 2.21% 2.33%

BBE+ 0.15%  0.41% 0705 0.98% 136%  1.59% 1L84% 2.11% 2.41% 27%  3.00% 3.20%  3.46% 3800 419%
MNR 387%  758%  10079%  13.39% 15.45% 17.23%  18.65%  19.90% 2098% 2197%  22.79% 23.49% 24.13%  24.68%  25.22%
R 100,00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%%  100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%: 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%  100.00%

Source: Standard & Poors’ 2015 Annual Global Corporate Detault Study and Rating Transitions, 2 May 2016,
NR relates to companies which are Not Rated

R relates to companies which have been subject to Regulatery Action regarding salvency.
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B Projected inflated and
Undiscounted cashflows ($m
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C Projected inflated and discounted
cashflows ($m
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U Australlan asbestos consumption
and production data: 1930-2002

Figures in this table are in 000°s metnic tonmes
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Claims Dataset
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Accounting Transactions Datasets

Accruals File
Chale e Of rarE-acion antrny
Claam 10 numbser under new [T system
Transaction Rel Trarsaction reference number
Type Expense of Incame
coniaing the valses as foliows: Bank Fees, Comsuling Costs, Costs, Damages,

Description DOB, Interest. Legal Fees, Medicare, Other Bank Charges. Recoveries (or Recovery)
Amaunt L o nanEaction
GET T companent of ransaction
Amsaunt - GST i of ransaction, ned of GST
hccount AICF [of MRCF) account the money is chedt o of drawn from

Tha nama of the party who has dravan tha chague or from whom & chaque has been
Crawer of cheque recenved

Transactions File

Date Date of iransacton enlry inbo sysiem
!Chinl‘} Claim number under new IT syslem
| Trandacson Ref TrARAACHOn ffedancs Mumber
Type Payment of Recsipt
Dake Cheque Drawn Dabe Cheque Drasn
Date Cheque Banked Diate Cheque Banked
Deseripton af
{maunt Arnouant of irarsaction
lEsT GET component of
-GST Arniounl of rardaciion, net of GST
|N" Thee namie of the party whio has drawn the cheque of from whom a chegue has been
Dranwes of chequs macaived
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I Glossary of terms used inthe
Amenced Final Funding
Agreement

The following provides a glossary of terms which are referenced in the Amended Final Funding
Agresment and upen which we have relied in preparing our report,

The aperation of these definitions cannot be considered in isalation but instead need to be consdered
in the context of the totality of the Amended Final Funding Agreement.

AICF mizans the trustes of the Asbestos Injuries Compensation Fund from time to timae, in its capacity
a5 trustea, initially baing Asbestos Injuries Compensation Fund Limited.

AICF Funded Liability megns:
{al any Proven Claim;
{b) Oparating Expanses,
(=] Claims Lagal Costs;

[G]] any claim that was made or brought in legal proceedings against a Former James Hardie
Company commenced before 1 Dacamber 2005;

lal Statutory Recoveries within the meaning and subject to the limits set out in the
Amended Final Funding Agreement;

i a claim or category of claim which James Hardee and the NSW Gowernment agrae in
writing is a “AICF Funded Liability” or a category of "AICF Funded Liability”,

but in the cases of paragraphs (al, (el and (d) excludes any such liabilities or claims to the axtent that
they have been recovered or are recoverable under & Worker's Compensation Scheme or Policy.

Claims Legal Costs means all costs, charges, expenses and oulgoings incuried of expectad 1o be
barna by AICF or the Former James Hardie Companies, in respect of legal advisors, other advisors,
experts, court proceedings and other dispute resolution metheds in connection with Perscnal Asbestos
Claims and Marlew Clasms but in all cases axcluding any costs includad as a component of calculating
# Proven Clain,
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Coneurrent Wrongdoer in relation 1o a personal injury or death claim for damages under common law
or other law lexcluding any law introduced or imposed in breach of the restrictions on adverse regulatory
of legisiative action against the James Hardie Group under the Amended Final Funding Agreement, and
which breach has been notified to the NSW Government in accordance with Amended Final Funding
Agreement), means a person whose acts or omissions. together with the acts or omissions of one o
more Former James Hardie Companies or Marlaw or any member of the James Hardie Group Iwhether
of rat together with any other persons) caused, independently of each other or joantly, the damage or
loss to anothar person that is the subject of that claim.

Contribution Claim means a cross-claim or other claim under comimon law or other law [excluding any
lawe introduced or imposed in breach of the restrictions on adverse regulatory or legislative action
egainst the James Hardie Group under the Amended Final Funding Agreement, and which breach has
baen notified to the NSW Gowarnmeant in accordance with Amended Final Furding Agreament):

{al fior contribution by a Concurrent Wrongdoer against a Former James Hardie Company
or @ member of the Jamaes Hardie Group in relation to facts or circumstances which
give rise 10 a nght of a person to make a Parsonal Asbestos Claim or a Marlew Claim;
of

(1] by anothar person who is entitled under commaon law lincluding by way of contract] to
be subrogated to such a first mentioned cross-claim ar other claim;

Discounted Central Estimate means the central estimate of the present value (determined using the
discount rate used within the relevant actuarial repon) of the lighilities of the Former James Hardie
Companies and Marlew in respect of expected Proven Claims and Claims Legal Costs, caleulated in
accordance with the Amended Final Funding Agreement.

Exeluded Claims are any of the following liabalities of the Former James Hardie Companies:
i persanal injury or death claims arising from exposure to Asbestos outside Australia;

L] personal injury or death claims arising from exposure to Asbestos made outside
Australia;

{ii) clams for econamis less (other than any economic kass formng part of the caleulaton
of an award of damages for personal injury or death) or loss of property, including those
relating to land remediation andfor Asbestos or Asbestos products removal, arising out
of or in connection with Asbestos or Asbestos products manufactured, sold, distributed
or used by or on behalf of the Liable Entitas;

{iv) any Excluded Marlaw Claim;
[ any liabilities of the Liable Entities ether than AICF Funded Liabilities.
Excluded Marlew Claim maans a Marlew Claim:

{al covared by the indemnities granted by the Ministar of Mineral Resources under the
deed between the Minister, Fuller Earthmoving Pry Limited and James Hardie
Industries Limited datad 11 March 1396; or

(5] by a current or former employee of Marlew in relation to an exposure to Asbestos in
the course of such employment 1o the extent:

(i the loss is racoverable under a Waorker's Compensation Schema or Paolicy; or
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fip the Claimant i3 not unable to recower damages from a Marlew Joint Tortheasor
in accordance with the Marlew Legislation;

{ch by an individual who was or is an employes of a person other than Marlew arising from
exposure to Asbestos in the course of such employment by that other person whera
such loss is recoverable from that person or under a Worker's Compensation Schame
of Palicy; or

{d) in which another defendant {or its insurerd is a Marlew Joint Tortfeasor from whom the
plamtiff is entitled to recover compansation in proceedings n the Dust Diseases
Tribumal, and the Claimant is not wnable to recover damages from that Marlew Joint
Taortfeasor in accordance with the Marlew Legiskation.

Former James Hardia Companies means Amaca, Amaba and ABN G0,

Insurance and Other Recoveries means any proceeds which may reasonably be expected to ba
recevered of recoverable for the account of @ Formes James Mardie Company or to result in the
satisfaction (in whaole or part) of a liabdity of a Former James Hardie Company lof any nature) to a third
party, undar any product lisbility insurance policy or publc Bability insurance policy o commutation of
such palicy or under any other contract, including any contract of indemnity, but excluding any such
ameunt recovered or recoverable under a Worker's Compensation Scheme or Policy,

Liable Entities see Former James Hardie Companses.

Marleww means hMarlew Mining Pty Lid (in liquidation), ACMH 000 048 850, previously known as Asbestos
Mines Py Lid,

Marlew Claim means, subject to the imitation on Statutory Recoweries, a claim which satisfies one of
the: follewing paragraphs and which is not an Excluded Marlew Claim:

{al any present of future personal injury or death clasm by an individual or the legal parsanal
represeniative of an individual, for damages under common law os other law (excluding
any law introduced or imposed in breach of the restrictions on adverse regulatory or
legislative action against the James Hardie Group under the Amended Final Funding
Agraement, and which braach has bean notified ta the NSW Government in accordance
with the Amended Final Funding Agreement) which:

(i arose o arises from exposure to Asbestos in the Baryulgd region from
Ashestos Mining Activities at Baryulgil conducted by Marlew, provided that:

A the indnidual’s exposure to Asbestos occurmed whally within Ausirakia;
o

B. where the individual has been exposed to Asbestos both within and
outside Australia, the amount of damages included in the Marlew Claim
shall be limited to the amount attributable to the proportion of tha
expasure which caused or contributed 1o the loss of damage gnang rise
to the Marlew Claim which ocowrred in Ausiralia;

b is commenced in New South Wales in the Dust Diseases Tribunal; and
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iy 13 of could have been made agamst Marbew had hMaslow not been m external
administration or wound up, or could be made against Marlew on tha
assumption fother than as conemplated under the Marlew legislation] that
Marlaw will not be in the future in external administration;

L] any claim made under compensation to refatives legislation by a relative of a deceased
individual for parsonal representative of such a relativel or twhere parmitted by law) the
legal personal representative of a decessed individual in each case where the individual,
but for such ndividual’s death, would have been entitled to bring a claim of the knd
deseribed in paragraph {al; or

{eh a Contributicn Claim relating to a claim described in paragraghs (a) or (bl

Marlew Joint Tortfeasor maans any person whao is or would be jointly and severally liabla with Marlaw
in respect of a Marlew Claim, had Marlew not been in external adminsstriation o wound up, of on the
assumption that Marlew will not in the future be, in external administration o wound up other than as
contemplated under the Marlew Legisiation,

Payable Liability means any of the following:
{al any Praven Claim (whather arising before or after the data of this dead);
bl Oparating Expanses;
{eh Clainns Legal Costs;

{d) any hability of a Former James Hardie Company to the AICFL, however arnising, in
respect of any amounts paid by the AICFL in respect of any liability er otherwise on
behalt of the Former James Hardie Compary,

{a) any claim that was made or brought in legal proceedings against a Former James Hardia
Company commenced before 1 December 20065;

i if regulations are made pursuant to section 30 of the Transaction Legislation and if and
1o the extent the AICFL and James Hardie have notified the NSW Government that any
such lability is to be included in the scope of Payable Liability, any Lability of a Former
James Hardie Cornpany 1o pay amounts received by it from an insurer in respect of a
habdlity to a third party incurred by it for which it is of was insured under a contract of
insurance entered into before 2 December 2005; and

g Statutory Recoveries within the meaning and subject to the limits set out in the
Amended Final Funding Agreement,

but in the cases of paragraphs (al. (cl and (2) excludes any such liabilities or claims to the extent that
they hawve been recovered or ara recoverable under a Worker's Compensation Scheme or Policy.

Period Actuarial Estimate means, in respect of a pericd, the central estimate of the present wvalue
Idetermaned using the discount rate used in the relevant actuarial report] of the lisbilites of the Farmer
James Hardie Companies and Marlew in respect of expacted Prowen Claims and Claims Lagal Costs
i each case which are reasonably expected 1o become payable in that penod), before allawing far
Insurance and Other Recoveries, calculated in accordance with the Amended Final Funding Agreement.
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Personal Asbestos Claim means any present or future persanal inury or death claim by an indnedual
or the lagal personal representative of an indsadual, for damages under common kaw or under other
law lexcluding any law introduced of imposed in breach of the restrictions on adverse regulstary or
legislative action against the James Hardie Group under the Amended Final Funding Agreament, and
which breach has been natified to the NSW Government under the Amended Final Funding Agreement]
which:

{al anises from exposure 10 Asbestos ocouming in Australia, provided that:
(i the indivicdual's exposure 19 Asbestos occurred wholly within Austialia; of
i whare the individual has bean exposed to Asbestos both within and outsida
Ausiralia, damages included in the Marlew Claim shall be imited 10 the amount
attributable to the proportion of the exposure which caused or contributed to
the loss of damage giving rise o the Personal Asbestas Claim which occurred
in Australia;
[151] is made in proceeadings in an Australian court or tribunal; and
{eh 15 made aganst:
i all or any of the Liable Entities, or
ik any membar of the James Hardie Group from time to time;

{d] any claim made under compensation to relatives legislation by a relative of a deceased
individual lor personal representatve of such a relatvel or iwhere parmitted by lw) the
legal personal representative of a deceased individual in each case where the individual,
bt for such individual's death, would have been entitled to bring a claim of the kind
describad in paragraph (al; or

&) a Contribution Claim made in relation to a claim described in paragraph (a) or (o}
but excludes all claims covered by a Worker's Compensation Scheme or Palicy.

Proven Claim means a proven Personal Asbestos Claim in respect of which final judgment has been
given against, or a banding settlernent has been entered into by, 8 Farmer James Hardie Company, ta
the extent to which that entity incurs liability under that judgment or settlament, or a Proven Marlew
Clairr.

Statutory Recowverias means any statutory entitlernent of the NSW Government or any Other
Government or any governmental agency or authority of any such government {"Relevant Body”) to
impose liability on or to recover an amaount or amounts from any person in respact of any payments
made or 1o be made or benefits provided by a Relevant Body in respeat of claims (other than as a
dafendant or in settlement of any claim, including a cross-claim or claim for contribution).

Term means the penod
] from the date on which the principal obligations under the Amended Final Funding
Agraement will commence to 31 March 2045,

{ii) a5 may be extended in accordance with the terms of the Amended Final Funding
Agraement.
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Term Central Estimate means the central estimate of the present value [determined using the
discount rate used in the rabevant Annual Actuarial Report) of the liabilties of the Former James Hardia
Companies and Marlew in respect of expected Proven Clams and Claims Legal Costs (in each case
reasonably expected to become payable in the relevant perod) after allowing for Insurance and Other
Recoveries during that period, from and including the day follewing the end of the Financial Year
preceding that Payment Date up to and including the last day of the Term (excluding any automatic or
potential extension of the Term, wnless or until the Term has been extended).

Workers Compensation Scheme or Poliey rmeans any of the fallowng:

[E]] any worker's compensation schamea established by any law of the Commonwealth or
of any State or Territory;

-1} any fund established to cover liabilities under insurance policies upon the actual or
prospective insolvency of the insurer inchading without limitation the Ingurer Guarantee
Fund established under the Worker's Compansation Act 1987 [(NSWI); and

[[+] any policy of insurance issued under or pursuant to such a scheme.
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Exhibit 99.7

0 Motification of dividend / distribution
Notification of dividend / distribution

Announcement Summary

Entity name

JAMES HARDIE INDUSTRIES PLC

Security on which the Distribution will be paid
JHX - CHESS DEPOSITARY INTERESTS 1:1

Announcement Type
Mew announcement

Date of this announcement
Thursday May 18, 2017

Distributicn Amaoumnt
USD 028000000

Ex Date
Wednesday June 7, 2017

Record Date
Thursday June 8, 2017

Payment Date
Friday August 4, 2017

Refer to below for full details of the announcement

Announcement Details

Part 1 - Entity and announcement details

1.1 Mame of +Entity

JAMES HARDIE INDUSTRIES PLC

Registration Number
1.2 Registered Number Type
AREM 057a20895

1.3 ASK issuer code
JHX

1.4 The announcement is
MNew announcement

1.5 Date of this announcement
Thursday May 18, 2017

1.6 ASX +Security Code
JHX
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0 Motification of dividend / distribution

ASX +Security Description
CHESS DEPOSITARY INTERESTS 1:1

Part 2A - All dividends/distributions basic details

2A.1 Type of dividend/distribution

Ordinary

2A.2 The Dividend/distribution:

relates to a period of six months

2A.3 The dividend/distribution relates to the financial reporting or payment period ending
endediending (date)

Friday March 31, 2017

2A.4 +Record Date
Thursday June 8, 2017

2A.5 Ex Date
Wednesday June 7, 2017

2A.6 Payment Date
Friday August 4, 2017

2A.7 Are any of the below approvals required for the dividendidistribution before business day 0
of the timetable?

Security holder approval

Court approval

Lodgement of court order with +ASIC

ACCC approval

FIRB approval

Another approvalicondition external to the entity required before business day 0 of the
timetable for the dividendidistribution.

No

2A.8 Currency in which the dividend/distribution is made ("primary currency”)
USD - US Dollar

2A.9 Total dividend/distribution payment amount
per +security (in primary currency) for all
dividends/distributions notified in this form
USD 0.28000000

2A.9a AUD equivalent to total
dividendidistribution amount per +security
2A.89b If AUD equivalent not known, date for
information to be released

Friday June 9, 2017

Estimated or Actual?
Actual

Metification of dividend / distribution



0 Motification of dividend / distribution

2A.10 Does the entity have arrangements.
relating to the currency in which the
dividendidistribution is paid to securityholders
that it wishes to disclose to the market?

Yes

2A.11 Does the entity have a securities plan for
dividends/distributions on this +security?

We do not have a securifies plan for
dividends/distributions on this security

2A.12 Does the +entity have tax component
information apart from franking?

Mo

2A.13 Withholding tax rate applicable to the dividend/distribution
20.000000

Part 2B - Currency Information

2B.1 Does the entity default to payment in certain currencies dependent upon certain attributes
such as the banking instruction or registered address of the +securityholder? (For example NZD
to residents of New Zealand and/or USD to residents of the U.S.A).

Mo

2B.2 Please provide a description of your currency arrangaments

The dividend is payable in Australian currency unless the securityholder elects otherwise.

Part 3A - Ordinary dividend/distribution

3A.1 Is the ordinary dividend/distribution 3A.1a Ordinary dividend/distribution estimated

estimated at this time? amount per +security
Mo uso

3A.1b Ordinary Dividend/distribution amount per
security
USD 0.28000000

3A.2 I the ordinary dividend/distribution
franked?
Mo

3A.3 Percentage of ordinary
dividendidistribution that is franked

0.0000 %

3A.4 Ordinary dividend/distribution franked 3A.5 Percentage amount of dividend which is
amount per +security unfranked

USD 0.00000000 100.0000 %
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0 Motification of dividend / distribution

3A.6 Ordinary dividend/distribution unfranked
amount per +security excluding conduit foreign
income amount

USD 0.28000000

Part & - Further information

5.1 Please provide any further information applicable to this dividend/distribution

5.2 Additional information for inclusion in the Announcement Summary
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Exhibit 99.8

Appendix 3X
Initial Director’s Interest Notice

Appendix 3X

Initial Director’s Interest Notice

Rule 3.194.1

Information or documents not available now must be given to ASX as soon as available. Information and documents given to ASX become ASX’s property and may be made public.

Introduced 30/9/2001.
Name of entity James Hardie Industries plc
ARBN 097 829 895

We (the entity) give ASX the following information under listing rule 3.19A.1 and as agent for the director for the purposes of section 205G of the

Corporations Act.

Name of Director

Steven SIMMS

Date of appointment

14 May 2017

Part 1 - Director’s relevant interests in securities of which the director is the registered holder

In the case of a trust, this includes interests in the trust made available by the responsible entity of the trust

Note: In the case of a company, interests which come within paragraph (i) of the definition of “notifiable interest of a director” should be disclosed in this part.

Number & class of securities

Nil

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.

11/3/2002
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Appendix 3X
Initial Director’s Interest Notice

Part 2 — Director’s relevant interests in securities of which the director is not the registered holder

In the case of a trust, this includes interests in the trust made available by the responsible entity of the trust

Name of holder & nature of interest

Note: Provide details of the circumstances giving rise to the relevant interest.

Number & class of Securities

Nil

Part 3 — Director’s interests in contracts

Note: In the case of a company, interests which come within paragraph (ii) of the definition of “notifiable interest of a director” should be disclosed in this part.

Detail of contract

Not applicable

Nature of interest

Not applicable

Name of registered holder
(if issued securities)

Not applicable

No. and class of securities to which interest
relates

Not applicable

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
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